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Form 1 U'S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION ‘L (L~ mﬂ OFFICIAL
Page 1 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549 201 OII{ISEY
ion Page
Execution Fag APPLICATION FOR, AND AMENDMENTS TO APPLICA’!‘{HL 2B M”ﬂf
FOR, REGISTRATION AS A NATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE ]
OR EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION PURSUANT B (> |/
SECTION 5 OF THE EXCHANGE ACT ! MR

WARNING: Failure to keep this form current and to file accurate supplementary information on a timely basis, or the
failure to keep accurate books and records or otherwise to comply with the provisions of law applying to the conduct of the

INTENTIONAL MISSTATEMENTS OR OMISSIONS OF FACTS
MAY CONSTITUTE CRIMINAL VIOLATIONS

[1 APPLICATION [ AMENDMENT

1. State the name of the applicant: BA’ change, Inc

applicant would violate the federal securities laws and may result in disciplinary, administrative or criminal action.

2. Provide the applicant’s primary street address (Do not use a P.O. Box):
8050 Marshall Dr., Suite 120 14035120
Lenexa, Kansas 66214

3. Provide the applicant’s mailing address (if different):
4. Provide the business telephone and facsimile number:

(913) 815-7600 (913) 815-7119

(Telephone) (Facsimile)

5. Provide the name, title and telephone number of a contact employee:

Eric Swanson General Counsel, BATS Exchange, Ing, (212) 378-8523

(Name) (Title) (Telephone Number)

6. Provide the name and address of counse! for the applicant:

Eric Swanson

17 State Street, 32" Floor
New York, NY 10004

7. Provide the date that applicant’s fiscal year ends: December 31
8. Indicate legal status of the applicant: _X  Corporation Sole Partnership Partnership
Limited Liability Company QOther (specify):

If other than a sole proprietor, indicate the date and place where applicant obtained its legal status (e.g. state
where incorporated, place where partnership agreement was filed or where applicant entity was formed):

(2) Date (MM/DD/YY): 11/01/07 (b) State/Country of formation: Delaware/United States of America
(c) Statute under which applicant was organized: General Corporatj f the State elaware
EXECUTION:

The applicant consents that service of any civil action brought by, or notice of any proceeding before, the Securities and
Exchange Commission in connection with the applicant’s activities may be given by registered or certified mail or
confirmed telegram to the applicant’s contact employee at the main address, or mailing address if different, given in Items 2
and 3. The undersigned, being first duly swomn, deposes and says that he/she has executed this form on behalf of, and with
the authority of, said applicant. The undersigned and applicant represent that the information and statement contained
herein, including exhibits, schedules, or other documents attached hereto, and other information filed herewith, all of which
are made a part hereof, are current, true and complete. ’

Date: 07/18/14 BATS Exchange, Inc.

WD/Y Y) W (Name of Applicant)
By: jis By And Associ Counsel
(Signature) / (Printed Name and Tjgle
Subscribed and sworn before me this _th_ day of —:!h‘ , 014 by
(Mohth) (Year) (Notary Publi

My Commission expires 03 -9 2L County of ohnsen State of

This page must always be completed in full with original, manual signature and notarization.
Affix notary stamp or seal where applicable.

R Py | TERESA LAFFOON
$ % NOTARY PUBLIC

1 STATE OF KANSfS
svare or eaxsas | My App. Exp. _03-37-16




BA'TS Exchange Form 1 Registration Statement: Exhibit D

Exhibit D
Exhibit Request:

Tor each subsidiary or affilinte of the exchauge, provide unconsolidated finaneial
statements for the latest fiseal year. Such financial statements shall consist, at a minhinum,
of 2 balance sheet and an income statement with such footnotes and other disclosures as are
necessary to aveid rendering the fiuaneial statements misleading, If any affiliate or

subudm"y is requived by another Commission rule to submit aunual financial stateriiens; a
" statement to that effect with a citation to the other Commlssxou rule, may be provided in
Jicu of the fiiancial shtcments required heve,

Response:

1. BATS Y-Exchange, Inc., an affiliate of BATS Exchange, Inc., filed, at the same
‘ time as this filing, financial statements for the year ended Decembcl 31,2013

with the. Commission pursuanit to Rule 6a-2(b)(1) inder the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934,

2 BATS Tiading, Inc., an affiliate of BATS Exchange, Inc., filed financial
statemenits for the yearended December 31, 2013 with the Commiission purswant
to Rule 17a-5 under the Securitics Bxchange Act 0f 1934,

3, For the financial statements of BATS Global Markets Holdings, Inc.; (f/k/a BATS
Global Markets, Inc,) the parent of BATS Exchange, Itic., please refer to'the
aftachment submitted as patt of Exhibit I to this Form 1.

4, For the ﬁumcmi statements of BATS demg Limited, anaffiliatc of BATS

Exchange, Inc., please refer to-the altachmont submiited as part of Exhibit I to this
Form 1.

5. For the finangial statements of Omicron Acquisition Cotp,; an affiliate of BATS

Exch'mg,e Inc., please refer to the attachment submitted as patt of Exhibit I to this
Form 1.

6. Tor the ﬁndnual statements of Omicron Holdings Corp,, an affiliate:of BATS:

Exthange, Inc., plcase refer to the-attachment submitted as part of BExhibit I to this
Form 1,

7. For {he financial statements of Omicron Intermediate Holdings Corp., an affiliate

of BATS Exchange, Inc.,, please refer to thie attachment submitted as part of
Bxhibit I to this Form 1.

8. Tor the financial statements of Chi-X Burope Limited, an affiliate of BATS

Exchange, Inc., please 1cfc1 to the attachment submitted as part of Exhibit I to this
Form 1.

D-1



10,

12.

13,

14,

For the {inancial statements of BATS X, Inc,,.an affiliate of BATS Exchange,
Inc please refer to the aftachment submmed as part of Exhibit I to this Form 1.

For the financial stalements of Divect Edge Holdings LLC, an affiliate of BATS
Exchange; Inc., please refer to the allachment submitted as part of Exhibit 1 to ihls
Form: 1,

For the financial statements of Dncct Edge ECN LLC d/b/a DE Route, an affiliate

of BATS Exchange, Inc., please refer to the attachment submitted as part of
Rxhibit I to (his Form 1.

For the financial statements of Direct Edge, In¢., an affiliate of BATS E\:change,
I, please refer to the attachment submitted as part of Exhibit I to this Form 1.

For the financial statements of EDGA Exchange, Inc,, an affiliate of BATS

Exchange, Inc., please refer to the attachment subniitted as part of Exhibit I to this
Form 1.

For the financial statements of EDGX Bxchange, Inc., an affiliate of BATS

Exchange, Inc., please refer to the attachment submxtted as part of Bxhibit T to this
Form 1.




BATS GLOBAL IVI-ARKETS, ING. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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KPMG LLP

Suite 1000

1000 Walnit Slreet
Kansas Cily, MO 64106-2162

Tndependent Auditors® Report

The Board of Directors
BATS Global Matkets, Inc.:

We have andited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of BAT'S Glabal Markets, Inc. and jts
subsidiaries (the Company), which comprise {lie consolidated statements of finaneial condition as. of

Decenber 31, 2013 ._and 2012, and the related consolidated statements: of inconie, comprehensive income,
changes in slockholders’ cquity, and. cash flows for each of the years in the three-year petiod ended

December 31, 2013, aud the related notes fo the consolidated financial statenients.
Muandgenient’s Responsibility for the Financial Statenments

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair- presentation of these consolidated financial
statemetits in. accordance with U.S: generally accepted accounting principles; {his includes the design,

implementation, arid maintenance of intémal control relevant {o the preparation and. fair pitsentation ‘of

consolidated financial statements {lial ave free from material misstatement, whether duc-to fraud or errol,

Aunditors’ Responsibilily

Our responsibility is to express.an opinion on {hess cousolidated linancial statements:based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordarnce wiih auditing standards generally acoepted in the United -States ‘of
America and. in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Coiupany Accounting Oversight
Bouard: (United -States), Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assuraiice about Svhathier thie consolidated financial statements are free from material migstatement.

An-audit fnvolves perforning procedures to obtaify audit evidence aboul the amounts and disclosures i the
consolidated financial statements, The procedures selected depend o the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditar considers internal -control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order (o design audit
procedires that are appropriate: in fhe circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an.opinion on
{he effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, Accordingly, we eXpress no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significanl

accountiiig estimatcs made by management;. as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

We believe that he audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate to provide:a basis for our
audit opinion, .

¥PMG:ILP I 3 Oetaware [fied Fablly partateship,
tha U.S, mawber frmvaf FPRG. Infematiena) Ceopatativy
[KPUG telematonal’), a SHlsi entty. ’



REE

Opinion

‘In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred (o above present fairly, in -all mateiial
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2013 and 2612, and the resulls of their
operations and (heir cash flows for cach of the years i the three-year period ended December 31,2013 in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted decounting principles.

KPP 1P

Februavy 25,2014



BATS GLOBAL MARKETS, INC; AND SUBSIDIARITS
Cousolidated Statements'of Financial Condition
December-31,2013 aud 2012

(In thousands, excepl share data)

Assets 2013 2012
Current assets: , ' ‘
Cashaud ensti gquivalents ' S 87,217 8 82,514
Finangial investments: ) ) _ ;
Tradidig fuvestments, dt fair value 7,004 7,497
Available-for-sale investuients, al fair value N _ 18,198 22,295
Accotnts veceivable, nel, including $18,626 and $34,574 from rclaled parlics at , »
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respeciively 53,854 60,748
Inéoniie taxes réceivable. , ' 670 654
Othét receivables 1,682 1,804
Prepaid expenses 3,608 4,874
Total cutrént assets: 172,230 180,386
Proporty and equipment, net 11,577 16,997
Goodwill 197,937 ~194,294-
Intangible assels, nel 48,995 57,596
Débt issuance:costs; net. 4,646 4,997
Defeired income faxes, net . 9,242 13,339.
Tnvestment in BuroCCE 10,337 -
‘Other assels, 1979 1,961
Total assels $ 456943 $ 469,570

Linbilitles and Stackholders’ Eqully

Cuirrent liabilitiesy
Accouiils payable and accrued expenses, including $4,054 aiid 84,995 to related

~ partics at Deceiber 31, 2013:aid 2012, respectively s 25;0d4: S 26,635
Seetion 31 fees payable ’ 36,768: 51,290
Current portion of long:terni debt 17,422 48,776
Contitgent consideration liabiltity — 3,780
Deferred nconic taxes 261 406

Total cvimrent liabilitics 79,495 130,887
Long-term. debi, less currént portion 228,602 238,843:
Unrecogmized tax boncfits : 6,732 9,699
Othir liabilities: . 2,098 2,183

Conuitments and contigencies:

Stockholders’ cquity: ] _ ,
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 24,500,000 voting and 500,000 non-vofing

shares anthorized; 23,685,026 voling and 189,500, non-voting sharcs issned
al Decemberal, 2013; 23,556,670 voling and 189,500 nan-voting

shares issued al Decemiber 31,2012~ - o 239 236
Coimmon stock in treasury, al cost 1,075,176 and 1,001,723 voling shates )
at December 31, 2013-and 2012, respectively: (42,651) (40,322).
Additionol paid-in capital ' 128,604 125,601
Relained earnings (defieil) . 44,287 (2;5581)
Accummlated oiher comprehensive income, el 9,537 4,694
Told) stockholders’ equity o ' {40,016 87,658
“Tolal Hobilities and slockholders’ equity” $ 56,943 § 469,570

See nceotmpaniying notes lo consalidhiicd financial statements.



BATS GLOBAL MARKETS, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of [ncomc
Years ended Deceinhir 31,2013, 2012 and 2011

{In tiobsands, except share and per share data)

See accompuiyiiig holesto consolidated financial statcmcnts,

2013 2012 2011
Rovenues: . ! )
Transaetion fees, including $293,893,:5303,876 and $207,753 frony
felated pasties for the years ended Dectuibee 3 1,2013,2012 » )
_and 2011, respectively $ 612,806 S 645,310 S 695,357
Market data fees _ ‘ ' o 59,357 60,253 55,593
Regulatory transactfoii fegs, ancluding $81,365; $94,326 ad
864,360 frdm rolated girtics for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively 127,414 148,092 156,480
Por fees . 39,104 30,188 19,028
Other 2,815 861 17
Total reverines 841,196 884,704 926,629
Cost.of revemies: _
Liquidity paysments, including $252,734, $263,386 and $223,439 o
related porties for theyears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 o
and 201, respectively o » v 474,688 508,169 566,103
Retiig anid'clearing, including $3,373, §23,319 and $26,828 1o
related parlies for the years eirded December 31, 2013, 2042 B
and 2011, respectively 42,476 SH271 75,985
Section 31 fees 127,414 148,092 156,430
Qther 87 219 71
Totakcost-of revemies 644,665 702,751 798,615
~ Reventes lcss cost of revenues: 196,831 176,953 127,984
Operating expenses: : _ o
Compeisation ind benefils 441,457 48,412 12,947
Depreciation and aimortizalion 15,169 17,041 8393
Systems and data-coniinwication 9,612 11,899 10,053
‘Occupancy 1,833 2,344 1,506
Professionat and contract services: 8,125 9,224 10,290
TReguilatory cosls 5,377 5,685 5477
Changes in falr vilue ol continggit vonsideration Hability —_ 12,400 . 300
Impainnen! of assels, - . 3478, 167 —
General and administrative 10,002 10,465 10,733
“Total operating expenses 95,053. 117,637 89,699
Opevating incitic 101,778 59,316 38,285
Noii-operating (cxpenses) icome:, »
Interest ond investment {expense) incoine (25,825) (G46) 174
Otherexpense (290) {563). (116)
Tncatie bsfre inconte tax provision 75,663 58,107 38,343
Tincome tax provision 28,825 26,533 14,795
Net income N 46,838 $ 31,574 s 23,548
Basic earnings per share 8§ 200 $ 1.40 $ 129
* Dilidtedd camiiigs pershare. 3 2.06 & 1.39 N 1.26
Cash.dividend declared per common stock -8 — 3 1762 $ —
-Basic welghted average slgmjcs,putspaxidi'xlg 22,641,629 22,508,811 18,229,825
Diluted weigliled average shiares oulstaiding 22,738,747 22,146,146 18,745,219



BATS GLOBAL NARICELS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Stalements of Comprehensive Income
Yeus ended Decaber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

(In tiousands)

2013 2012 ‘ 2011
Net income $ 46,838 § 35,5M § 33,548
Othier comprehensive income: (luss), before tax: N
Toreign currency translation adjustients ’ 6,564 12,897 (2,076)
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on available-for-sale investments , ' o
recognized , _ 29 474) (2006)
Less:: Reolassification adjustments for gains (losses) included -
{0 interest and (nvestment income (32 683 —
Other comprehensive inconie (foss), before tax _ ©6,561 13106 (2.282)
Tntome tax: (provision) benefit rolated lo components of ather ) .
commprehensive income (foss) . (1,718) (4,786) 805
Other comprehensive come (loss), netof fax. 4843 8320 L {1,397
Coriiprehensive:income $ 51,681 S 39,894 S onont

See accompanying siotes to consolidated financial statements..
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BATS GLOBAL MARKETS, INCo AND SUBSIIAWIES
-Consoliated Stalemeals of Casl Flows '
Yeats endéd Décembed 31, 2013,2012:a0d 2011

tin thowsands)
2013 2012 2011
Cash flows fiom operaling achivitdes:
Nét ingéme . $ 46,818 31,51 S 23,548
Adjiistménts toseircite net iieome lo nét cash provided by opesating activities: . ’ .
‘Depreciation and ameriizstion e 13,169 1704 $,393
Anorization of debl issuance cost ad debt discowit 5,935 191 —
-Change in fair yalus of coatingeal considenation — 12,404 200
Frovision Far uncolfectable aceaunts téceivable .55 187 3
Daferred lrivone axcs ‘3,952 {3,001) (5,768} -
Stoikebased comptasation L 2,237 5632 5303
‘Realized gain onfhvesiments oivaed (26) —_ o
Loss {galny en disposal of ﬁi’dp_my and-equipriedt 220 393 {32y
Chinges by assels sad libititiess o
“Reeeivables, Including $4,052; §1,885 dnd 5884 from reafed partics. for o
theye ‘Desembat, 31, 2013,2012 and 2011, respeetively kALS +(5,202) 7313
Trading firanclol Investents; ek o ’ 491 23,536 (21,031)
Peepald and other assets . L o 1218 (3.239) 522,
Avtounts pajable dnd dcerurd experises; including $931, $4,510°and S3119
to selaled pasties for the yoers ended DPieeinberal, 2013,2012 end o
2000, respectively. - (1,603 {13,666) 7770
Sehion Al feés payable. . _ (14,323) " (3836 21,309
Paynsent of contingent considerat telated 1o Chi-X Kurops 2equisition (3,780): '(S,‘)l"og -
‘Other Habilitie's {13%) 9974 (308)
Neteath provided by:ptrating setivilies 63,119 65,069 18,189
Cash Nlows Fomingeiting activiies:
Aciilsition, nel of cash acquired . —— L= 13402
FPutchayes.of svatlablesfor-sale financial investments. . _(88,477), {162,8¢6) (303,106)
Proveeds from matsritics 5favailablesforgals fanclal inveibments 92,600 260,387 1204400
Proceeds from shotl lerm investments: - 3118 —
Purehise of intangible asset — 217 —_
Taicstment in FusCCe . (10,337 —_ -
Proceeds frony disposal of propety and equigment — 33 28
Pischases of propedty and eqiipment {3.590) (6,200} {9,553)
Netcash {izsed In) provided invEsing acivifies - (9,811) 94,546 (89,779)
Cash flows frea financing dctiviles: .
Distiibutions pall - , (1-153 (398,924) -
Payment of losig leandebt .. {45,000, . — —
Peotceeds from longiterm debl _ 300,000 —
Payment of eoatingent liability related-to Chi-X Europe agquisition — 52,300} —
Diebt fssuanee costs and debt discaunt — 219;56.1) —
Frocecdsfrom the exércise of stockbased compeasatlon. — 424 12
 Excess-tax benefils from stock-baicd compensation: > 3,338 328
Puschases of Irgasury stock {1,592). {7.975) {3,58%)
Net cash {used in) provided by finziicing seivities {46,702) {175,000 933
Liffect of forelgn curedty Exchifige Tale changes on ¢ash (1,903)° (1,560) [{O)N
firerédse (decrease) incashand cash équivalents 4,703 (16845) (so.871)
-Cash and cashequivatentss . . .
fieginning of year 82,50 99359 130,030
End of year s §7.217 82,514 $ 99,359
Supplementa] disclosure of castipalds . ‘
Cashrpaid Tor inceme laxes, att of téfunds S 28,508 20,523, S 10,859
Siipplemental disclosire of nonéash transactions: o )
Forleitore of commonslok for payment of cxeccise of stec)k optiens s 767 20,785 $ $,469
‘Dividend payable onvhvested restricted stesk: - 1,303 —_
Supplemeatal disclosure of nongash tavesting aclivities:
Short-temm investments agquired $ —_ — $ 3,111
Propsrly and cquipmentacguired — — 5212
“Goodill acqutred - — 187,120
Inlangible assels scquired — —_ 62,300
‘Other assets sequired ) - —_ 13,233
Fair value ofconiingent Hability 1 nequisition dale - —— 32,300
Liabililies p¥svinied ) ) — — 9,386
Assuiasice of common stock (elated to:ncquisition —_ — 215,591

‘Ste accompanyhig noles (o fidated financial statement
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BATS GLOBAL MARKETS, INC; AND SUB‘SI_DI’ARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
December 31,2013, 2012 aind 2011

Nature of Operafions

BATS Global Markets, Ine: and {ts consolidated subsidiaiies (the Company o BATS) is an ipnovative -
global financial technology company that develops and operates electronic markels for the trading of listed

cash equity: securities in the United States ‘(U.S.) and Europe and listed equity- options. in the U.S. The

Company is headquartered in the Kansas: City, Missouri, atea with additional offices in New York and
London, United Kingdom (UK.). 4

It the United States; the Conipany operates two national securities exclianges, BATS BExchange, Tne. '
(BZX) and BATS Y-Exchange, Inc. (BYX). Both trade listed cash equily securities afid exchange-traded
products, such -as exchange-traded funds (ETFs), but each target different market segments by offering
different pricing: alternatives, BZX also operafes: a matket for (rading listed equity options and the
Company also lists ETFs on BZX. 'The. Company also operates a broker-dealer, BATS Trading, Inc.
(Trading) that provides routed tratisaction services:for listed cash equities and option contracts, In Burope;
the:Company’s-Recognised Investment Exchange (RIE), BATS Trading Limited (BTL), offers: trading in
listed cash equity securities from: within 25 European indices, in addition- to ETFs, exchange-tiaded
commodities and international depositary receipts, Chi-X Europe Limited (Chi-X Burope) provides rouled
transaction services for listcd cash equities within the European market, BTL and Chi-X Burope combined
are referted to as BATS Chi-X Burope, Dwring the fourth quatter 2013, the Company also begah lisling
BTTs o BTL.

Swummary of Sigiificant Accounting Policies
(¢) Principles of Accounting

The Company follows accounting standards e_s_l‘ablighed' by the Financial :Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) to report its financial condition, resnlts of opérations and cash flows, References to

accouiting prin€iples genaral'lyf accepted in the U.S.(GAAP) in thiese foofnotes are lo the
FASB Accouniing Standards Codification (ASCor Codification).

(b)  Busls of Presentation,

The accompanying financial statements.are preseited ona consolidated basis 1o include the accounts
and traisactions of BATS Global Markels, Inc.and its wholly owned subsidiaries and all significait
intercompany accounls and {ransactions have been eliminated. Resulls fiom operations in fiscal
year 2011 related to Chi-X Europe are reflected from the effective date of {he acquisition. See note 3.
for additional information. '

(¢  Useof Bstimates

‘The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires managefient
{o make estimales and assumptions that affect the ¥eported amounts of assets and Habilities as well as
disclasure of the amouts of contingent-assets and liabilities at the dale of the consolidated financial

“slatements and the reported amounts of revenués aid expenises-during the reporting period. Actual
resulls could differ materially from thosc estimates, Material estimates' that are particularly

" sugeeptible - to significant change in {ie pear terin include the receivable for market data fecs, the
valuation of goodwill and unrecognized tax benefils. '
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BATS GLOBAL MARKET S, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Deceinber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Cash nid Cash Equivalenls

The Company's cash, and cash equivalents are exposed lo concentrations of credit risk. “The
Company maintains cash al various financial institutions and brokerage firing which, at times, may
be I excess ‘of the federal depository insurance limit, The Company's imatiagement regularly
monitors these institutions and believes that the potential for future loss is ininimal, Thé Company
considers all liquid investinents with original or acquired maturities of three ronths of less to be
cashrequivalents,

TFinangial Investinents

Flitdncial invesfments ave classified as trading oravailable-for-sale.

Trading financial investments represent financial invesiments held by the broker-dealer subsidiary
ihat retain the industry-specific accounting classification required for brokei-dealeis. These
investnienls are recorded at fair value with unredlized gains-and losses reflected in the consolidated
statements of income,

Available-for-sale financial investinents are comprised of the financial investments not held by the
broker-dealer subsidiary. Unrealized. gains and losses, net of income taxes, are included as-a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition.

Iiterest on Tinancial invesiments, including amortization of premiums and aceretion of discounts, is
recognized as Income when eamed. Realized gains and Josses on finaneial investments are calculated
nsing the specific identification method and are included in interest and investment (expense) income
in the accompanying consolidated statements ofincome. o

A decline in: the market value of any available-for-sale investment below canying amount that is
deemed to be othey-than-temporary results in an impalrment to teduce the carrying amount to
iealizable. value. To determine whether: an impairment is other-than-temporary,. the Company
considers all available information velevant to the collectability of the investment, including past
evellts, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts when developing estimate of
cash flows expected to be collected, Bvidence considered in this assessment includes the reasons-for
{lie impairment, the severity and duration of the impairment, changes in value subsequent to.
yoar-end, forecasted performance of the investes, and the general market condition in the geographic
avea or industry in which the investee operates,

Accounts Recelvable, Net

Accounis receivable are carried at cost, Jnterest is recorded on receivables once ihey exceed 60 days
past due. On a periodic basis, management svaluates the Conipany’s receivables and delermines: an
appropriate allowance for uncollectible accounts seceivable based on anticipafed collections. In
circuimstances wheie a specific customer’s inabilily to mest its linancial obligations is known
(e.1., bankruplcy filings), the ‘Company rccords a specific provision for uncollectible accounts
against amounts due to reduce the veceivable 1o the atount the Company estimates will be collected,
Onee the Compaity determines an.allowance for an uncollectible account is necessary, interest.on the
receivable ceases 10 be accrued. Seenote 6 for allowance for doubtful accotint activity.

1
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BAPS GLOBAL MARKETS; INC, AND. SUBSIDIARIES
Notes o Consalidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Propety and Equipment, Net

Properly. and eguipment, nel is stated af cost fess ncownulated depreciation, Depreeiation. is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated lives of the aséels, gel?.¢i‘dlly ranging
from thirce to seven years, Expenditures for repairs and miaintenance aré charged to expense as
incutred. Depreciation of leaschold improvements is calculated using the straight-line method over
he shorter of the related lease term or the esti mated useful life of the agses.

Long-lived assels to be held and used are reviewed to determine whether any events or chinges in
cireumstances indicate that (e carrying amaunts of the assets may not be recoverable. The Company

bases this evaluation-on siich fmpaiimient indicators as the nalure of the assets, the future economic
benefit of the assets, any historical or fulwe proﬁtabi‘lity measurements, as well as other external
market -conditions or factors that may be present.. 1f-such impainnent indicators. are present that
would indicate that the carrying amouit of -any asset may not be recoverable, the Company
determines whether an impairment has occuired through the vse of an uitdiscounted cash flow
analysis ‘of the :assel i the Towest level for which identifiable cash flows exist, In the event of
impaitinent, the Company recognizes a foss for the difference belween the catrying amount and the.
estimated value of the. asset as measured using quoted matket prices or, in e absence of quoted.
markel prices, a discounted-cash-flow analysis,

The Conipany -accounts for soflware development costs ander ASC Topic 350, Intangibles —
Goodwill and Other, The Company expenses software development costs as incurred dnring the
preliminacy project stage, while capitalizing costs incurred during the application development stage,
which inchides design, cading, installation and testing activities.

Goodwill-and Dntangible Assets, Net

-Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the vilue assigied fo the nel tangible: and

identifiable. intangible assets of a business acquired. Goodwill is allocated to the Company’s
repoiting units based on the :assi'gmpeu( of the fair values of each reporting unit of the acquired
company. The Company is required to test goodwill for impaitment al the reporting unit level

“annually, or in interiim periods if certain evenls occur indicating that the carrying value may be

impaired, The impalrment test is perforined during the fourth quarter using December 1* cartying
values, and if the fair value of the reporting unit is found fo be less than the carrying value, an
impairment loss is recorded. The Company completed its amnual goodwill impairment test in the
fourth quarter of 2013 anid determined (bat o impairthent existel. :

Jintangible asscls; vet, primarily include acquiréd tradeniatks aid frade -names, customer
relationships, stralegic alliance agreements, and licenses and registrations, Tntangible asséts with -
finite lives are- amortized based on the discounted cash flow method applied aver the estimated
useful lives of the intangible assets.

Intangible assels deemed {o have indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but ihstead are tested for

impairment -at least aunually, usually goncurrently with goodwill. Impairment exists if the fair value
of ihe asset is 1¢ss thai (he carrying. amount, and io {hat case, an impairment Joss is recorded. The
Contpany has performed the yequired jntangible assels impairment tests and the determined that the
stralegic alfiance:infangible asset is impaired as of Déceinber 31,2013, The value of the assel was
written off to impairment of assets-in the consolidated statements of inconie.
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BATS GLOBAL MARKETS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013,2012 and 2011

Tmpairment of assets recognized in 2012 has been reclassified from other expense to' impaivment of
assels to conform with current year prescutation.

Toreign Currency

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries where the functional currcﬁcy is not the U.S; dollar
~are translated into U.S. dollars vsing the exchange rate in effect as -of each statenient of financial

conditioli date, Statements of income and cash flow amounts are- translated using the average:
exchabge rate during the period, The cumulative effects of translating the statement of financial.
condition aceowts from the functional .currency ‘nto the U.S, dollar at'the applicable exchange rates
are inclided in accumulated other comprehensive income; Foreign curtency gains aud losses ave
recorded as olher expeiise’in the consolidated statements of income.

Tneome Taxes

Deferred taxes are. recorded on a liability method ‘whereby deferred tax assels are recognized for
deduetible temporary differences and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards, and deferrcd tax
liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differetices. Temporary differences are- the
differences belween the reported amotuits of -assets and liabilities and their tax bases: Doferred tax
assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely
thén not that some portion o all of the deferted tax assets will not be realized, Deferred tax assels

and liabilitics are adjusted for the cffects of changes Iivtax laws and fates on the date of ehactment,

The Company recognizes the tax benefit from an uncerfaln tax position only if it is more likely than
not (hat the tax position will be sustained on examination by the laxing anthorities, based npon the:
technical ‘merits of the position. The tax benefit recognized in the consolidated financial statements
from such & position fs imeastred based on the largest benefit thiat has a greater than 50% likelihood
of being realized upon ultimate settlement, Also, interest and penalties expense s yecognized on the -
foll amaunt of deferred benefits for uncertin tax positions. The Company’s policy is to include
interest and penalties related 1o imrecognized tax bencfits in the:income tax provision within the
consolidated stalements of income.

Reventre Recognition
Transaction Fees and Liguidity Payments

Under the Company's “iaker-taker” pricing model on BZX and the Company’s RIE, -a membef
posting an order (the liquidity maker) is paid a rebate (recorded in liquidity payments) for an
exceution occurring against that order, and a ‘mefber exeouling against an order resting, on the
Company’s book (the liquidity taker) is charged @ fee (recorded in {ransaction fees), As a result,
{ransaction fees consist of “laker” fees and routing fee revenues charged on seeurilies that are routed

_to-anofhée matket center. Transaction fees and liquidity payments are consideied garhed auid ineurred

upon execution of a trade and ar¢ recognized on a trade-date bass and recorded ol a gross basis in
revenues and cost of reventies, .

Under the Company’s “taker-maker” pricing ‘motlel ‘on BYX, a liquidity taker is paid a febate
(vecorded in liquidity payments) for an exccution occurring against {hat order and.a liquidity maker
is chirged a fee (recorded in transaction fees) for posting such an order, Transaction fees and.



BATS GLOBAL MARKETS; INC, AND SUBSII)IARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements -
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

liquidity payments are considered earned and incurred upon execulion of a tiade and ave recognized
on a {rade-date basis and recorded on-a grass basis in revenues and cost of revenues.

Market Datn Tees ‘

“Market data fees.are eariied from proprietary market data produicts and U.S. tape plavs, including the
‘Unlisted Trading Piivileges Plan (UTP), the Consolidated Tape Association Plan (CTA), aud the
Options Price Reporting Authority; LLC {OPRA). Fees, net of plan costs, from UTP and CTA are
allocated and distributed to plan paticipants according to their share of tape fees based on a formula

- required by Securities and Exchange Comission (SEC) Regulation NMS that takes into account
both trading and quoting activily. Fees from thie CTA and UTP are eslimated and recoghized on a
monthiy basis and received -approximately 45 days aller quarter end, Market data fecs fromi OPRA
are allocated based upon the shave of total options transactions cleared for each of the OPRA
members. Fees from OPRA are estiinated and recognized on a menthly basis and received
approxiinately 30 days after quarter end. Duribg 2012-dnd 2013, the Company-began charging data

subscribers for proprietary market data in its European Equities and U.S. Equities segment,

respectively. The market data fees are recognized on a monthly basis,

Tiarket data product fevenue recognized in 2011 has been reclassified from-other igvenue: to.market
data fees o conform with cutent year presentation.

Reguiatory Transaction and Section 31 Fees

BZX and BYX, as U.S. exchanges, are assessed Section 31 fees-purstiant to the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 (Exchange Act). Section31 fees are assessed on. the nofional value traded and are
designed to vecover thie costs to the government of supervision and regulation of seowdities markets
and secuirities professionals. These fees arc paid dircctly to the:SEC by BZX and BYX. BZX -and
BYX, in turn, collect regulatory transaction fees that are designed 1o equal o the Section 31 fees
from their. members, The Company acts as the principal versus an agent on these {ransactions, and

*therefore these transactions ave reported gross-in the consolidated statements of fucome, BZX andl
BYX collect the reguldtory transaction fees as a pass-through charge from menibers: executing
eligible trades and recognize, biese amounts in revenues, and the related. Section 31 fees in cost of
revenues as incarred on-a scttlement-date basis. Regulatory transaclion fees.received are inclided in
cash and cash equivalents’ and financiak investments in the consolidated statenients of financial
condition at the time of receipt, As required by law, the amount due to {he. SEC is remiited
semiannually and recorded as Section 31 fees payable to the SEC in the consolidated stateients of
financial condition until paid, Because ilie: Company holds the funds received until payment is
remitfed to the SEC, the Comipany carns interest on the relafed balances. '

Port Tees

Port fecs are-generated primarily fronycomnectivity services related to BZX and BYX In the U.8. and
RTL in Ewope, Porl fees are recognized on a monthly basis,
Concentiafions of Revenue and Liquidity Payments

For the year onded December 31, 2013 one member accouned for 10% -of the Conmpany’s
transaction fees, For tho years ended December 31,2012 and 20 L1, no’inembers a_ccm_mted for more
than 10% of the Company’s. transaction fees, For the ycars eiided December 31, 2013, 2012 and

10
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BATS GLOBAL MARKETS, INC: AND SUBSIDIARTES
~ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemenils
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

2011, approximately 12%, 10% and. 13%, respectively, of total liquidity payments each year were:
paid to one member, substantially all of which is recorded in the U.S, Equities seginent. No othet
members accounted for more than 10% of the Company’s liquidily payments during the years eided
December 31,2013, 2012 and 2011,

No member is. contractually or otherwise obligated to continue to use the Company’s services, The
loss of, or a significant reduction of, participation by these members may’ have ‘a material adverse
effect.on the Compatiy’s business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Earnings Per Shure.

The Company presents both basic and diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings. per shate is
computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of commion shares oufstanding
duiiig (he period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividiignet income by the sum of the
weighted averagesnumber of common shates and dilutiye common share equivalents outstanding,

Stock-Bused Compensttion

‘The Company grants stock-based. compensation to its employecs throngh awards of stack options
and restricted stock. The Company fecords stock-based compensation expense for all stock-based
compensation granted: based on the grant-date fair value. The Company recognizes conipensation
expense related to stock-based conipensation awards: with graded vesting that have a stvice
condition on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the entire award.

“The amount of stock-based compensalion expense related to awards of restricted stock ds based on
{he fair value of BATS Global Markets, Iic, common stock at the date-of graul,

The-amount of fiiture slock-based compensation expense related to awards of stock options is based
o the Black-Selioles valuation model Assumptions used to estimate. the grant-date fair value of
stock options ate deterinined as follows: .

o Expeecled term is determined using the simplified method, using’ the average belween the
contractual term and vesting period of the award, The simplified method was used due to the
lack of historical information; - -

° Bxpected volatility of award grants made under the Company’s plan is meéasured using the
weighted average of historical daily changes in the market price of the .common stock of
~ comparable public companies over the periad equal o the expected tetm of the award or a
miniminm of two years if cotparable-public company bistorical market prices are not available

for the entireéxpected tering )

0 Bapected d'wi‘dénd-réit;’: is determined based on expected dividends to be declaved;

o Risk-frec interest rate is: _eqti'ivalent to the implied yield on zero-coupon U.S. Treasury bouds
with a maturity equal to thie expected term of the awards; and

a Forfeitures are based on {h history of cancellations of awards granfed and ‘management’s
analysis of potential forfeitures. ‘

11
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BATS GLOBAL MARKETLS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31,2013, 2012 and 2011

() Business Comblhutions

The Company accounts: for business combinations in accordance with ASC Topic 805, Business
Conibinations, which requires identifiable assels, linbilities and goodsill acquired in a business
conibination to be recorded at faiv value at the acquisition date; Additionally, ASG Topic 805
requires transaction-related costs to be expensed in the period incurred.

(o) Debt Isstiance Cosis

The. Company accounts for debt issuance cost in accordance with ASC 'I‘-qf)'i_o 470, Debt, which
requircs that all costs incurted to issiic debt be capitalized and amortized over the life of the loan
using the interest method.

(p) Lqnity Method Litvestment

In general, the equity method of accountinig is used when thé: Company owns. 20% to 50% of the
outstanding voting stock of a .company and when it is able to exercise significant influence over the
operating and financial policies of a company. The Company has an investient where it has.
significatit influence and as such accounts for the investments under the cquity mcthod of
accounting. The Campany yecords the: pro-rata share of earniiigs or losses' each peviod aud records
any dividends received as a reduction in the investment balance. The equity method investment is
evaluated for ofher-than-temporary declines in value by considering a variety of fictors such as the
garnings capacity of the-invesiment and the fair value of the investmeni compared Lo its canying
amount. If.the estimated fair value of the investment is less than the carrying amount and the decline
in value is considered. to be ofhier than temporary, the excess -of the carying amount over the
estimated fair value is recognized in the financial statements.as an impaitment.

Chi-X Burope Acquisition
On November 30, 2011 {the Acquisition Date) the Company acquired 100% of the oulstanding common

shares of Chi-X Europe. The.results of Chi-X Europe’s operations have been included in the consolidated
financial stalements since the Acquisition Date.

“The acquisition-date fair value of the consideration transferred lofaled $304.1 million, which consisted of

the following (in thousands):

Fair value of consideration avsferred:

Cash s 32,256
Fair value-of share oullay: 219,591
Contingent consideration 52,300

Total purchase price $ 304,147

The Compauy issued 4,367,353 shares of common stock -valuéd at '$50.28 pei’ share, The fair yalue was
based on a third-paity valviatlon that used a discounted cash flow model and valuation multiples observed
of publicly traded companics’ in a similar induslry, Included in the atquisition was a contingent. cash
payment, The fai valuc of the contitigent consideration at the Acquisition Dale was $52.3 million and
changes in the fair value are recorded in operating expenses in {he consolidated statements.of incoime. This
value was estimaled using a 'pml}_abi|,i1jy4Wcighted discounled cash flow method and represents-a Level 3
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Notesto Consolidated Financial Stalements
Decewber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

measurement as defined in ASC Topic 820, The key assumptions used in this methodology weie & discount
vafe of 4.6% aid a probability assignment (o each of nine market share scenavios,

Dulng the fouirth quarter 2012, the contingent cash payment of $65 million was eamed, of which $61.2
million was paid through December 31, 2012, The remaining payment was made in the first quarter 2013.

The following is a recongitiation of {lie beginning and ending balance of the contingent consideration for
Chi-X Buwrope (in thousands):

Balance at December3 1, 2011 $ 52,600
Change in fair value: 12,400
Amount paid to former Chi-X Europe shareholders (61,220)

Balance at Deceniber 31, 2012 3,780
Change in fair value. h
Anount paid to foriner Chi-X Burope shareholders (3,780)

Balance at December 31,2013 $ —

The following table sumiarizes the estimated Taiv values of the assels acquired and Tiabilities assumed al
the Acquisition Date (in thousands):

Cashand cash equivalents & 45,658
Othercurrent assets ' 12,952
Property and equipment 5,212
Ideitifinbleintangible assels 62,300
Goodwill 187,130
Other assets ‘ 281
‘Liabilities {9,386)
3 304,147

Of the intangible assels recognized, $10.8 million was assigned to licenses and registrations and has an
indefinite useful life. Therefore,. this intangible asset will not be amartized, but its impairment -will be
evaluated at least.annually. The remaining intangible assets will be amarlized over the following useful
lives:

Balance at

acquisition
dale
- Assets ’ » Useful life (in thousauds)
‘Customer relationships 20years  § 45,100
Stralegic alliance agreement 4.25 years 5,800
‘Trademarksfirade names ] year 600

The goodiill acquired was assigned to {he European Bquities segment, as futher described in note 13. "The
goodwill recognized is attributable primarily to expected synergies -of the combined workforce and
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Decémber3d |, 2013, 2012 and 2011

{echnologics of BTL and Chi-X Europe. Approximately $140 miltion-of goodwill was deduetible for {ax
purposes.

The faix value of accounts receivable-acquired was 53,0 million. The gross amouit of accounts receivable
was $3.1 million, of shich $0.1 million was deemed to be uncollectable.

'The Company recognized $19:3 million and $11.4 million of acquisition-related costs expensed during the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. These costs are included i compensation and

Benefits, professional and contract services, and chianges in fair value of contingent consideration lability
ini the consolidated statements-of income,

The amounts of tevenue and operating foss of Chi-X Europe included in the Company’s consolidated

statements of lncome from {he Acquisition Date fo. the pé'r‘iod ending Decenber 31, 2011 are as follows

(in thousands):

Revenue 5,021
Operating loss (7,009)

L=l

The Tollowing unaudited pro forma fnancial information presents the combined results of the Company

and Chi-X Europe had the acquisition date been Janvary 1, 2011 (in thousands):

Tiseal Year ended
December 31,

2011
Revenue 3 999,490
Operating income: 40,897
Net incoine 24,295
Rarnings per share:
Basle b 1.09
Diluted 1.07

The supplemental 2011 pro forma antovints have been calculated after applying the Company’s accounting
policies and adjusting the results to reflect the additional depreciation and amortization that would have
been charged assuming the adjusted fair values of property and equipment and nequived intangible assets
had been applied on January 1, 2011. The supplemental 2011 pro forma financial information includes pro

forma adjustments of $18.8 million for acquisition Telated costs, such a5 fees 10 investment baunkers,

atlorneys, accountants and othor professional advisors and séverance to employees.
Restructuring.

Prior lothe Acquisifion Date, Chi-X Europe: entered into retention agreerients with its employees paid in
the first quarter 2012, Subsequent to the acquisition of Chi-X Europe, the Company. determined that certain
Chi-X Furope employees’ positions were teduiidant, As such; the Company communicated employee
termination benefils to these Chi-X Europe ¢mployees which included mainfdining the terms of the
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Deceiiiber 31, 2013,2012 and 2011

retention agreement, Certain employees were terminated An 2017, while others were terminated in the
second quarter of 2012,

Tu 2011, the Company recorded $4.6 million of teimination benefits in compensation ang benefits within
the consolidated statement of income, At December31, 2012, all lermibation benefits had been fully paid,

Investnients
Tinancial Inyestme'nts

The Company’s financial investients with -original or acquired maturities. Jonger than thiee months but.
pany \ | . G 10 s

that mature in less than one year from the statement of financial condition date aie classified as current
assets and are summarized as follows (in thousaiids):

Decembier 31,2013

_ Unvenlized Unrealized Faiv
Cost basis galns losses yalue:
Available-Tor-sate: » R
1.8, Trensury seeurities $ 18,197 8 L8 — 3 18,198
“Total finanicial investments $ 18,197 8 1 S — % 18,198
Decomber 31, i012
] Unrenlized Unprenlized Tair
Caost basls ‘ gains losses _ value
Available-for-sale: - _
1.S; Treasury scourities 3 22,292 8 3 3 — § 22,295
Tolal finanicial inyestments S 22,292, § 3 3 — 8 22,295

Bquity Method Investnient

In thie fourth quarter 2013, the Company acquired a25% ovnership interest in the European Multilateral
Clearing Facility, N.V.-(BMCF) for $10.3 million, In January 2014, BMCF changed its name:to European
Cential Counterparty NV, (BuroCCP), This investment {s yecorded as an equity methot inyestnient, as the
Company shares _i'n {he proportionate results of the entity and has significant jnfluence over the entity, but.
does not controf the entity. :
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(6) Allowance for Doubiful Accounts.

Allowarice for doubtful accounts consisted of the followiig for the years-ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011 (in thousands) :

2013 2012 2011
Balance at beginning.of period $ 06 3 32§ 206
Additions: :
Chatges to incotne, included in ,
general and administrative expense 55 187 373
Deductions:,
Recoverics of amounts previously
written-off — o {2)
Charges for which reserves were o
provided (113) (133) (225)
‘Balance at end of period 8 348 3 0 5 352,

7y I?,roperfy' anid Equipment; Net

Propesty and equi‘pment_cons"'isted of the Tollowing as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands):

2013 2012
Computer-equipment and sofware $ 39,176 $ 38,107
Office farniture aud fixtures . 1,239 1,159
Lcasehold improvements _ 5,332 - 4,892

Total properly and ¢guipment 45,747 44,158
‘Less acoumulated depreciation (34,170) (271,161)
Property and equipment; nol $ 11,517 % 16,997

Depreciation expense was $9.2 million, $10.3 miltion and $8.0 million for the yéars ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011, respeclively.
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Goodwill and Tntangible Assets, Nel

‘The tollowing table presents the details of the gaodwill and infangible asseéts (in thousauds):

Intangible
5 assels Gondwill
Balance at Decembor 31, 2011 $ 61,336 $ 185,549
Acquisition of iitangible asset 217 -
Amortization 6,19 —
Changes in foreign cutrency exchange rates ' 1,762 8,745
Balance:as:of December 31,2012 57,596 194,294
Iinpaiiment of intangible assel (3,478) —
Amortization (5,967) —
Changes:in foreign currency exchange rates 844 3,643
Balance as of December 31,2013 & 48,995 $ 197,937

For {he years ended December 31,2013 and 2012, amortization cxpense was $6,0 million and $6.7 miltion
respectively. The estimated futuré amoitization expense is $5.0 willion for 2014, $7.5 million for 2015,
$5.8 niillion for' 2016, $4.6 million for 2017 and $3.6 million for 2018.

The following table prescnts the categories of intangible assels, all of which is attributed to. the Evropean
Equities scgment, except for domain names, which are recordéd in Corporate lems and Eliminations (in
{housands):

Decemnber 31, December 31,

_ 2013 2012
“Frademarks and trade naues. $: 636§ 623
Cuistomer relationships 47,798 46,827
Strategic.alliance agreements ‘ — 6,022
Trading registrations and licenses 11,446 11,213
Domainnames ur 217

Accumulated mmortization (1,102) {7,306)

" $ 48,095 § 51,596

In the fourth quarter 2013, the. Company recorded an intangible: asset impainment charge tolaling $3.5
million rélated to the strategic-alliance agreements acquired through the 2011 acquisition of Chi-X Burope.
The Company has determined the cairying amount of the intangible.is not recoveiable and exceeded jls fuir
value, ‘The fair value of the strategic allince. was ‘determined using the estimated cash flows from the
strategic alliance. This charge was recorded in impairment of assets in the consolidated statemeyils of
income and altiibuted to the Buropéan Equitics segment,
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(9) Accounts Payableand Acerued Expenses

Accotnts- payable and accrued expenses consisted of the following as of December31, 2013 and 2012
(in thousands):

2013 | 2002
Accounts payable $ 12,681 $ 14,356
Deferred rent 278 123
Dividends payable 312 367
Unrecognized tax benefits » — _ 470
Accruéd expenses : 11,773 11,319
Accounts payable and accrued exponses » $ 25044 % 26,635

(10) Debt

OnDecember 19, 2012, the Company entered into (i) a term loan agycement in the amount of $300 million
and (ii) revolving loans not fo exceed $50 million (the 2012 Loan). The proceeds received from the term
loan weic tsed By the Company to.pay a $298.9 million dividend, or $13.20 per share, {o all shareholders
of BATS Global Markets; hie. eommon stock during the fotnth quatier 2012, The term of the loan is:six
years ending on December 19, 2018 with a variable interest rate based on I-month London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR) (with a floor of 125 basis points) plus.a spread of 575 basis points: The original
issue discount was $12.5 million, or approximately 4.9%. The revolving loans have siilar inerest rales
and a three-year term, ending on Degeniber 19, 2015. Principal paynients on outstanding balances are
made on .a quatterly basis. The Company incurred $7.1 million of debt issuance -costs; which was
capitalized and is being amorlized over the term of the loans.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Coinpany’s long-term debl consisted of the: following (in
thousands):

Decemberdl,
2013 2012
Term joan 3 255,000 $ 300,000
Less: debtdiscomit (8,976) ‘ (12,381)
Rovolving loan — —_
Total debt - 246,024 287,619
Less: curreitt portion (17,422) (438,776)

“Total longerm. debt $ 228,602 $ 238,843

The unamortized debt discount will be amortized as parl of interest and investmenl expense through
December 19; 2018, the maturity dafe of the term loan, The of fective interest rate on the term loan was
7.3% for botli the years-ended December 31,2013 and 2012,

The credit agrcement for the 2012 Loan contains customary affirmative and negative covenants, gvents of
default:and-a financial covenant fo not exceed a maximunr levérage ratio measuyred cach quarter {hrough
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fhe term of the. loan, all as defined in the credit apreement. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the
Compimy was incompliance with al} covenants.of the credit arrangements.

*The Company and certain subsidiaries have guaraniced the repayment of obligations under the eredit
agreement and have granted pledges of the shares of certain subsidiaries afong with a seourity interest in
certain other assets of the Company aud cerlain subsidiaries as collateral.

As of Decémber 31, 2013, aggregate minimun dimual maturities of long-term debt werc $45 million in
2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017, However, with the subsequent refinancing (sée Note 22), the refinanced
aggregate mininium annual maturities of long-term debt are $17.6-million in 2014 and $23:5 million in
2015,9016, 2017, 2018 aid 2019,

Interest cx‘pénse recoghized on the term loan and revolving Joans for the year ended December 31, 2013
and 20)2 is as follows (in thousinds):

YearEnded Year Ended

December 31, Deceinber 31,
2013 2012
Components of interest expense! _
Confractual interest $ 20,019 & .07
Amortization of debt discount 3,405 119
Arortization of debt issuance cost 2,548 85
Interest expense _ ' - § 25972 PIE

Accumulated Other Comprchensive Income.

The fallowing represents {he chariges in accumulaled other comprehensive income by coniponent, before.
fax:

Unpenlized liolding

. Forelgn-currency (fosses) gains on Acenmulated other
trapslation available-for-sale comprehensive
ridjustment ~ {nveslments: ~ (loss) iucome

Balance at Decémber 31, 2011 S (3,420) § (206) 3 (3,626)
Other comprehensive income for the- '

‘velye months-ending December 31,2012 12,897 209 13,106
P effect o offier comprehensive income (4,786) — (4,786)
Blaiice at Deceinber3l, 2012 4,691 3 4,694
Other comprehensive income for the _ ’ _
~ hwelve months ending December 31, 2013 6,564 ) 6,561
Tax effect on other comprehensive income. , {1,718) — {1,718)

3

Balanee at December 31,2013 9,537 N p— $ 9,537
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(12) FTair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would Ve received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability N
ovderly transaction between market parlicipants af he neasurement date and sets out a {air valye hierarchy.
The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets of
liabilities (Level 1) 4nd the lowest priority to friobservable hiputs (Level 3). Inputs are broadly defined as
assumptions market participants would use.in-prieing an asset or liability. The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy are described below:

Level L; Unadjusted quoted prices in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

reporting entity has the ability o access ¢ t he measurement date. The types of investiments included
i Level 1 inclide listed equities and listed derivatives. '

Level 2; Inputs other than quoted prices within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly, and fair value is determined through the use of models or othier valuation:
niethodologics. Investiients that are genierally included in this category iticlude corporate bonds and

“loans; less Jiquid and resiricted equily seciivities ‘and cerlain over-the-counter derivatives. A
significant adjustment to-a Level2 input could result in the Level2 measurement becoming a
Level 3 measurement,

Level 3: Inputs-are unobservable for the-assct or liability and include situations where there is little,
if dny, market activity for the asset or Liability. The inputs iiito the determination of fair value are
‘based upon the circumstances and the best information available at the lime and may require
significant management judgment or estimation, Investments that are included in this: category
genexally include equity and debt positions in private coinpanies,

Tinancial investments classified as frading and available-for-sale consist of highty liquid U.S. Treasury
securilies: These seciilics ave valued by oblaining feeds from anumber of live data sotitces, ineluding

active market makers and inter-dealer brokeis;and therefore calegorized as Level 1,

“The following lable presents the Company’s Talr value hieratchy for those-assets- measured at fairvalue on
a recurring basis as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 (in'thousands): '

v Decomber 31, 2013
Total Level 1 Level2 Level 3
Assetss -
Trading financial invesfments:. :
U.S. Treasury sccuritics: & 7,004 % 7,004 % — 8 —
Available-for-salc financial
investments: »
U.8. Treasury securitics 18,198 - - 18,198 . — —
Fotal assets: $ 257202 § 25202 $ — 8 —
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December 31,2012
Total Level 1 Level 2 Loveld
Asselst
Trading financial fnvestments: _ :
U.S. ‘Treasury secuitics $ 7497 § 7497 & — 3 —
Available-for-sal¢ financial
fivesimentst o .
U.S, Treasury sccurities , 22,295 22,295 : —_— —
“Potal pssets $ 29792 8 29792 § — 8 —

The c‘zm‘ying amount -of fong-terin debt approximates its. fait value based on quoled LIBOR at both
Decenber 31, 2013 and 2012 and is considered 2 Level 2 measurenient,

The cafrying ‘amount of cash aud cash cquivalents, short-term investinents,. acgounts receivable, notes
feceivable, accounts payable and Section 31 fees payable approximate fair value due {o their liquid or
short-tetm natnie and are-considered Level 2 nigasurements,

The carrying amouiit of the strategic alliance infangible al ‘Decemben‘iﬁi‘l; 2013 is based on the estimated

cash flows from the strategic allianeewhich is a significant unabservable input, and is considered & Level 3
measuremeit valued at zero'dollars.

The cavrying amount of the BuroCCP inyestment al December 31, 2013 approximales fair value that is

based on {he estimated cash flows from the BuroC:CP entily; a significant uniobservable input, and is also
cansidered a Level 3 measurensent. '

Als, tie processito evaluate the impairment of goodwill involves calculations to determine the fair value
of edch eporling unit-on a stand-alone basis. A combinafion of forinulas using ewrrent market multiples

2

and cash flosy scenatios is used to estimate lhe fait value of -cach reporting unit, That fair value is
compared to the carrying amount of the reporting nil, including ifs recorded goodwill, Tmpatmicnt is
considered to-have ocourred if the fair value of the reporting unit 1s tower than the cariying amount of the
reporting unif, These measureinents are classified as-Level 3. :

Segment Reporting

The Company operates under llwee reportable segments: U.S. Equities, European Equities and
U.8. Options, The Company evaluates segment performance primarily based on operaling income (loss).
The:Couipany has agprepated all of its corporate costs, aswell as other business ventures, witliin Corporate
Items and Eliminatiops; however, profc'ss'lonal and contract services that rélate to activities of a specific
segment have been allocaled to thal segment.

o The US. EBquities segment tncludes listed cash equities and exchange-traded products {ravsaction
services that oceur-on BZX and BYX. 1t also {ncludies he listed cashicquities and exchange-traded
producls routed transaction scrvices that oceur on "Trading: 1t also includes the fstings business
where LWTT's are listed on: BZX. :

o “The Buropean Equities segient includes the pan-Europeai listed cash equities ransaction services;
LT, exchange-traded commiodities and international depository reccipts that Geour on the RIE,

21



BATS GLOBAL MARKETS, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

BTL. It also includes (e listed cash equilies and exchange-traded praducts fouted transaclion
services that eceur on Chi-X Lurope, as well as the listlings business wlicre ELT's can be listed on
BTL, The Company acquired Chi-X Turope on November 30, 2011, See not¢ 3 for additional
information, '

s The U.S. Options segment includes the listed equity oplious transaction services that oceur on BZX.
‘This-segment began trading listed equity options in February 2010. Ttalso inclndes. the listed-equity

options routed {ransaction services that occur on Trading.

Summarized financial data of {he Company’s reportable seginents was as follows (in thousands):

-Covporale
] JLuropemy itemsand )
. U8, Erjuities Bquities US, Optious elliniations “Toldd
2013 _ o
Revenugs $ 662,798~ 8 8648 § 927283 S - .8 841,496
Revanues less cost of revenues 123,940 $1,578 15313 i 196,831
Dejréciation and awortization 4,359 9,382 928 — 15,169
Opemting income (loss) 71398 17,440 8,469 1,529} 101,778
Total dsséls 215,784 297,196 6,84s (62,882) 456,943
Goodwitt —_ 197,937 —_ — 197,937
Intangible nssets, siet — 43,778 — 217 48,995 .
Debt —_ — —_ 246,024 246,024
Pairchases of property ahd B
rquipment 3,262 187 148 — 3,597
2012 ,
Revenues s 7232200 $ §2,829 8 8655 § — & 884,704
“Revemics lesscost of revenues. 127,136 38,771 14,046 - — 176,953
Depreclation i onigriization 4,406 11,478 LI5F — 17,041
Operaling incoihe (1055) §3,076 (25,174} 7,705 6290 59316
Total nssels: 170,579 292,936 9,002 (2,947 469,570
Goatlwil , — 194,294 — = 194,294
Intaiigible assets; net — §1379 . — 217 57,596
Conlingent consideratioft _ ]
linbility — 3,10 — — 3,750
Debt _ — _ — 287,619 287,619
Purcliases of property-and . _ : _
© cquipment 4518 1310, 1,05¢ 2 6,900
2011 L '
Revenves § 840,301 S 28389 § 51439 S - § 926,629
Roverits 1654 ¢ost ol revenues 115,352 10,656 1,976 — R by 13
Deprediotion and smortization 4,729 2,792 872 —_ 8,393
Operating income (Joss) 169,720 (24,448) (4,409) @.575) 38285
Tollassels 267,800 325,520 1,861 (3,282) 594,903
Goodswill - 145,549 — —, 185,549
Intaugible assets, net 61336 - — 61,336
Contingeni consideration _
liability — 52,600 - — —_ 52,600
Puchases of property and _ )
cquipment 2438 6,441 674 — 9,553
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Geograplric Datn.

The: following table presents revenues and tong:lived assels, net by geographic avea for 2013, 2012 and
2011 (inthousands). Revenucs are classified based upon: thic location of the {rading venue. Long-lived
asiets inforination is based oir-the:physical location of the assets.

Total Long-lived
reyenies ‘ assets
2013 : ‘
Utited States $ 755,081 $ - 8,146
United Kingdom 86,415 250,363
Total ' $. 841,496 3 258,509
2012:
United States ¥ 801,876, $ 9,904
Uhited Kingdom 82,828 258,98%
Total $ 884,704 $ 268,887
2011 o A
Ultited States ¥ 898,240 $ © 8,634
United Kingdom 28,389 257,832
Total 8 926,629 $ 266,466

Eniployee Bencfit Plan

The Company offcis a SIMPLE Individual Retivement Account for the Bene[it of gll U.S.employees. The
Caonipany inatches participating employee conlributions of up to three percent of salary. All
U.S. eniployees are éligible to participate. The Corpany’s contribution amounted to $0.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2013 and £0.4 million for the yoars'ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, This
expense is included in‘conipeisation and benefits i the-consolidated statements of inconie.

BTL operatcs a stakeholder -contribution plan -and contributes to employec-selected stakeholder

contribution plans, The Company matched. participating employee contributions of up to five percent of
salarys ;ll[ cployees .of BTL. were: oligible to patticipdte. The Company’s contribution amoimted to

0.4 million for the years .ended December31, 2013 and 2012 and §0:3 million for the year ended
Deceinber 3 1, 2011, This expense is included in compenisation.and benefits in the consolidated statements

of tiigonie, . :

Chi-X Burope operated a defined coniltribution plan knon as the Personal Pension Plan (the Plan), All
employees. of Chi-X Eurepe were oligible lo participate in 2012 and 2011. The cost of contributions
payable. by the Company with regards fo the Plan for the year are oxpensed as: incurred. For the years
eided December 31,2012 and 2011 the Company contributed $0.3 -million and $0.1 million, respectively,
This expense is included i compensation and benefits in the:consolidated statements of income.
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Related Parly Transactions

Cortain afliliatés of stockholders of BATS conduct trading activity through the Company. The extent of
such activity isprésented in the accompanying consolidated stafements of financial condition; income and
cash flows. ' ' )

The Company nraintains brokerage accowts with a stockholder, As of December 31, 2013-and. 2012, $59.2
miifion and $67.9 million, respectively, in cash and tash equivalents and financial investments yvere held
fir'suieh-accounts. :

Regulatory Capital

As a brokeizdealer registered with the 8EC, Trading is subject to the SEC's Uniform Nel ‘Capital rule.
(Rule 15¢3-1); which tequires the‘maintepance of minimum uet capital, as defined. The SEC’s requirement
also provides that equity capital may not be withdrawn or'a cash dividend paid if certain miniouny net
capifal requirenients are ot met, Trading computes its net capital requirements under the basic method

provided for i Rule 15¢3-1, which, as.of December31, 2013 aud 2012, requires Tiading to maintain net
capital equal to the greater of 6.67% of aggregate indebtedness items, as defined, or $0.1 imillion, At
December 31,2013 and 2012, Trading had net capital of $6.4 million and $6.2 million, respectively, which
was §6:1 million and $5.9 million, respectively, in cxdess of its requited net capital of $0.3 million for both
years. : .

to the Capifal Resources. Requirement (CRR). As a RIE; BTL computes. its CRR in ecordance with ifs
Rinancial Risk Assessment, as agreed by the FCA. This- CRR was $16.6 million at December 31,:2013, In
prior years BTL was a Banks, Investment firms, PRUdential (BIPRU) 730k firm as defined by the Markets
in Financial Instruments Directive of the FCA. Al December 31, 2012 BTL compiited its CRR as the
preater of the base réquirement of $9.4 million or the summation of the credit visk, macket risk and fixed

overlicads requirements, as defined, At December 31, 2013 and 2012, BTL hiad capital i excess of ifs
required CRR of $12.9 million and $7.3 willion, réspectively.

As. eitities regulated by the Financial Conduot Avthority (FCA), BTL and Chi-X Europe are both subject

As a Banks, Investment firms, PRUderitial (BIPRU) 50k firm as defined by the Markets in Financial
Instruments Diveetive of the FCA, Chi-X Burope computes ils CRR as tlie greater of the base. requirement
of §0,1 million at December 31, 2013 and $0.6 million al Deceniber 31,2012, or the summation of the
credit visk, market risk and fixed oveiheads requirements, as defined. At December 31, 2013, Chi-X:
Europe had capital in excess of its required CRR of $1.4 million. At December 31, 2012, Chi-X Europe
heid capital in excess of its required CRR of $2.7 million,

Stoel-Based Compensalion

The Company ufilizes equily award programs for offeriug long-term incentives fo ils employecs. The
equity ficentives have been granted in the Torny of nonstatutory slock options -and. resfricted stoek, In
conjunction with these programs, {he .Company recognized stock-based compensation ‘expense of
$2.2 million, $5.6 million and $5.3 million for the ycars ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respeciively, This' expense is included in compensation and benafits in the consolidated slalements of
inconié, :
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Stock.Options -

The Company has twostock option plans pursuant to which stock options have been granled: the: Amended
. aid Restated BATS Global Markets, Tnc. 2008 ‘Stack Option Plan (2008 Plan) and the BATS Global

Markets, Inc; 2009 Stock Option Plan (2009 Plan), Options granted under these plans generally vest aver
. four years, Options granted under e 2008.Plan have a five-year contractual term, shile options granted
{mder (he'2009:Plan have a ten-year contractual term, Pursuant to the 2009 Stock Option Plan and the 2008
Stack Option Plaiy, the Company authorized grants of options 1o its full-time eniployees to purchase up-to

2,195417 shares of the Coinpany’s'stock. Such shares must be previously vnissued orreacquired shares.

T connection with the Conipany's: failed attempt of an initial piiblic. offering (IPO) during 2012, the
Conipany’s registration slatement on Form S-1 was declared effective by lhe SEC. As ‘a result of the
vegjstration statement being declared effective and pursuant to the 2008 Plan and 2009 Plan, all yeinaining
outstanding unvested stock options would become fully vested one year after the effectiveness of the
Company's registration statement. The Compang: recorded $04 million and $1.5 million in stock-based
comipeiisation expense for the years ended December 31,2013, and December 31, 2012, respectively, as a
result of the vesting acceleration of outstanding unvested stock options.

During 2012, the Company modified the exercise piices of oufstanding stock options as ‘a result of the
estracrdinary dividends paid duving 2012 pursuant to the anti-dilutive provisions of the 2008 Plan and
2009 Plan, The exetcise prices were: decreased by $3,31 and $9.96 for the dividends paid in August 2012
and December 2012, respectively. '

Summary stock option activity 1§ presented below:

Welghted
Welglited average:
average remalning Aggregate
Nuniber exerclse conracival fntrinsic
of shates: price {eem (yeprs) vilue
Outstanding, December 31,2010 2,005,750 3 26.53 32§ 30,093,033
Lercised : (343,000) 16.63 ) 10,864,163
Forfeilcd . (s8,250) 3871
Oufstanding, December 31,2011 1,604,500 28.20 ' 3.1 37,030,383
‘Exercised (1,030,655) 20.59 17,919,059
TBorfeiled (37,220 40 .
Otstanding; December 31,2012 536,628 8 27:62 67§ 1,652,529
Exerciscd (39,750) ' 28.51 $17,628:
Torleited i ' {7,500) 3193
Oulstanding, Deceniber 31, 2013 189375 $ 2830 580§ 282577
Excicisble ot December 31,2013 489,375 § 2830 58§ 0 4828771
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Summiary of the status of nonvested options is prosentéd below:

Weiglited

average grant-

Nonvested shares Shaves date fair value

Tecember 31, 2010~ Nonvested 998,500: $ 18.03

Vested ' (446,188) 14,01
Forfeited 1(58,250) 3871

December 31,2011~ Nonvested - 494,062 21,16

Vested (236,030) 18.28

Forfeited . (37;'-220)_ _ 40,23

Diceniber 31, 2012~ Nonvested 220,812 24.25

Vested (213,31 2) 23.29

Forfeited {1,500) 25.05

December 31, 2013 — Nonvested — $ —_

P —— S

Cash 'procee_ds"rgg;eiVed. from 20,850:and 82,250 options exereised for the ycars.e:ndcd».DecemherS‘1, 2012
and 2011, respectively, was $0.4 million and $1.2 million; respectively. During 2013, 2012 and 2011, the
Company pwrchased 30,228, 756,779 and 166,824 treasury shares for $1.0 million, $28.8 million and
38.1 million, respectivély, as the result of 39,750, 1,009,805 and 260,750 options cxeicised, respectively,
upon cashless exercisc to safisfy the exerclse price and employee income tax wilhholdings upon exercise.
Excess. tax benefils. from stock option exercises récogized ‘during the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011 as $0.1 million; $3.3 million and-$3.3 million, respectively.

Restrieted Stock
In 2012, the Company established the Afnended and Restated BATS Global. Markets, Juc, 2012 Equity
Tncentive Plan (2012 Plan) under whichi the Company grants resfricted stock ta certain employees and

directors. Restricted stock granted under the plan fas a ton-year contraciual ferni. Pursuant to- tie 2012
Pian, the Company is authorized to grant festricted stogk up 10:525,000 shares,
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Summary resiricted stock activity is presented below:

Weighted
average

Number of grant date

shaves fair value
Nonvested stotk at December 31,2011 ' —_ $ .
Granted 90,829 37.53
Vested —_ —
‘Nonvested stock at December 31, 2012 90,829 37.53
Granted 88,606 33.94
Vested (25,061) v 37.58
Nonvested stock at December 31, 2013 . 154,374 $ 35.46

The tolal wirécognized compensation: expense refated to nonvested restiioted stock is approximately
$5.2 million, which will be fecognized over awdighled average remaining period of 3.4 years.

During 2013, the Company purchased 6,689 treasury shares. for $0.2 million as the result of 25,061 shares
of restricted stock vesting lo satisfy the employee iicoine tax withholdings upon exercise.

Diing 2013, the Company also paid $0.4 million for dividends previously declaved upon vesiing of
resiricted stock.

Share Repurehinse Progiran
During 2012, fhe Company approved a Share Repuirchasé Program (the SRP), The SRP was effective for &

one-year period-ending on December 31, 2013, Diting 2013; {he Company repurchased 36,536 shares into
freasury for$1.2 million:
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(18) Income L'axes

Nel deferred lax assels consist: of (he following components as of December 31, 2013 and 2012

(in thousands):
2013 2012
Defesred tax assels: v . ‘
Stock-based compensation $ 5,370 3 4,904.
Goodivill and other intangibles 5,391 3,136
Bad debts 137 159
Otherassets. * - : 1,034 680
Proporty and equipment 3,895 2,18
Infangible start-iip costs 235 457
Unrecognized tax benefits 2,353 3,178
Net operaling losses and eredit carryforwards 5,570 13,494
Transaction costs 462 —
Gross deferted tas agsels 24,447 33,753
Less deferred tax asset valuation'allowance {16 : (16,941)
Total deferred tax assets 24,431 v 16812
Deferred tax liabilities: _
Prepaid expenses 915 13
F()reign--branch losses 9,672 —
Toreign currency translation gdin 4,863 3,166
Total deferred tax liabilities 15,450 3,879
Nel deferred tax assels $ $,081. $ 12,933

The deferred tax assel assoctated with net operating lossesds $5.6 million, The nel operating losses have no
expiration. : :
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The provision for income taxes for {he years ended Deceinber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 consists of the
following (in thousands):

2013 2012 2011
Currént tax expense:
Fedetral $ 23,540 % 18,807 $ 18,849
State. i 2,540 13475 908
‘Fotal current tax expense- 26,080 32-;282 19,758
Deferied ncone tax benefit: }
Federal, state and foreign 2,745 (5:749) (4,963)
Total deferred income tax _ :
expense (benefit) 2,745 (5,49 (4,963)
Income lax proyision $ 28825 § 26533 14,795

For the years eiided December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, incomie from continuing operations before taxes
consisis of the following:. '

2013 2012 2011
.S, Operations. s 58,461 $ 83,620 $ 55,566
Forgign operations . 17,202 (25,513) (17,223) .
' ‘ B 75663 8 58107 § 18343
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Income lax expense aitribitable fo income: from continuing operalions consists of:

Current Deferred. Tolal
Year ended December:31, 2013 ' o -
.S, .federal 23,540 $ 12,051 $ 35,59k
State and local 2,540 366 2,906
Toreign juisdictions — 9,672) (9,672)
$ 26080 8 2745 § 28825
Year ended December 31; 2012: )
U.S, federal § 18807 % (5308) B 13499

State and Jocal 13475, (441) 13,034
Forelgn jurisdictions — — 0
$ 2§ (5749 0§ 26533

Yearended December 31, 2011
" U.S. federal $ 18849 & (5462) $ 13387
State and Jocal 909 499 1,408
Foreign jurisdictions _ — — —
$ 19758 @963) § 14795

2

In 2013, .$0.1 million and in 2012 and 2011, $3.3 million of income tax bengfits primarily telaled to stock-
based compensation was recorded as additional paid-in-capital in the Consolidated Statements-of Financial
Condition. Also in 2013, 2012 aud 2011, $1.7 mitllion, $4.8 miliion, and (0.8 million), respectively of
income-tax expense (benefit) was secorded as other comprehensive. income in the Congolidated Statements
of Financial Condition. .

The Coinpany lias ¢lected to lreat BTL ‘and ‘Chi-X Europe as flow-{lrough entities for U.8. federal income
tax purposes. As a result, the activities for BTL and Chi-X Europe are lreated as branches:of the Company,
.and faxableincome or loss reported by BTL and Chi-X Burope are included in the U.S, federal income tax
veturn of the Company. The Company assessed the realizability of its UK. deferred tax assels anid released
* its valuation alloivance in 2013, The Company recorded & corresponding U.S. defeired tax Hability for the
U.K. deferred-(ax assels. 1t is not anticipated that the UK. tax liability will be offset by U.S. foreign tax
cljfe,dil's due'to the Company’s overall fb’rcign,lt)SS-pQSHiOﬂ-. Pirsvant to UK. tax law, nel operating losses
do not expire as fong as‘the trade or business that:generated the losses remains in existence..
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Thie income {ax provision differs from the amotnt of income tax determined by applying the U.S, federal
ficonie tax vate to income before income tax provision for the ycars ended December31, 2013, 2012 and
2011 due to'thie following (i thousands):

_ 2013 . 2012 2011
Con\pdled"‘@xpedtcd” taxprovision § 26,482 350% & 20,337 350% § 13420 . 35.0%
Increase {decreqsc) in ficairie tax

resulting from:
Nondeductiblgexpenses 1475 L9 (962) (%) 903 24
Section 199 bensfit {1;543) 2.0 (1,439) 2.5) {1;315) (3:4)
Slate income taxes 4,359 5.8 9,089 15.7 1,130 2:9
Relense of vucertain lax positions. (3,746} 5.0) —_ — — —_
Other 1,798 2.4 492 0.8) 657 L7
Income tax provision.  § 28,825 38.1% $§ 26,533 459% . § 14795 38.6%

Nondeduietible expenscs i 2012 include a deduction of $1.0' million for previously capitalized stock
issuance costs which became deductible upon the abandonuent ofthe Company’s TPO.

The effective tax rate for 2013 was 38.1% compared to 45.7% in 2012 and 38.6% in 2011, The effective

tax rate increased from 2011 1020 12 primarily due to increases in'unrecognized tax benefits related to state
tax filing positions. The effective tax rale decieased from 2012 to 2013 due-to {he-cuirent year recognition
of préviously unrecopnized state tak benefits, '

The, Company provides a valuation allowance against net deferred tax asscls if, based on management’s
assessnietil of historical -and. projected future operating results and other available evidencs, it is more
likely than ol that some or all of {he deferred tax assets will not be realized. Management believes it is
more likely thai not that the defeiied tax assels will be realized based upon expectations of Talure taxable
income, ’

In the current year, the Company released its valuation allowance-associated with its U.K. net defeired tax

assels. A reconciliation of the UK. valuation allowance for the years: cnded December 31, 2013,2012 and

2011 iy as follows (in thousands):

Changes o
} pccumnlated
Balaoce Yahintion {Crestited) © othe¥
beghiniug-of nlloyyance charged to comprehensive Balance eud
. yperfod wegulved fncome {loss) Income. Relenses ol peviod

Dectniber3l, 2013 & 64§ — % 6974y S “sé)y $ 1(5,481) —
Déccinber 31,2012 : 16,492 - (496) 945 e 16,94}
December 31,2011 1,125 6,093 2,17 103) — 16,492
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The yaluation allowance reflects UK. corporate income tax rate changes enacted in 2013 reducing the rate
from 24% to 23% from April 1,20 13 t6 March 31, 2014 and lo 21% beginning April 1, 2014 Thé cffectis
eredited to Tncome for the year ended December 31, 2013, '

A 1'ec,011¢i'l_ia.('it_j'11 of'the unrecopnized tax benefits for the years eided December 31,2013, 2012 and 2011 is
as. follows (in thousands):

Yenr euded Decentber 3L

] 003 02 !
Bal‘_ance'iat:_begfgning"of year 3 9,079 $ 1918 § 202
Aditions for current year fax positions 1,862 3,000 678
Additions for prior year tax poesitions 4l 5,157 1,038
Reductions for prior year lax positions (#,593) (996) —_
Reductions related to expirations of statute

of limitations (305) — —
Settlements — —_ —
Balance at ¢nd of year $ 608 % 9079 § 1918

It is reasonably possible that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits may decrease. by approximately
$0.3 million withiv the next twelve months due to expifing statutes of linitalion.

At December31, 2013 -and 2012; the Company had: $4.0 million and $5.6 millioii, respectively, of
unrccognized tax benefits, net of federal benefit that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate, The
Company had accrued fiiterest and penalties of $0.6' million -and $1.4 million related to-uncertain fax
positions at December 31, 2013 and 2012, Total interest and penalties decreased by $0.8 million duting,
2013 and increased by $1.2 million in 2012. '

The Company files a U,S. federal income fax return and lax retuins in various ;jm".i_s'dictions;finc]uding a
UK. inconie tax returi-for its UK. operations, The Company’s open tax-years are’2010 through2013.

On September 13, 2013, Treasury and the Internal Rovenue Service issued final regulations regarding, the
deduction. and capitalization of expenditures refated to tangible property, “The final régulations under.
Internal Revetiie Code Sections 162, 167 and 263(a) apply to umounts paid to acquire, produce, or
improve tangible properly as well as dispositions of such property aud are generally effective:for tax years
beginning on or after January 1, 2014, We have evaluated these regulations and determined they avill ot
“have'a material impact ow our consalidated results of operations, cash flows or finangtal position,
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Earnings Per Share

The follosing table sets forth thie computation of basic and diluted eatnings per share (in thousands; excepl
per share data): :

2013 2012 2011
Nlun(:x‘f;ﬁ'_(dlf":ﬁ - ' ‘ ,
Net income $ 46,838 $ 31,574 $ 23,548
Denonibiator: | '
Weighted average common shares
outstanding for basic earnings per v
share 22,642 22,509 18,230
Weighted average effect of diltive '
gectrities: _
‘Stock oplions gud resticted stock 97 . ‘ 237 _ 515
Denoimindtor for diluted o v
camings por share , 22,139 22,746 18,745
Basic and diluted eamiings per share: _
Basiceamings:per shave $ 2:07 $ 140 $ 1.29
Difuted earnings per share: $ 2.06 8 1,39 3 1,26

Stack options and restricted stock o purchase 46,188, 102,262 and 150,162 shares at Decanber 31, 2013,

2012 and 2011, respectively, wers outstanding but twere nol included in the computation of diluted

earnings per share as they were anti-dilutive wider ihe treasury stock method:
Coniibitiiients, Contingenicies and Guarantees:
Operafing Lenses

During 2008, the. Company entercd into four noncancelable operating lease agreements: office space for its
corporate headquarters for 5 years with two S year enewal options, as amended in 2009; office space for
its BTL headquarters:for 10 years with a break-up clabse after 5 years; office space for its New York office
for § ysars; and a US. disaster recovery space foi §'years, Tn comnection with these leases, thic Company
received reimbursement for leaschold improvemonts of §1.1 million. "This reimbursenient is a lease
incentive awliich hasbeen recognized as a Jiability and is being amortized ona straight-line basis over the
respective ledse terms as-a recuction in ocoupaicy 'e_xpm]s_tz-.;"_l‘he-‘l(_zas,ehold’ji‘mproven‘ten(s are included in

‘property and equipiment, net and are.being amortized over the shovter of the estimated useful life of the

hprovements anid the iespective lease temns, In June2012, BTL exércised the break-up clause with its
lease and moved ifs corporate office to the Chi-X Buiope facilities. '

In November 2012, the Company entered into a lease agreement with a data center provider for the
primary data.center in Stough, UK. ‘This lcase is for 41 months, In Deceinber 2011, the Comipany also

entered info nevy leasqagre.ém'el'ﬂ:&'with thie data center provider for the primary data centerin Weehawken,

New Jerscy and t}hclback—up data center site i ‘Chicago, 1linois, These leases are for 30 months and
34 mionths respectively. :
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[n ' Qcfober 2012 and amended in November 2013, the Company entered into o 10 year lease agreement for
office space in New York, with the one-time option (o.cancel the lease after-5 years.

Tn November 2013, the Company-extended ils lease al the U:S. disaster resoyery space foi an additional 5
years, i

In Decciber 2013, the Company entered into. new five-year lease agreements: with a new data center
provider in Secaucus, New Jersey.

Future auinital minimum lease commitments ymder these-operating leases as of December 31, 2013, are as.
followws:(in thousands):

2015 2,231
2016 2,120
2017 2,122
2018 - 1,930
Therealter 4,373

‘Tolal $ 15,891

Reil expense was $1.8 million, §2.3 millioh and’ $1.5 million, for the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, sespeclively, which is recorded in occupancy expense in the accompanying consolidated
statemerits of income. '

Legal Proceedings

From time o, tivie the Company is involved in-various legal proceedings avising in the. ordinary course of
businiess, The Company does not belisve that the outcome of any of the reviews, fispections or other legal
proceedings will have a material impact on the consolidated financial condition, -resulls of operations or
‘cash flows; however, liligation is subject to many uncertainties, and the outcome of individual Tiligated
‘matters is not predictable with assurance:

In complaints filed on July 22, 2009, May 11,:2010 and August 17, 2010 in the US: District Courl for the
Eistern District of Texas, Realtime Data, LLC dfb/a/ IXO (Realtime) claimed that the Company, along
with certaiin other financial fnstrument exchanges, investinent and comuiercial banking companies and
finangial data providers, infringed six Realtime patents by using, selling oi offering for sale findncial data
compression products or services. The complaint sought declaratory and injungtive velief or, in the
altornative, o coinpulsory ongoing licensing fee, as well as unspecified damages for past and futwe
inlringement, attorneys’ fees, costs aiid ‘expenses. The: allegations relate to data products for whigh: tho
Company does not directly charge any fees. Specifically, it is alleged that the Company violated several of
Redltime’s patents: {brough. its use of the FAST profocol as it. relates to BATS FAST PITCH, OPRA
instrumentalities, and SIAC instrimentalities. On Scpteniber 21, 2011, (he case was transferred to. the.
U.S. District Courl for the Southern District of Nesy York. The. Cowt issued a final.order dismissing (he:

case on November 9, 2012, Realtime’s appeal of the Counl’s decision (o dismiss the case has been fully
briefed aid oral arguments were held on Decombet 3, 2013, On January 27, 2014, the U.S, Courl of
Appeals for the Federal Circuit affirned the enlircty of the decision issued by the Cowmt, Outside counsel
has indicated that the likelihood that this case will be accepted for any Tuither review is extremely Jow. The
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Company believes these allegations are without inerit and fitends to vigorously defend this litigation, Al
this lime, the Campany belicyes an unfavorable oifcome is.not probable and is unable {o:estimate a range
of loss; if any, as the damages sought in the allegations have not been quimtified or substantiated. The
Company does not belicve losses, if any, would have a material cffect on its ‘restilts of operations ‘or
financial position taken as a wholc:. .

Tn a complaint filed on June 14, 2013 i the U.S, District Court for the Dislrict of Delaware, Relay IP; Inc.
(Relay 1P) claimed that the Company infringed a Relay 1P patent throngh the Company’s-distibution-of
data using & multicast routing method knowi as the Protocol Independent Muilticast-Sparse Mode standard,
also known as: the PIM-SM slandard, Relay IP' has also filed similar complaints against certain other
{inaireial insirument exchanges, finangial data providers;. telecommunications companies, and hardware
manufacturers, Cisco Systems, Inc.:(Cisco), a named defendant i a similar complaint and a manufacturer
of hardsvare on which the PIM:SM standard.is implemented, has filed a motion to intervene and stay in
which Cisco requests that the cout stay litigation Lietsveen its customers (which includes the Company)
and Relay IP i favor of anaction be(ween Cisco and Relay 12, Relay IP lias opposed this:niotion. Outside
counsel believes that there is a possibilily that the motion will be granied, but is not able to predict the
cout’s decision at this. time. Relay P's complaint against the Company seeks declaratory judgment,
unspecified damages; including: enhanced damages, costs; and pre--and post-judgment interest, and any
other relief deemied justand proper. Specifically, iLis atleged that the Company. violated a patent owned by
Relay IP through its usc of the PIM-SM standard as it relates lo the distibution of Multicast PITCH and -
BATS Multicist Latency Feed. The Company began charging fecs for Multicast PITCH on July 1,.2013,
and does not directly charge. any fees for BATS Multicast: Latency Teed. Whilé it is too early in the
litigafion to estimate any range of possible losses ot predict the outcome of the case, the Compauy believes
that it has not infringed-any valld patentand infends to vigorously defend this litigation.

T & complaint filed on Januaty 23, 2014 in the- U.S. Distriet Court for1he District of Kansas, Leveraged
Tinovations LLC (L) claimed that {he Company infringed several L1 patents by allowing the exchange of
shares of Jeveraged cxchange traded Tunds (Leveraged ETFs) through both BZX and BYX, L1 claiins to
owii several palents directed to compulerized methiods for creating and exchanging Leveraged BTFs, LI’s
complaint against the Company seeks declaratory judgient, damages (including royalties aud prejudgment
intercst), attorneys’ fees and costs, injunctive relief, and any other relief provided underthe law or deemed
just and proper by the cout, While it is too early in'the Jitigation to estimate any vange of possible losses or
predict the outcome of the case, the Company believes that it has nof infringed any valid patenitand infends
{o vigorously deferd this litigation.

As a self-regulatory organization under the jurisdiction ‘of the SEC, the Company is subject to youtine

roviews and. inspections by the SEC, and Trading s subject to reviews aud ‘inspections by the Financial
ndustry Regulatory Authority (FINRA).

It February 2012, the Company received @ written equest from the SEC’s Division of Enforcement
seeking documents and information related to the deyelopment, modification and use of order types, and
- the Company’s: conintunications with certain market participants (including ceitalh exchange: members
affiliated with ceriain’ of the Company’s stockholders and directorsy regaiding the development,
modification ‘and wse of order types;- the Company’s: information lechnology systems; and trading
strategies. The: -Company recelved a supplomental information request in Angust 2012 requesting
additional information regarding the Company’s corporate history, relationships with shareholders and
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members, and additional questions vegaiding the development of order types. The Company is cooperaling
with the staffand all requested information has been provided to date.

n addiiion; on Mm‘ch,%, 2012; an internal systems problem caused-a matehing engive failure on the BZX.
Excliangs that ultimately resulied in the:need for BATS Global Markets lo cancel its IPO. On March 28,
2012, lhe Conipany’s mavageinent met with :SEC Commissioners and staff in Wasliington, DC lo discuss
fhe inatter. Subsequent to that meeting, the Company was-informed by the SEC’s Divislan of Enforcement
that il was opening an investigation info the matter, As part of its investigation; the Company received 4
written information request from the SEC’s Division of Enforcement secking ‘documients related to 'the
1P0, which decunien(s have feen produced. The Company is cooperating with the staff, Ih addition, the
Roards of Dircetors of BATS Global Markets, BZX and BYX have conchided ai external review of the
events leading up' to the failed IPO. “The Company and the professionals retained by the Company to
conduct the review presented ‘the results of that review to SEC staff in November 2012, The SEC
subsequently schietluled testimony: with four Company executives for Febroary 2013, The Company
continues to cooperate with the SEC on this matter, The Company will defend itself vigorously: should the.
SEC staff recommend (hat an eitforcemeit action be instituted, or should {he: SEC delermine to institute
such action, -

Oiv April 10, 2012, members of the Company’s manageiment met wvith representatives fiom the SEC's
Division of Enforcement in Washington, DC to-discuss flie Company’s {rading systems and the manner in
which ordeis are processed and executed on our markets. The: meeting was a result of an open SEC
Enforcement investigation retated to high frequency trading. The Company {5 cooperating with-and has

provided various infoimation to the staffin connection with this investigation,

If the Company is found to be oul of compliance: with obligations under the federal securities laws, the
Compaty could be subject to judicial or administrative proceedings that may result in substantial penaltics.
Ay such. liability or penaltics could have a material adverse effect on'the Company’s business, At this
tim; the Company believes it is too early to determine the probability of assertion of a claiih -or the
probability of an unfivorable outcome if any claim is asserted ju connection with. the investigations
described above-and the Compiny is unable to estimate-a range-of loss, if any.

Grinranfees

The Company uses Wedbush Seeuwrilies and Morgan Stanley to clear ils routed cash equitics transactions.
Wedbush Seourities and Morgan Stanley guarantes the trade wntil one day after the {rade dale; alter whicly
time the Nalional Securities Clearing Corporation (NSCC) provides a guarantee. Tn the-case of'a failure to.
perform on the parf on one of its clearing firms, Wedbush Securities or Morgan Slanley, the Company
provides the guarantee to the counterparty to {he trade, The Options Clearing Corporalion (OCC) acls as a
cenfral counterparty on all transactions in listed equity options, and as such, puaranlees clearance and
sel_t_lep\en_i of all of the Company’s options transdctions. The Company believes that any potential
requirement for the Company {o make payments urider these guaraniees is remote and accordingly, lias not
recaided any liabilityin the consolidated financial statements for these guarantees. '
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21y Quarlerly Dafa (Unaudited) (in Thousands, except per share datn)

Year ended

Livst Second Thivd Tourth Peceniber3l;
quarier’ Gurieyr gquarler uarter 2043
Tolal revenue 3 218940 . & 230,468 & 195,036 S 197,051 § 841,496
Optraling expenses ) 22,196 21,774 25,027 26,056 95,053
Qperaling incore: 21,709 28,139 25,103 20225 101,778
et income o s 15995 S 12251 § 9928 " & §664 8 46,838
Bisic and-diluted camings yier
‘share} 5 _ .
Baste-camlings per share S 07l S 0.5¢  § 0l S 038 $ 2.07
Dilited camings per share $ 070 8§ 03t S [CT I 038 § 2.06
Year ended.
Tivst Seeond Thivd © Toiuth Dicember 344
quarler quarter quailer quarler 2012
Total revenic s 2u393 S WO § AT S 2912500 $ 384,704
‘Operating expenses 32,753 27,665 24,962 32,257 117,637
Operating income 10,924 ‘ 15478 - 18,927 13,987 59,316 A
Net incoims $ 7506 S 1013 8 11528 8 2367 8 31,574
Biisio and diluted earnings per
shard: } .
Basle eaiiings por.share -~ § 034 § 045 S 051 S S 14
Diltited carnings persharg 3 033§ 045 S 051 S S 9
Year eided
First Seeond Third Fourtly December 3,
auarler quarier quarter quarier 2011
Total revenns: $ 209228 '§ 200,836 § 281,951 '$ 234,618 § 926,629
Operating expenses 19,668 19,719 - 18539 3L 89,699
Opeiiting income 4,257 5,637 19,952 7.939 35,285
Net income I S Y N 2850 S 12005 $ 6012 § 23,548
Basic and diluted camings per
shae:, ‘ :
‘Dasic cantings pes -shiire S 015 8 S 067 3 031 % 129
Diluted eamings pet shate § 015 S § 0.65 8 030 § 1.26

(22) Subsequent Tvents

The Company has perforimed an evaluation of events that have occurted subsequent to December 31, 20 13
through Febinary 25, 2014 the date the consolidated finaicial statements were issued.

On Janvary 31, 2014, the Company completed the acquisition of 100% of the oulstanding common slock
of Direct Edge Holding LLC in exchaigs for 9.8 million shares of common stock of the Company,
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Upon coiisuinmation of the acquisition of Direct Edge Holding LLC, the Company also entered into (i) a
ferm loan agreément i Uhe amount of $470 nillion and (ii):revolving loans not to exceed $100 million.
The proceeds received from the term foan were used by the Company o finance the acquisition, repay the
debt outstanding at December 31, 2013, pay au extraordinary dividend {o shareholders, and other corporate
purposes. The term of the loanis six years ending on January 31, 2020 with variable inférest rate based-on
1-month LIBOR (with floor of 100 basis polnts) plus-a spread of 425 basis points (400 if leverage ratio
falls below 2.25). The- original issue discount was $1.2 million, ot approximately 0,25%. The: revolving
loans have an interest rate of 0.5% and o three-year lexi, onding onJanuary 31,2017, Principal payments
on outstanding balances are.made on a quarterly basis. In connection with paynient of the: debt outstanding
al Decernber 31,2013, the associated original issuance discount and debt issuance costs were extinguished
resulting in a loss of $13.8million..

There have been 1o other subsequent :events: that have ocewrred during such period that would require

disclosuie in the consolidated financial slatements or would be yequired to be recoguized in the
consolidated financidl statements as-of and for the year ended December 31, 2013,
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KPMG LLP

Suile 1000

41000 Walnul Street

Kansas Cily, MO 64106-2162

Independent Auditors’ Report on Supplementary Information

The Board of Directors
BATS Global Matkets, Inc.:

We have audited the-¢onsolidated {inancial statements of BATS Glabal Markets, Tne. and its. subsidiaries
(the Company) as of and for the yéar-ended December 31, 2013, and have issied oui report {hereon dated
February 25, 2014 which contained an ynmodified opinion on fhose consolidated financial statemenits, Our
audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolldated financial statements as a
whole, The consolidating financial statements.are presenied for the purposes of additional analysis and are
ot :a required part of the consolidated financial stalements: Such information is the respongibility of
management and was dérived from and relates divectly o (he underlying accounting and other recotds used
to. prepare the consolidated financial statements, The information has been subjected (o the. anditing
procedores applied in the audit-of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procédures,
including ‘comparing and reconciling such inférination directly to the underlying accounting and othet
records nsed to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procediwes in accordance with auditing standards generally accepled in
thie United ‘States of -America. In ‘our-opinton, the, infermation is. falily stated in all material vespeots in
relation 1o the consolidated financial statements as-a whole:

KPMes LEP

February 25,2014
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Direct Edge ECN LLC
d/b/a DE Route
Financial Statements and
Supplementary Schedules Pursuant to Rule '17a-5 .
Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

December 31, 2013
(Confidential treatment requested)



~ UNITEDSTATES : OMB APPROVAL

SECURITIESAND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OMBNumber: 32350123

Washington, D.C. 20549 ‘Explres: March31,2016
’ ) Estimated average burden .
ANNUAL AUDITED REPORT hours per response.. ..., 12.00
FO ;H:D%R)S}"I[EAHE | SEO FILE NUMBER.

' 18- LD
FACING PAGE

Information Required.of Brokers and Dealers Pursuant to Section 17 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 172-5 Thereunder

REPORT FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING____ew/01/2013 _____ AND ENDING 2/31lz013
; MM/DD/YY MM/DDIYY

A.REGISTRANT IDENTIFICATION

NAME OF BROKER-DEALER: : [ OFFICIAL USEONLY
ADDRESS OF PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS: (Do niot uise P.O. Box No.) " FIRM 1.D_NO.
545 Washinaion Bid. }
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cm®S & State) (Zip Code)

NAME-AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF PERSON TO CONTACT IN REGARD TO THIS REPORT
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(Arca Code ~ Telephone Nufiber)

B. ACCOUNTANT IDENTIFICATION

INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT whose opiniian is contained i this Report*

O0CS LLP :
(Namé = if individual, state last, first; middle name).

200 tadison Ade NuoMor . Wy 10017
{Address) (City) - (State). {Zip Code)
CHECK ONE: '

B Certified Public Accountant
. O Ppublic Accountant -

] :,_chdoun,tant' not kesident in Unjitj;d States or ‘any of its possessions.

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY

*Claims for exemption from the requirement-that.the annual report be covered by the opinion of an independent public accountant -
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OATH OR AFFIRMATION

I, Glen %d(ﬂ' h : .. swear (or affirm) that, to the best of’

iy knowlcdge and belief the accompanymg financial statement and supporting schedules pertaining to.the firm of
Dicees Fefoy ECN ELC c/n/a - DE Rous ; , a8

of 'ﬁg;m_mhu 3\ »20_ 12, aretrue and correct I further swear. (or affirm) that

neither the company norany partner, propnetor, princlpul officer or director has any proprietary initerest in any dccount
classified solely:as that of a customer, except as follows:

ROWENA B BASALATAN. - .
,M)' Commmslon Expires

)Q// oA

fignature

<X

Rowsme B. fpstlatn.

Notary Public -

This report ** contains (check all applicable boxes)::

B (a) Facing Page.

E {b). Statemen't of Financfal Condition,

& (d) Statemem of: Changes i Fmanclal Condition,

B () Statement of Changes in Stockholders® Equity or Partners’ or Sole Proprietors® Capital.

[} (f) Statement of Changes in Liabilities Stibordinated ta Claims of ‘Creditors.

B4 (g) Computation of Net Capital,

X' (h) Computation for Determination of Reserve Requirements Pursuant to Rule 15¢3-3,

a0 (i) Informatioh Relatlng to the Possession or Control Requirements Under Rule 15¢3-3,

[0 () AReconciliation,’ mclndmg appropriate explanation of the Coiputation of Net Capital Under Rule 15¢3-1 and the
‘Computation for Determination of the Reserve Requirements Unider Exhibit A of Rule 15¢3-3,

O (k) A Reconciliation between the audited and unaudited Statements of Finahcial Condition with respectio methods of
consolidation,

Bd (I) -AnOath or Affirmation;

CI (m)-A copy of the SIPC Suppleniental Repott.

(n) A report describing any material inadequacies found to-exist or found to have existed since the date of theprevious audit,

O

**JFor conditions of conﬁdential treatment of certain portions of this filig, see s‘ec,{:.qn 2401 7a~5(e)(3).
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Independent Auditor's Repott.

To the Member-of :
Direct Edge ECN'LLC (d/bfa DE Route):

We have alidited the accompanying financial statements of Direcl Edge ECN LLGC, (d/bfa DE Route) {*DE
Rotite"), which comprise the statement of financial condition as of December 31, 2013, and the related
statements-of operations, changes in member's equity and cash flows for the year then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation-of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes

the design, implernentation, and mainte‘nance‘of‘intemal control relevant to the preparation and falr

" presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
€ITor:

Auditor's Responsibllity

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we-plan.and perform the audit.to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement.of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making
those risk assessments, we-consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and falr
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that-are appropriate i the
circumstances, but not for the purpose-of expressing an opinionon the effectiveness of the Gompany's
internal control.. Accordingly, we express 10 stch opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness:of accounting policies-used-and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the.overall presentation of the financial statements. We
belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient:and appropriate to provide a basis for our
-atdit opinion. : T

Opinion

In-our opinion, the financial statements referred to.ahove present fairly; in all material respects, the
financial position of DE Route at December 31, 2013, -and the results of its operations and'ils cash flows

for the years then ended in accerdance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

’ PricewaterhouseCooper's LLP, PricewaterhouseCoopers Center, 300 Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10017
Tr:(646) 471 3000, F: (813) 286 6000, wWww.pwe.com/us ‘ v



pwe

Qther Matter

our audit-was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements faken as'a
whole. The Information contained in Supplementary Sthedules | and Il is presented for purpasas of
additional analysls and Is not a required part of the financial statements, but s supplementary information
required by Rule 17a-5. under the Securitles Exchange Act of 1934, The Information Is the responsibliity.
of management and was derived from and relates direclly to {he underlylng accouriting and other records
used to prepare the financlal statements. The Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied In the audit of the financial statements and certaln additional procedures, incliding comparing and
reconciling such Information directly to the underlylng-accounting and.other records used 1o prepare the
financial statements or to the finanglal siatements themselves and other additional procedures, in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America. In our'opinlon,
the information Is fairly stated, in all materlal respects, in relation to the-financial statements taken as &

whole:

February. 25, 2014



Direct Edge ECN LLC d/b/a DE Route
Statement of Financial Condition
December 31, 2013

Assets

‘Cash and cash equivalents : $ 5,886,103
Intercompany. receivable : 4,159,060
Other assets: : 263,034
Total assets : . $ 10,298,197
Liabiiities and Member's Equity
Liabilities
Payable to brokers and dealers $ 2,891,913
Intercompany. payable 253,628
Total liabllities _ : 3,145,541

‘Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 3)
‘Member's equity

“Total member's equity \ “ . 7,152,656
Total liabilities and member's equity - $ 10,298,197

“The accompanying notes are an integral part of these-financial statements.
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Direct Edge ECN LLC d/b/a DE Route
Statement of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Revenues:

-Commissions and fees ' $ 60,375,146

Other revenues: 8,851
Total revenues- . 60,383,997

Expénses

Execution, routing and clearance:fees 54,014,590

General, administrative and other 4,128,336
Total expenses : » - 58,142,926
Net income $ 2,241,071

The accompanying notes are-an integral part of these financial statements.

4



Direct Edge ECN LLC d/b/a DE Route
Statement of Changes in Member's Equity
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Member's
Equity
Balance, December 31, 2012 $ 12,911,585
Distribution to Parent - (8,000;000)
Net income o 2,241,071
Balahce, December 31, 2013 $ 7,152,666

The accompanying notes are an integral p.art of these financial statements,
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Direct Edge ECN LLC d/b/a DE Route
Statement of Cash Flows
Year En’d'e_d December 31,2013

Cash flows from operating activities ‘

Net Income: _ - ] $ 2,241,071

Adjustiments to reconcile net income to -
net cash provided by operating activities
(Inciease) decrease In operating assets

Intercompany recelvable 651,661
Other assets _ (253,034)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Payable to-brokers and dealers 407,758
Intercoimpany payable . (26,194)
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,021,262
Cash flows from financing activities
Distribution to Parent {8,000,000)
Net cash used in financing activities ~ (8,000,000)
Decrease in cash and cash eq‘ul_val"ents . ‘ (4',978_,738)'
Cash:and.cash equivalents
Beginning of year \ ' 10,864,841
End of year . _ $ 5,886,103

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financlal statements.

[



Direct Edge ECN LLC d/b/a DE Route

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2013

1.

Organization and Description of the Business

Direct Edge ECN, LLC d/b/a DE Route (the"Company"), a Delaware limited liability company,
operates-as a routing broker-dealer for its afflliate stock exchanges, EDGA Exchange Inc ("EDGA")
and EDGX Exchange Inc ("EDGX"), collectively the “Exchanges”, by sending orders to other

~ market centers for execution in accordance with the Exchanges’ member order instructions.and

requirements. The Company is registered as a broker-dealer with the Securities and Exchange
Commisslon ("SEC") and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA"),
Natjonal Stock Exchange, Chicago Stock Exchange, CBOE Stock Exchange, Nasday Stock

Market, New York Stock Exchange, EDGA-and EDGX, The Company's sole member is Direct

Edge Holdings, LLC (the "Parent”).

. On August 26, 2013; the Parent announced a definitive merger agreement with BATS Global
Markets. As a result of the merger, the former members of the Parent will own 30% of the
combined company to be created as aresult.of the merger. See Footnote 7, Subsequent Events,
for further information

Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates
The preparation of finahcial statements in conformity with generally-accepted accounting principles
in the United States of Ametica requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

-affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets.and

liabliitles at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the reporting period. Actual restilts could differ from those estimates.

Cash-and cash equivalents .

Cash and cash equivalents represent shart-term investments with-an original maturity of less than
90 days. The carrying amount of $3,697,370 approximates its fair value due fo the short-term
nature of these instruments:

Broker Dealer Activitles

The Company records revehue earned from the Exchanges for routing orders to other liquidity
destinations, and felated expenses, Including execution, clearance fees and activity remittance
fees, on a trade date basis. Any amount receivable at December 31,2013 is recorded as:
interconipany receivable. ‘ :

Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments '

Managemerit estimates that the falr value of financlal instruments recognized on the Statement of
Financial Condition (including recelvables and payables) approximates their carrying value, as-
such financial instruménts are short-term In nature, bear interest:at current market rates-or are:

“subject to frequent repricing.

General, administrative and other

included in general, administrative and other is a monthly charge by an affiliate of the Company,
Direct Edge Inc ("DEI"), for certain allocated expenses paid by DEI. These expenses include '
communications, data processing and depreclation which are allocated based on volume of
Iransactions. These expenses also include employee compensation and benefits, professional fees -
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and other expenses which are allocated based on expenses which specifically relate to the
Company.

Income Taxes

The Company does not provide for income taxes in the accompanying financial statements, Under
current federal, state and local tax laws, a limited liability company. with only:ane member is
disregarded as an entity separate from Its owner, unless an election has been made to classify the
entity as an association taxable as a corporation. As the Company has not made such an election,
the Company Is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner and Is not subject to federal,
state, or local Income taxes.

‘Commitments and Contingent Liabilitles

ASC 460-10, “Guarantees", requires the disclosure of the representations and warrantles that the
Cormpany enters into which may provide general indemnifications to others., The Company, In its
normal course of business, may. enter into legal.contracts that contain a variety of these
representations and warrantles which provide general indemnifications. The Company's maximum
exposure under these arrangements is unknown, as this would involve future claims that may be:
agalnst the Company that have not yet oceurred. However, based on its experience, the
Company's management éxpects the risk of foss to be remote. :

The Company, from time to time; may be subject to examinations and inquiries by various
regulatory and self-regulatory bodies. In the opinjon of management, based on consuitation with
legal counsel, any adverse outcome with regard-to these potentlal matters woulld not likely have a
material adverse effect.on the results of operations or the financial position of the Company.

Related Party Transactions

The Company holds an expense sharing agreement with DEI, where DE! charges the Company for
overhead expenses Including employee compensation and benefits, communication and data
procéssing, depreciation, professlonal fees, and other.

During 2013, these expenses amotinted to! -

‘Communications and data processing $ 2,950,626
Depreciation ., 644,211
Professional fees 306,252
Employee compensation and benefits 216,536
Other, ' _ - 10,711

$ - 4,128,336

" At December 31, 2013; the amount payable to DE! of $263,628 is Included within the intercompany
payable balance,

The Company _recé'ivesvrevenue-from EDGA and from EDGX for routing services performed on
behalf of EDGA and EDGX, respectively, based upon such routing and clearing fees. In additlon,
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the Company Is also required to pay route fees to EDGA for orders received from EDGX and
routad to EDGA and required to pay route fees to EDGX for orders received from EDGA and
routed to EDGX. During 2013, commissions and fees earned for routing services performed on
behalf of EDGA and EDGX amounted to $33,261,720 and $16,051,452, respectively. During 20183,
route fees accrued or paid to EDGA and EDGX anjourited to $728,311 and $11,678,164,
respectively. In addition, the Company has $8,230,487 of activity remittance fees earned from the
Exchanges included in commissions and fees on the Statement of Qperations. At December 31,
2013, $4,158,060 is receivable by the Company from EDGA and EDGX for routing services, route
fees and activity remittance fees and Is Included in intercompany receivable on the Statement of
Financlal Condition.

The Company routes transactions to three member affillates, These affiliates gzit‘he‘r,reb_’ate or
charge fees to the Company for these transactions. During 2013, tranisaction fees paid or acorued
amounted to $184,528 and rebates recelved or accrued amounted to $1,180,022.

5, Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company clears all of its securities transactions through a clearing broker.on a fully.disclosed
basis, Accordingly, substantially-all of the Gompany's credit exposures are concentrated with the.
clearing broker and the Exchanges. Additionally, pursuant to the terms and conditions between the
Company and the clearing broker, the clearing broker has theright to charge the Company for
Josses that result from-a counterparty’s fallure to fulfill its obligations. The Company has the-abllity
to pursue collection from or performance of the counterparty. The Company’s policy is to monitor
the credit standing of the clearing broker and all counterparties with which it conducts business.

As the right fo charge the Company has no maximum:amount and applies to all trades executed
through the clearing broker, the Company believes there Is no maximum amount assignable to this
right. At December 31, 2013, the Company has recorded no liabilities with regard to the right.

The Company maintains its cash and cash equlvalents in financial institutions, which at times, may
exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not'experienced any losses in such accounts.

6.  Net Capltal Requirement

As a registered broker-dealer and a FINRA member firm, the Company Is subject to the SEC's
Uniform Net Capital Rule (the "Rule") which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital. The
Company has elected to use the baslc method, permitted by the Rule, which requires-that the
Company maintain net capital equal to the greater of $100,000 or 6 2/3% of aggregate
indebtedness, as defined.

At December 31, 2013, the Company had net capital of $2,740,562 which was $2,630,859 In
excess of its required net capital of $209,703.
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7.

Fair Value:Assets and Llabilitles

Fair Value Measurement—Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The authoritative guidance araund fair value establishes a framework for
measuring falr value that includes a hierarchy used to classify the inputs used In measuring fair
value. The hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques into three levels. The level in the
fair value hierarchy within which the falr value measurement falls is determined based on the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The levels of the fair value

hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1—Fair value is based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible to
the Company for identical agsets or liabilities. These generally provide the most reliable evidence

and are used to measure fair value whenever available, Active markets are defined as having the
following characteristics for the measured asset/liability: (i) many transactions; (i) current prices,
(i) price quotes not varying substantially among market makers, (lv) narrow bidlask spreads.and

(v) most information publicly-available.

Level 2—Fair valuie Is based on significant Inpuits, other than Level 1 inputs, that are observable for

the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability
through corroboration with observable market data. Level 2 inputs include quoted market prices in

active markets for similar assets and liabilities, quoted market prices In markets that are not active
for identical or similar-assets or liabilities; and other market observable inputs.

{evel 3—Fair value'is based on at least.one or more significant unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability. The inputs reflect the Company's assumptions about the inputs market participants
would use In pricing an asset or llability..

The Company did not have any assets or liabilitles carried at falr value; however, it is required by
US GAAP to disclose the falr value of certain financial instruments that are not carried at fair value,
For the following financial instruments the carrying amount equals or approximates fair value: cash
and cash equivalents, intercompany receivable and payable and payable to brokers and dealers:

The Company's Level 1 financial instrurnents represent cash and cash equivalents.

‘The Corpany’s remaining financial instruments would be characterized as Level 2.

Subsequent Events

The Company has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through February 25,2014,
which is the date the Financial Statements were issued and identified the following matter. On
January-31, 2014, as discussed in Footnote 1, the Parent received approval from the Securities
and Exchange Commission and completed the merger with BATS Global Markets.
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Computation for Net Capital Under SEC Rule 15¢3-1

December 31, 2013

Supplementary Schedule 1

Computation of Net Capital
Total member’s equity

‘Nonallowable assets and deductions and charges

Nonallowable-assets
intercompany receivable
Other assets

Tentative net capltal

Net capital -
Computation of basic het capital requirement

Aggregate Indebtedness
‘Payable to brokers and dealers.
Intercompany payable:

Total aggregate indebtedness

Net capltal requirement.
{the greater of $100,000 or 6:2/3% of
aggregate indebtedness)

Excess net capital

Percentage of aggregate indebtedness to net capital

1

$ 7,152,656

4,169,080
253,034

2,740,562

$ 2,740,562

= ———————

"$ 2,891,913
253,628

$ 3,145,541

$ 209,703
$ 2,530,858
114.78%

ORISR



Direct Edge ECN LLC d/b/a DE Route
Computation for Determination of
Reserve Requirements Under SEC Rule 15¢3-3
December 31, 2013 ‘ Supplementary Schedule |l

The Company has claimed exemption from SEC Rule 16¢3-3 under paragraph (k)(2)(ii) of that Rule.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of
Direct Edge Holdings LLC.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Direct Edge Holdings
LLC, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial condition as of December 31, 2013,
and the related consolidated statement of operations, consolidated changes in members”equity
and cash flows for the year then ended. - )

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the: preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
fnancial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally.accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that aie
fiee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an-opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Thosé standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are fre¢ from material
misstatément: :

An:audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the.consolidated
Financial statements, whether due to fraud or error:. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in.order to design audit procedures that are apptopriate in the
circumstances, but'not for the purpose:of expréssing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, we.express no such opinion. An auditalso includes'
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates' made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the.
consolidated financial statements, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to-above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Direct Edge Holdings LLC at December 31, 2013, and

the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Psiswrithone Cooporns LEP

- March 17, 2014

Pr‘iqm_u_atezﬁllatweCOOpers"I,LP, PricewaterhouseCoopers ' Center, 300 Madisont:Avenué, New York, NY 10017
1% (646) 471 3000, F: (813) 286 6000, wiwiv,pe.com/us



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of. Fihancial Condition
December 31, 2013

(Dollars in thousands)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Recelvables frorh brokers, dealers and cleanng organizations

F|xed assets, at cost, less accumulated depreciation and-amortization of $31, 253

Goodwnl
Deferred tax asset
Intanglble assets
Other assets
“Total assets
Liabilities.and Members" Equity
Liabilities-
Payable to brokers and dealers
Rebates payable
Activity remittarice fees payable
Loan§ payable
Accruéd coinpensation
Acctued expenses and other liabilities

Total l,nablhtxes
Commitments and contingerit liabilities (Note'6)
Members' equity

Totdl members' equity

Total liabilities and members"equity

$

$

$

77,700
48,485
14,264
34,783
36,546

1,139

31655

216,672

2,892
12,954
35,151
6,000
10,472
7,013

74,482

142,090
216,672

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2013

(Dolfars in thousands)
Reventes
Commissions and fees § 557,425
Market data 61,877
Connedtivity and member fees 25,951
- Other revenues ‘ 40
Total revenues $ 636,293
Expenses
Rebates _ 368,108
‘Execution, routing-and clearance fees : 157,705
Communications-and data processing. 26,334
Employee compensation and benefits 31,799
Depreciation and amortization 6,861
Professional fees . 15,067
Other. 4,887
Total éxpenses $ 608,761
Net incomie before taxes $ 26,532
Income téaxes 11,712
Net Income $ 14,820

The ‘accompanying notes are an infegral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Members' Equnty
Year Ended December 31, 2013

(Délla‘rs in thousands)

Balance, December:31, 2012 (as reported) $ 127,621
Adjustment to Members' Equity, January. 1, 2012 (see note 9) {1,859)
Balance, January 1, 2012 (as revsed) : & 125,762
Additional paid in capital - stock options 1,508
Net income 14,820 -
Balance, Deéember 31,2013 $ 142,090

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2013

(Dollars in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income % 14,820
Adjustments {o reconcile net income:to
net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization _ 6,861
"Deferred tax.asset : 3,207
Stock Option amortization 1,508-
(Increase) decrease in operating assets
‘Receivable from:brokers, dealéers-and clearing organizations , (1,760)
Other assets o . 3,05
Increase (dedrease) in operating liabilities:
Rebates payable (634)
Accrued cormpensation , 3,837
Payable to brokers ‘and dealers 408
Activity remittarice fees’ payabie {724)
Accrued expenses.and other liabilities 3,445
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 33913
Cash flows from Investing dctivities _
Purchases of fixed-assets: _ (9,231)
Net cashi uséd in‘investing activities $ {6,231}
Cash flows from financing-activities: ,
Loan payable : {19,000)
Net-cash used infinancing activities ‘ $ (19,000
Increase in.cash and.cash equivatents $ 5,682
:Cash and cash equivalents ‘ _ -
‘Beginning.of year $ 72,018
~ End of year . $: 77,700

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

Gash payments for income taxes, net of refunds, were $2.3 million and for interest was $325 thousand for
the vear ended December 31, 2013, :

The accompanying notes are an infeg_ral part of the consolidated financial statements,

5



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes.to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

1, Organization"a’n:d Description of the Business

Direct Edge Holdings LLC, (the “Company"), a Delaware limited liability company, is the parent
comipany of two wholly owned operating subsidiaries, Direct Edge ECN, LLC, dib/a DE Route
{'DER") and Direct Edge Inc ('DEI"). The Company has no business operations beyond its stalus
as a holding company.

DEI is the parent company ‘of two wholly owned subsidiaries, EDGA Exchange Iric (“EDGA") and
EDGX Exchange Inc ("EDGX’), collectively the “Exchanges”. EDGA and EDGX independently
operate as national sectirities exchanges. DE!'s operations are limited to facilitating connectivity
and metnber services to both EDGA and EDGX.

DER operates as a routing broker-dealer for the Exchanges, by sending orders to other market
centers for execution in accordance with the Exéhanges” member order instructions and
requirements. DER is registered as a broker-dealer with the Secutities and Exchange Commission
(*SEC"):and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authorily (‘FINRA"), National Stock
Exchange, Chicago Stock Exchange, CBOE Stock Exchange, Nasdaq Stock Market, New York
Stock Exchange; EDGA-and EDGX.

On Aligust 26, 2013, the Company announced a definitive merger agreement with BATS Global,
Markets. As a result of the.merger, the former members of the Company will own 30% of the
combined company to be-created as a result of the merger. See.Footnote 1 4. Subsequent Events,
for further information. ‘

2, Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates _ » »

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
-affect thé reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosiire of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the finantcial statements:and the reported amounts of revenues and
.expenses. during the reporting petiod. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents _

" Cash and cash equivalents represent short-term investments with an original maturity of less than
90 days and cash.. The carrying amount of such: cash equivalents approximates their fair value due
to the short-term nature of these instruments.. A$ of December 31, 2013 the balance principally
consist of short term investinents and cash held of $75.5 million.

Broker Dealer and Exchange Activities

Cormissions and fées-earned and related expenses, including execufion and clearance fees and
rebates are recorded on a‘trade date-basis. Fees include commissions and fees earned.and trade
expenses incurred by DER and the Exchanges. The Company pays Section 31 fees to the '
Securities and Exchange Commission for supervision and regulation of securities markets. This
regulatory sales fes is inturnicharged to the members of the Exchanges. Any amount receivable
at'December 31, 2013 is recorded as aclivity remittance fee receivable.

Market Data Revenue .

As members of the:Consolidated Tape Association and the Unlisted Trading Privileges.plan, the
Company earns market data revenue for displaying its quotes and teporting its trades. Revenue is
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based on the Company's quiote and trade reporting activity. Revenue is recorded for the period
transaction data is provided on an accrual basis!

Estimated Fair Value-of Financial Instruments _
Management estimates that the fair value of financial instruments recognized on the cansolidated
Statement of Financial Condition (including receivables, payables and accrued expenses)
approximates their carrying value, as such financial instruments are short-term in nature, bear
interest at current market rates or are- subject to frequent repricing.

Depreciation and Amortization
Furniture and fixtures, computer hardware, software, equipment and intangible assets areé being
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives: L.easehold improvemenits are
“amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the lease or the estimated useful lives of
the improvements. In-accordance with the provisions of subtopic 350 of the:FASB Accouinting
Standards Codification for intangibles-Goodwill and other ("ASC 350"), the Company capitalizes
certain costs. associated with the development of internal use software at the point at which the-
conceptual formulation, design and testing of possible software project alternatives have been
completed.. The Company capitalizes eniployee: compensation and related benefits incurred from
the commencement of the preliminary software project stage. Once the product is ready for its
intended use, such costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over three years, The Company.
reviews the amounts capitalized for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be recoverable.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company applies the provisions of ASC 360, which requires that goodwill and intangible
assets with an indefinite useful fife no longer-ba amortized, but instead, be tested for impairment
annually orwhen an event occurs of circumstances change that signify the existence of
impairment,

Incomeé Taxes

The Company is a Limited Liability Company, and-as such, does not file consolidated federal
income tax returns. The Company pays state income taxes in select states where business
activities require such payments.

DEl Is established as acorporation and files a corisolidated federal income tax return. For state
and local income tax returns, DE follows state guidelines, filing either a consolidated return, or
filing separateé returns for DEI -and each of its subsidiaries.

Defetred tax assets arid liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to:
differences between the DEI consolidated financial statement carrying amounts:of existing assets
and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or setfled. Valuation allowances-are established when
necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to an amount that, in the opinion of management, is more
likely than not reafizable. C

The Company has adepted guidance on accounting for uncertainty.in income taxes. This guidance
" describes how tincertain tax positions should be recognized, measured, preserited and disclosed in
the consolidated finaricial stateinents to detérmine whether the tax positions meéet the “more-likely-
than-not” criteria to be sustained by'the applicable tax authority. Tax benefits related to positions
that da riot meet the “more-likely-than-not" thireshald would hot be reécognized in ihe current year.
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The Company policy is to accrue interest and penalties associated with unrecognizable tax benefits
in income tax expense in the Statement of Operations, and the corrésponding liability in income
 taxes payable or income taxes receivable, net in the Statement of Financial Condition..

Stock-Based Compensation

Employees.of the Company participate in a stock.option plan (the "Stock Plan’). The purpose of
the Stock Plan is to provide long-term incentivé compensation, in the form of the Company's stock-
related awards, to employees. '

Stock-based compensation is measured based on the grant date fair value of the awards. These
costs are amortized over.a period of § years.

Certain employees of the Company also participate in.a phantom stock unit plan ¢PSUP™. The
PSUP was created fo provide a long term incentive to-employees who started at an-early stage of
the'Compariy. No grants have been made under this plan since June; 2010. Terms of the PSUP
are such that payment for units-granted occurs only upon a change in control, as defined by the
plan. Given ihe contingent nature of the PSUP, expense related to the setllement of units will be
recorded only upon'a change in control.

In 2011 and 2042, subsequent and related to two extraordinary distributions to members, the
‘Company established Restricted Cash Awards for PSUP unit holders under the terms and.
conditions of the Restricted Cash Award Agreements. Such awards established deferred cash
payment to be paid to each PSUP unit holder pursuant to the terms and conditions-of the
Reslricted Cash Award Agreements.

3. Receivables from Brokers, Dealers and Clearing Organizations:

Receivable from brokers, dealers and clearing organizations primarily represents net commissions
of $21.8 millioh, market data receivables of $12.6 million, regulatory sales fee receivable of $10.4
milllion, and-connectivity and member fees receivable of $3.6 million.

4, Goodwill and Intangible Assets

At December31, 2013, the Company had goodwill of $34.8 million. Goodwill of $11.0 million
resited from the purchase of DER by its initial investor and $23.8 million resuited from the
purchase of the ISE an December-23, 2008.

At Deceinbir31,-2013; the Compariy had intangible assets.with definitive lives-of $1.1 million, net
of $336 theusand of amortization. The net intangible assels resulted from the purchase of
memberships to the Consolidated Tape Association and Unlisted Trading Privileges plan,

Under ASC 350, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested forimpairment, at a
minimum, on an.annual basis, or when an event occurs or circumstances change that signify the
existence of impairment. During 2013, the Company tested the goodwill and intangible assets. for
impairmenit based on its assessment of fair value of the reporting uriit in comparison to its book
value and concluded that there was no impairment.
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5. Fixed Assets

(Dollars in thousands)
Fixed assets comprise the following:

Computer soliware _ $ 22,0999
Complter hardware 13,423
Equipment 1,397
Leasehold improvements ' 6,255
Fumniture and fixtures 1,443
$ 45517
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (31,253)
Tota fixed assets $ 14,264

6. Commifments:and Contingent Liabilities

The Company-and its subsidiaries, from time to time, may be subject to examinations and iriquiries.
by various regulatory and self-regulatory bodies. In'the opinion of management, based on
consultation with legal counsel, any adverse outcome with regard to these potential matters would
not likely have a material adverse effect on the fesults of operations or the financial positioh of the
‘Company. '
DEl has-an obligation under a sublease agreement for office space with Knight:Capital Group
("KCG") extended to 2021 with cértain rental increases included within the agreement. Aggregate
annual rent for office space at December 31,2013 s listed below: ’

(Dollars. in thousands)

2014 6 1,078
2015 , : 1,078
2016 1,097
2017 1,197
2018 ' 1,191
2019 and later years 2,681
$ 8,216

Occupancy expense for 2013 was $1.3 million and is included in other expenses on the-Statement
of Operations.



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

The Company has an obligation under a lease agreement for certain hardware extended to 2013.
Aggregate annual lease expense for the hardware at December 31, 2013 is listed below:

{(Dollars in thousands) '

2014 3 5,279
2015 3,409
2016 2,089
2017 849

$ 11,419

Expenses relating to lease agreements for hardware for 2013 were $6.0 million and mcluded within
communication and data processing on the Statement of Operations:

7. Loans and Credit

Ir December 2012, DE! entered into a credit agreement with the Bank of Montreal. The agreement
provides DEI a revolving. credit line of up {0 $50.0 million until December 7, 2015, the date of
termination. The Companyis a guarantor of this. agreement Terms include the ability for DEI to
choose amongst interest rate options, which each have varying repayment and other terms. In
addition to the interest asséssed on the borrewed amount, an additional fee will be asséssed on
the unused portion-of the $50.0 million available as well as a non- -refundable upfront fee of 0.5% on
the amount of Commiitment atthe closing date, iegardless of whether any-credit is tse. Underthe
conditions of thie-agreement, the Company must maintain a léverage ratio-of under2:1 and a fixed
charge covered ratio of at least 1.3:1. During 2013, interest expense related to the revolver,
included in the other expense line on the Statement of Operations, was $355 thousand and is
contained in the other expense line on the Statement of Operations. At December 31, 2013; the
Company had $6 0 million in loans outstanding, the leverage ratio was..2:1 and the fixed charge
ratio was'3:1.

8: Employee Benefit _Pl,ans

Employees of DEl are ellgnble to participate in a 401(k) profit sharing plan (the;"Plan”). In.July of
2009, the Compay became its sole admifiistrator. Under the terms of the Plan, the Company Is
réquired to make contributions to the Plan equal to 100% of the contributions made by each
partlcupant up to certain limits. For 2013, the tolal expense recognized by the Company and
included in Employee compensation and benefits on the Statément of Operations with respect to
the Plan was approximately $752 thousand.

[n August 2010, the Compary created a-Slock Option Plan, in which employees receive stock units
as a portion of their total compensation. . Awards vest, with certain reslrictions on exercisability,
over the:earlier of three years or upon a change in control. Subject to vesling, awards are
exercisable on the earliest of a change in control, an IPO or five years from the grant date. Awards
are no longer exercisable ten years from the grant dale, and are canceled if employment is
terminated before the end of the relevant vesting period,

The Colipany méasurés compensation cost related to the option awards based on the esfimated
fair value of the:Company at the date of grant and utilizing assumpuons suich as the risk free tate
and expected life of the optior of 6:75 years to determine:the grant price per option: For. 2013, the
total expense recognized by the Company and included in Employee compensation and benefits .
on the Statement of Operations with.respect to the Stock Option Plan was $1.5 million. The
following table suminarizes share activity during 2013:
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Weighted
Average Grant
_No..of Options. Date Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2012 485,365 § 16:73
Granted. ‘- -
Exercised. _ - .
Surrendered {9,941) 17.14
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 475424 $ 16.72

There is $2.8 million of unamortized compensation related to the unvested awards outstanding at
December 31, 2013, The cost of these unvested awards is expected to be recognized over the.
‘weighted average remaining life-of 1.8 years.

9.  ‘Income Taxes
The Company is a multiple-member limited habthty company that is {reated as a partnership for
federal income tax purposes and, accordingly, is not subject to federal and state corporate income
taxes. Thedomestic. corporate subsidiaries of the Company, DEI and the Exchanges, are subject
to federal, state and local incomie taxes and will be included in the filing of-a consolidated federal
income tax.return with combined and separate state andlocal income tax returns being filed,
The'Company's provision forincome taxes consists of the-following:

(Dollars inthousands)

Current

Federal $ 50947
State - 2,468
Total Current Tax: $ 8415
Deferred

Federal $ 2670
State: 827
Total Deferred Tax “$ 3,297
Provision for Income Tax: $ 71z

The difference between the Company's consdlidated effective tax rate of 44% and the U.S. federal
stalutory tax rate of 35% is primarily due to state and local income taxes net of federal benefit, non-
deductible-transactions costs and income earned.at the partnership level that is not subject to
income tax. '

DEI has an effective tax rate of 49% and DEH, including DER, has an effective tax rate of 0%.
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10.

The Company's deferred fax assets/(liabilities) included in Deferred tax assets on the Statement of
Financial Condition are as fallows:

(Dollars in thousands)
Deférred Tax Asséts :
Goodwill $ 39,014

Stock:Compensation 2,224
Other 1,377
Total Deferred Tax Assets § 42615

Deferred Tax:Lisbilities

Goodwill $ (2569
Internally developed software {1,628)
Fiked Assets {1,872)
Total Deferred Tax Liabijities $ (6,069
Net Deferred Tax Asset $ 36,546

Based .on its recent history of cumulative earnings, the Company believes that its net deferred tax
assels are more likely than not realizable and accordingly has not recorded a‘valuation: allowance.
During 2013, the Company revised the members’ equity beginning balance to properly reflect the
deferred tax balance related to fixed assets: This error was not material to previously issued.
finaricial statements.

As for Jiabilities for unceriain tax posmons the Company had no liabilities at the beginning of 2013
and.no liabilities for uncertain tax liabilities at year-end. The Company and its supsidiaries file
ncome tax réturns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state }urlsdlctxons “The Company has.
.open tax yearsfor U.S. federal income tax and various state filings for calendar {ax years ending
12010 and forward, DEl s currently iinder exairiination by the:New York Stale tax authorities for
their corporale iax returns for the years ended 2010 through 2012.

Related Party Transactions

On-July 23, 2007, the Company entered into a Transition Services Agreement (‘TSA”") with KCG.
Undet the terms of the agreement, KCG would provide certain technological and administrative
services, in addition to facility overhead, to the Company as it transitioned from a wholly-owned
subsidiary to a majority-owned subsidiary, The contract remained in effect as the Cempany
transitioned from a majority-owned subsidiary to an indeperident company. In.2013, expense
related to the TSA amounted-to $204 thousand which is included In the reevant line items on the

consolidated Slatement of Operations. |h addition to'the TSA, the Company holds a sublease

agreement for office space with Knight Equity Markets, an affiliate of KCG; ‘which amotinted to $1.1
millior during % 2013 and is included within other expenses on the consolidated Statement of
Operations,

Prior to the iverger with the ISE LLC, the Company- eftered into a “Regulatory. Services

Agreement " Theagreement commenced with the close of the acquisition of the ISE by the
Company and was terminated in‘August 2013, Under the terms of the agreement, the ISE'LLC
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11.

woulld provide certain regulatory oversight services to the ISE Stock. Exchange. In November
2010, the Company entered into a "Mutual Services Agreement,” under which the ISE and the
Company charge each other for mutually-provided technological services. During 2013, expense
rélated to the Regulatory Services agreement.and Mutual'Services Agreement was: $521 thousand,
and $1.7 million respectively. The Company charged the ISE $650 thousand in relation to the

Mutual Services Agreement.

During 2013, three members of the Company were also members of the Exchanges. During 2013;
commissions earned, net of rebates paid or accrued to those members, amounted to. $28.9 million

‘and membershxp and connectivity fees-amounted to $5.0 million..

The Company routes transactions to three member affiliates. These affiliates either rebate or-
charge fees to the Company for these transactions. During 2013 rebates received or accrued, net
of transaction fees paid or accrued amounted to $989° lhousand

ijancuat;lnstruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Concentrations of Crédit Risk

DER clears all of its securities transactions through a clearing broker on a fully disclosed basis.

‘Accordlngly, substantially-all of DER's-credit exposures are concentrated with the clearing broker

and the Exchangés. Additionially, pursuant to the tefms and conditions between DER and the
clearing broker, ttie ¢learing broker has theiright to charge DER for losses that result froma
counterparty's failure to fulfill its obligations: DER:hasthe ability o pursue collection from or
performance. of the counterparty. DER's policy is to monitor the credit. standmg of the clearing
broker and all counterparties with which it conducts business.

As the right to charge DER has no maximum ameunt and applies to all trades executed through the:
clearing broker, the Company believes there is'no maximum amount assignable o this right. At
December 31, 2018, the Company has recorded no liabilities with regard to the right.

The Company maintains its-cash and cash equivalents in financial institutions, which'at times, may
exceed federally insured limits. The Coripany has not experienced any-losses in such accounts.
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Fair Value Assets and Liabilities

Fair Value Measurement—Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset,
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The authoritative guidance arcund fair value establishes aframework for
measuting fair value thal includes a higrarchy used to classify the inputs used in measuring fair
value: The hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques into three levels: The level in the
fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement falls is determined based on the
lowest level input:that is:significant to the fair value measurement. The levels of the fair value
hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1—Fairvalue is based an unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible to
the Company for identical assets or liabilities. These generally provide the most reliable evidence
and are Used {o measure fair value whengver-available. Active markets are defined as-having the
following charatteristics for the measured asset/liability: (i) many transactions, (i current prices,
(iii} price quotes not varying substantially among market makers; (iv) harréw bid/ask spreads and
(v) most iivformation publicly available.

Level 2—Fair value is based on significant inputs, .other than Level 1 inputs, that are observable for
theasset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability
through corroboration with observable market data. Level 2 inputs iriclude quoted market prices in
active markets for similar assets and liabilities, quoted market prices in markets that are not-active
for identical o siniilar assets or liabifities, and other market observable inputs, ’

Level 3—Fair valiie 5 based on atleast one of more significant unobservable inptits for the asset

-or ligbility; The inputs reflect the: Company's:assumptions-about the inputs market participants

would use In.pricing an asset or liability.

The Gompany did not have any assets or liabilities. carried at fair value; however, it is required by
US GAAP to disclose the fair value:of certain financial instrumerits that are not carrfed at fair value.
For the following financial instruments the carrying-amount equals or approximates fair value: cash.
and cash equivalents, receivable and payable to brokers and dealers, rebates payable, activity
remiltance fees payable, accrued compensation expenses and other liabilities.and long-term debt.
The Company's Level 1 financial instruments represent cash and cash-equivalents.

The Compariy's remaining financial instruments would be characterized as Level 2.
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14.

Net Capital Requiremerits'

DER is a-member of FINRA and'is subject to the Uniform Net Capital Rule ("Rule 18¢3-1") of the
SEC, which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital, as defined, equal to the greater of
$100, 000 or 6 2/3% of aggregate indebtedness, as defined. At December 31, 2013, Direct Edge
had net capltal of $2.7 million which was $2.5 million in excess of the amount required of $210
thousand. The percentage of aggregate indebtedness to net capntat was 114.78%.

DER is exempt from'the SEC Rule 15¢3-3 under Paragraph (k)(2)(n) because all transactions are
cleared through another broker-dealer on a‘fully disclosed basis: »

Subsequent Events

The Company has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through March 17, 2014, which .
is the date the consolidated Financial Statements were issued and identified the following matters,
On.January 31, 2014 the Company received approval from the Securities and Exchange
Commission and completed the merger with BATS Global Markets, As a restilt of ihe transaction,
all sutstanding options granted under the Stock Plan, all units granted under the PSUP and all
restricted cash awards associated with the PSUP were fully-vested and exercised. The expense
associated with the-exercising of the Stock Plan options, the PSUP units and the restricted cash
awards was $2:8 million, $20.2 million and $2.9 million, respectively. Additionally, the credit
agreement with the Bank of Montreal, see footnote 7; was terminated.

15



SO/ IZV'S0)  ESPOS'PEC'60L  9S°9LL'[8L'90L  EYSSR'EE0'TOL  STL/G'YOC'66  OL'SPO'0T0'96  06'L90'89L'€6  0U'SSE'SZOT6  1E'898L0LZ6  01'90L'/96'Z6  2LL90'996'68  vO'F99'L80'Z8  LS'OTL'IYY'Z6  SIOPIOWIO0)S pue SIRNiGer] oL
OL'I8L'SERN8  LCBOSPYE'PE  LYET6'E9LT8  LLS69'SETI8  €8TLLGTLGL  0UBLCYOELL  6CL9CSEOL. SOOTLULV'SL  I9SYSPISPL  VCORE'WOS'EL  TIVIS'ELLTL  SLGTVVE'LL  ¥T0.6'126'6S Ainb3 s1opjoy20)s 2oL
1906611502 2960L'9EE'ST  99°620'848°1T  IT96L'6LS'0T  STELETSO6L  SOGL'SEKZL  ¥RIIELSE'SL  1S°028'0L2'SL  TL'6YO'9ET'PL  9L'OZ0'6SS'Sl  Z0'G/9'269'TL  8L'0ET00ZTTL  69°0L0°90E'H sBujuse3 paujeloy
SS'96L'EZ1'19  GS'668'S00'L9  SS°668'$88'09  SSE68'SOL09  SS668'SYO'09  SS'E68'STS'09  SS668'SGE'09  SS668'S9T09  STG6Y'SEL09  §9669'S00'09  SS668'G/8'6S  STE6Q'SHL'ES  S5668'SI9eY leyded-ut-pred [euonippy
Aynb3 s1apjoyyools
6,065 I6V'ET  91°566'688'VC  SLIYZ'EC0'PZ  99'68L'8vL'0Z  SY¥0L'9.S'61 05°92£'990'8 1 15°08L'v)8'SL yoseg'svlLl po6lE'eEE'gL 6L'6LL'200'6) OL'EBY'T6L LY LEYES'SEL'SE LT951'612°28 sanNqgen fejo)
L6°LET'SBY'LL 9VSOT'MS'8L  SVVZ'R00'8L  6L°Z99'TEL'PL STSOCYYS'EL  €0H0E'8S0'TH 15°0€5'€08'8 8Z0£0'vEL'S $9'61€'€E8'L 61'614'205'9 01'€61°269'Y 1€'¥ES'SEY'T LTOSLBILL J18yIQ pue uogesusdwo) paniosy
00°000'000'9 00°000'000'9 00'000'000'9 00°000°000°'9 00'000'000°9 00°000'000'9 00°000°000'8 00°000'000'2 00°000'00S'0  00°000°00S'Z}  00°00000S'ZL  00°000'00S'Z)  00°000°000°'ST ajqehed sueo]
26°25€'9 00°054'8L 00°000's} rms'sL weLL'v 1v'T20'8 00°052°L} 92'509'71 a|qehed sajeqay
092 suoneziueBiQ Bupes|o pue ‘sisjeaq 'siavolg o) sjqeded
E5) [ery
Anb3 s1epjoyyo0ls pue sepyiqer]
SOLIEIZV'SO)  ESPOSPET'E0L  9G'9LL'/8/'90L  E£V'SSS'SE0'TOL  STLLE'YOT'E6  OL'SHO'0S0'96  06'190'89L'E6  09°'SSE'SZO'T6  1€'898'L0/'Z6  01'90L'L9S'T6 2L L90'996'68  vO'F99'L80'/8  IS'9ZL'IY9'T6 Sj1essy 0L
09'GEE'8VE'S LY 6EY'S6E'E 61°022'65€'C 8L°02v'812'S 28°€SLILY ZLZ0v'EsY'Y 18°€06'S8E'Y $0°180'HVL'Y 947069'952'2 yTeSY0L0'E 86'SY1'290'C 18'20€'20%'E LIS LYES siassy YO
98'gL¥'L 59°'888'0 12°086's zTest's L9909 19'181's8 ZLvLL'SE £9'£10's6 19'109'€8 29°252'¢6 S6'405'16 zE1TY' 18 €E°121'18 (Red)o9y xe) sundy
00°IZ8'SHS'9E  00°OVL'L0L'LY  OO'OPZ'LOL'LY  00'SPL'LOL'My  OO'SPLIOZ'Ly  00'SYL'LOLLY  00'SPZ'LOLLY  0O9RL'IOL'LY  QO'ORLLOLLY  QU'SKLIOL'LY 00902\ 00'SPLIOLLY  QUSRL'LOL'LY jossy xe] pausjsg
£Y'ETL 088's 20'60€'02'9 0v'p2L'9e6'9 8L¥62'92E’L 8TESL'LY L ¥S'0¥8'€S6'01 TYSYYLSH'9 $6°0£9'965'6 01'8/Z'eec'sl SEPPE'09L'TE 0Z06Z'SYE'9 FLYEO'TVTLL 06°182'798°'8 (Red)pay Auedwodssu)
18'629'8E1'L 08'128'spL’} £L°€90°551°Y 99'55Z'€9)’} 65 LPV 1LY ZS'6E9BLI'L st1eg'L8t') 8£°€20'961 '} LE'SIZYOT 1 yZTI04'212'L 21°665°022' 1 01'16L'822'L €0'€86'982' 4 ie|nwinaoy sso7 *sjessy eiqibueiul
66'102°C56'0L  66°107'€S6'0L  66'L0Z'ES6'0L  B6L0Z'ESE'0L  667L0T'ES6'0L  B6'MOZESE'0L  667I0Z'ESE'0L  BO'LOTESE'0L  667MOT'ES6'0L  66'L0T'ESE'0L  6610TES8'0L  667L0T'ESE'0L  667L0T'ESE'0L  HOWY PAJEINWNIDY SSOT IWPO0D
9LIES'YOTYL  STOZL'OLE'YL  €1T16S'088'EL  BL'TES'HZ'TL  9O'LSCUT6TL  SLEYS'SES'TL  OVISE'STY'LL  09'280°00SLL  SLLZTOZYLL  PE'820'69S'HL  8SI9S'6LLL  LE'PSE'S9S'LL  £67/96°S6/°'1)  01dwi| ployasesT pue Sjassy paxid
1§'86€°STS'E TE'B0B'EPLE 15'208'290'S 99°€SH'022'S 86°118'TZH'T 6E'EP0'62T'E 89'8€9'¥H0'E 06'£28'129'2 EL0LE'EL9T £€°010'¥61°S ¥SBSHIEL'E 18'$SE'065'C 15'8L9'81€T IqeAI898Y S99 PUE SUOISSIUUIOD
£9'G90'PE'6ZS MVBLYIPILCS  O9'SKBIEL'STS  9LATS'0T90TS  LV'QIL'EIE VIS TGSHL'008°0LS  [6°/88'6I8'CIS  L1'p09'89L'0LS  02'9€5'ZTe'es 8.192'c19'88 LE'8ST'086' LIS 06°SS8'00E' VS SOPPBTYETIS Sslusjeanb3 yse9 pue ysey
sjassy
€L0Z '19qwia08q  £L0T JSqWBAON  €L0T 1eqOj0Q €107 Jequisides €10z ysnny €102 "Anp £102Z ‘aunp €102 ‘Ao €102 ‘judy €10Z 'yosen €i0z ‘Alenuqeg €102 ‘Alenuer  ZLQZ ‘fequisdeg

£402 *1€ 10quI509Q BUIPUZ SUUOW SAIL B} 104

ou| efpa 103110



£V'€T1'086'S 20'60€'042'9 OF'¥2L'986'e 8L¥62'92¢'L 8Z'€SL'919°LL $5°0v8'€56'01 T8'5va'Lsy's $6°029'965'8 oreLzeee'el S6'PYE09LTL 02°06Z'SYE'9 PLYEOTHE L 06°182'298'8 (Red)/osy Auedwoosaju)  jejoL

(00°+90°29) (00°060'2¥9) (eg6e£'822) (1v'eeg'zel) (00'950'09) LTLIE'S (00'659'28) (oveLv's) {(00'ov¥'ee) 1OH 30 - Auedwoaielu] 00-000-L0YL
11°958'2£8'C 19°188'999'c 2'106'558'E SL°016'700'Y $£'158°050'8 92'962'00¥'2 88°SL9'9VP'E Z5°145'8€9'E ZL1S1'692'6 26'6¥2 LIV’ 65'85'922'¢ £60LE'BLL'S STZYE'8ER'Y X9a3 Auedwodseiu] 00-000-¥0v4
26°€0L'556'C 14°826'228'T 28'$26'200'C 18°26LS1'E £1°082'992'€ SL'L¥8'L0Z'E 62'281°504'2 0£'882'699'S 80°LEV'9ET'S 18°€60'0F'S 96'£2€'65L'2 1€'610'829'C 6T LSy LLLE voa3 Auedwooisju 00-000-€071
00'829'€52 00'685'S6€ z9'1E9'15e £9'¥80°€5E 18'6L1'25€ 06'$8E'2YE S9°248'66Z EL0LL'OVE 90'891'5€€ 2T°100'6€E $9'€02'65€ 05°80L'78¢ 9¢°228'642 10y 3@ - Auedwioaseju] 00-000-00¥4
((Red)oey Auedwoalajup

18'BLY'SEL'L 08'1L8'9VL'L €L°€90'SSL'L 99'55Z'e9L’l 8SLPYLLLL 25'6€9'8L)'L Sv'I€8L8L'L 8E'€T0'961'} IE'SITYOT'Y YTLOV'UTL 41°665°022'L o1'162'92T'L £0'€86'952'} 1y ss97 ‘sjassy aiqibuelu]  1ejoL

002.9'v0L 00229'v02 00'229'%0L 00229'90L 00'2L9'v0L 00°229'¥0L 00'229'0L 00°2£9'%02 00'2/9'%0L 00'229'v0L 00'29'%0L 00'229'¥0L 00°229'v0L '9Q32 -19ssY 2(qiBueju) 00-000-1294
(r'805'091) (09'c65'951) (o2'229'25H) (z6'c9s'syt) {80°6v8'vr1) (v ye6'ovL) (ov'610'2€1} (9s'voi'sen) (zz'681'624) (g prE's2L) (vo09g'121) (ozsvy'zLL) (geoes'ebL) J3 Jlowy paje[nundoy 00-006-9E9L
eist'y (089269} (8e°z08'9) (957229'9) {rsesr'e) @1'6.2'9) rvol's 82'0£6'S) (98'552's) (v°185'S) zo'20v's) (09ze2's) (81'850'S) J3 powy paje|nwnady 00-000-5E91
00'ZL9'v0L 00°2L9'v0L 00'229'F0L 00'229'70L 00'229'70L 00°Z£9'%0L Q0°229'%0L 00'229'v02 00'2L9'¥0L 00'ZL9'70L 00°2L9'¥0L 00'229'¥0L 00°Z29'%0L '9Q3 ~1985Y 3

00°S6€’1E 00'S6€"1E 00°S6€°1E 00's6¢'LE 00's6e'LE 00'S6€°1E Q0's6e’Le 00'S6E'1E 00'S6€'LE 00°S6€° 1€ 00°S6€"LE 00°S6€°1€ 00'S68' 1S ‘03 -19s8Y 3|

(rv'805°091) (09'c65'951) (02'829'251) {ze'ca'syl) (80°6¥8'¥¥1) T yes'ori) {oy'610'281) {9g'yoL'set) (z1'681'621) (88'y22'S2L) (v0°09¢'121) ©z'syy'2LL) (gc'0es'eLy) J3 Howy paje|nwnody 00-000-9291
(€or02'2) ozeis'd ugsee'n vszev') GL26v6'9) (89'19L'9) (sovL5'9) (zz'98c'e) (6£'861'9} {95°010'9) (eLzea's) (06'veg's) o Lvy's) 3 - Howy pAIe|NWNIoY G0-000-5294
00°018'€E 00'018'cE 00°018'€E 00'018'cE 00°018'€E 00°018'cE 00'0K8'EE 00'018'¢E 00°048'cE 00'018'ce 00°018'€E 00°018'€€ 00°018'€e '0Q3 -19ssy 3|qiBuelu} 00-000-0Z94

:uojeziuowy pajenunooy ssa" ‘sjassy ajqibueju)

66'102'¢56°0L 66°L0Z'€S6'0L 66102'€56'0L 86'102'€56'01 66°102'¢56°01 66°102'€56'0} 661026560} 66°L02'€56'01 66'102'€56'01 66'102'€56'0L 68°10Z'€56'0L 66°102'£56°01 66°102'€56'01 SJE[RWNITY SS9 IMPO0D  |ejoL

86°1L0Z'¢56'0L 66°102'€56'01 66°102'€56°01 66°102'€56'01 66°102'€S6°0L 66°102'€56'0L 66°L02'€56'01 66°10Z'€56'01 66°102'€56°01L 66'102'¢56'04 66102'€56'01 66°102'€S6'01 66°102'¢56°014 [1#p00S 00-000-009L
VP v $§97 "[|WpooD

9L'LEE YT €T0ZL'9LE'DL €17165'088'€) 81ZES'PZY'EL 99'18£'226'21 SLEVB'EES'TL ov'I8E'eTY 1} 09'280'00S" 4 SKIR'6TY'L) $6°820'695" 11 851958211 1E'¥S8'G95' L1 £6'296'S6L'L) oyaseat pue S)ossy paxid  |Ej0L

19'16%'068'C £9TLE'ETL'T 85268'820'C LWSYY'ETs't 22680'228' 2L'680'LL8'L 20'6€0'228'L zL6£0'228') 2L°5E0'LL8'L 2USE0'LL8'L 2L680'228') TUSE0'LL8'L U580 228') siempieH J5jusdEIEQ 00-000-10SL
(16'606'959'0))  (0L'086°259'01)  (bS'16TZLY0L)  (OVpov'08z'0l)  (Shees'Z60'0L)  (0's0c'0L6's)  (Rosee'ees's)  (99€leevs'e)  (69'629'toc’e)  (opisosi'e)  (¥8'060'000°6)  (S6°'0ZL'9v88)  (22'6L2'0L9'8)  'Aeq Ajlewssiul - ideQyy 00-000-L5S)
(22'v00'062) (esi6v'2L0) (ze'¥21'952) {06°562'989) Qrovevig) (16°608'559) (9275£0'0v9) (59'268'#29) (69°€9'019) {56°126'965) (81°922'¢85) (¢9'516'695) (Lrzes'sss) pue aimuing - 1daQ/v 00-000-95S+
(lzesr'oeze)  (rrzicosr’s)  (@oosseor'e)  (90£99'210°€)  (b£260'992'Q0  (19'SpL'069')  (S€'6.2'2197)  (16°82L'1ss)  (eg'yyv'zay'e)  (6e7186'91y'd)  (Ovispise'?)  (01'02€'2620)  (c0'e8g’gze’e)  lwi ploysses - ideQyy 00-000-SSS)
(ev'zeT'9sh) (8Z°165'261) (90°€25'384) {e0°915'¥81) {zgzes'18t) (se'8L8'821) Qzsieen) (oe212'891) (€£250'c91) (92v50'851) (1ez9s'esy) (sg'229'6v1) (be2L8'51) b3 suoydals] - 1daQ/y 00-000+SSH
{ee'9LL'v26) (1L2021'126) (9€'189'216) 02°5L0'916) (85°241'916) {zezis'zie) (92'9.€'116) (o2/182'016) (0z'gy)'606) (0zZ'150°806) (¢1°298'668) (11'€15'268) {co6ve'veg) inb3 ysompaN - 1deq/v 00-000-€551
(6oc0z'ost')  8118's80') SLeiiel)  (seueTete'd) (eLTus'ess’s)  (see0seels’d) (11oezers'9) (2T060'€99'9)  (1eess'so9'd) (0ziov'ess'd)  (geosL'osy'd)  (GLyOETiMY'9)  (Li'see'ese'd) aiemyos - 1dsQ@/y 00-000-2SSH
©Uere'ose’t)  (e'oss'ere’t)  (12002'226'1)  (S6'E0E€e6’L) (S PS0'869'l) (S wso'ses’y)  (Svso'sss’t)  (Lsvso'seg’l)  (sps0'868'l)  (ops0'ess’l)  (Sps0'8es’t)  (/5pS0'968°))  (02'860°968°1)  2H Jsjuadeeq - 1dsQuy 00-000-1SSE
(vezos'szl'e)  (25°655'088's) (T vLeorg'd)  RSveZ'u'e)  (86'992°083'S)  (LO'L69TLEY)  (SL9ZOLLL'Y)  (8veSe'seSy)  Lbesyour't)  (borseovedy)  (GLHELroy)  (ho'y80's88'S)  (81°6£9'002'C) siempieH - 1deQ/y 00-000-0SS ¢

(g0'ces'0L) 120 180 180 180 180 180 180 (6168 Buues|Q jessy paxid 00-000-6¥S1
0472511291 OTOVE'S6E'PL  6LL08'POVPL  6TYSTIEE'EL  ZUVI0'08L'EL  OSHZI'SSS'EL  ETPEZOCE’EL  OF'ELL'FOO'EL  OV'BER'6S8'TL  OV'€9S'SSO'TL  SUELG'EZPTL  ELSZL'EEETE  OVSELTYOTL 1S padojens( Ajeulsiul 00-000-L0St
LSSPY'pRY'L 1S'v08'P6E"} 1S'Y08'¥6E'L 15°908°V6E" L ¥5'886'68€"L SE2Z0'LLE'L 66'9€1'99¢"} SL8IT'6YT'L 19'250'8b2'} SLLIS'OVE'L 12°0/9'SY2'L 120L9'6¥T L 1Z029'SY2'L SaIMXI4 PUE INjWINg 00-000-90SH
$8'295'¥52'9 95 IS¥'81Z'9 LG9 81°L¥1'0.8'S 9I'SIV'ELI'S SZ°096'¥6¥'S 69612'8L2'S 66'208'192'S £g'c16'88l's Y L6€'8LL'S 2V LBE'BLL'S Tr's98'ziL's ZrisL'zil's JowsAoidw| poyasea 00-000-5051
95°502'99¢ 9'50£'99¢ zT801'sse SLPIZ'Y0E SIPIZHOE SLYIZ'0e SLPIT'Y0E SIYIZHOE SKYIZ'YOE 18'629'v9C 20°02¢'€52 20°02€'€5e zeI8LLLL iuawdinb3 auouds|a) 00-000-#0S1
£6'966'620'} £6'968'620' £6'968'620'1 £6'988°620'} £6'96€'SE0'} £9°966'LV6 £5°966'L¥6 £4'966'£96 £4'966'L¥6 £5'616'L06 15'618'£06 15'616'206 15°616°208 Juswdinb3 YIMIaN 00-000-€0SH
09'150'82€'8 09'150'9.2€'8 19'EY6'S52'8 19°EY6'SST'8 19EV8'S52'8 L9°EY6'SST'e SL'958'€19'L S2'958'S1L9'L SE'ZVE'E09'L S6'226'89%'L YL9LY'SYY'L PLOLY LEY'L vLOLY LEV'L 21eMy0S 00-000-20SH
9L'E9E'ZES'0L  LOIGO'EIS'OL  9T'BIG'CEY'OL  9TYEE'ILVOL  TIOVT'IGL'S 60°Z)5'€EL'? SL'L9L'691'8 S1'829'6€1'8 61'858'9£0'2 8L'792'8L6'L LY'TES'TYY'L £0'IEL'08Y 2 $8'895"LSY'L asempiet 00-000-005 4

uogey: J SS9 o } Pjoys 1 PUB S}assy paxi4

16'€6E'62S°E TE'B0B'EVL'E 15'208'290'¢ 99°€SP'0Z2'E 86°418'TeK' 6€°€H0'622'C 89°8E9'PP0'E 06°226'119'C €L0LE'E19T €€010'¥6L'S yS'65L'LEL'E 18'9SE065'2 15'819'8I€'T 03] 589 pue SUOISSIIWOD  [B10L

(1L858'Y) (127858'Y) (12°959'y) (L2°gs8't) (62'858'%) Buuesjd SUOISSIWOD 00-000-€ 10
98'ESH'6Y 92265'6Y 92°265'6¥ 92°265'6p {5z 20%) 1SvL8'E 1S'pL8'e 15'pL8'E 15°v.8'e (¥8'266'sD) 69°0LT'LE 1SvL8'¢ 15'p28'E BAI208) SNOBUE|[ISIN 00-000-6611
00°008'8Z ThvoL ov'89¢e'19 LLS18'98 €2°085'29¢ €L1PL' 16T £LTL'61L £L'06V'9Y1 £1°065'29 90°LYEH0Z 90°556' L1 £1°065'29 92°08€'sE} O7T1 351 Woy} 3nQ 00-000-05 1+

SY'EPE'S8S'E 89'SSE'168'S 29'€8'6LE'E sLzIL'osy's SY'LS6'T6ET 10°€51'22T'E 25°EE1'201'E 6€'589'242'T 19'120'€LL'T PL'8LE'LIT'E S¥'180°18L'E 06'0/8'228'2 08'902'S25'T s904 AIAosuUU0D - Y 00-000-+¥4i
(eg'coz'get) (65'¥Sy°'L92) Uy'evs'Len) (98'999'9¥2) {56'892'2€E) (98'sz1'882) (€1'zz} 182} €1eei'ese) p'egz'oze) (eez6e'2LL) (56'282'¥22) (co'zz1'e62) (sZve'1ve) n0Q 10} 90ueMOj|Y - ¥Y 00-000-0€1L

S39 pUe SUOISSIUWOD

£9'590'79€'62 WWBLVIPY'LT  08'SP'IEL'ST  9VIZS'029'0C  ZL9LL'E9E'FL  2SSvL'006'0L 18'1€6'616'CL LI'p09'691°0L 02'9£5'226'¢ 6L192'C19'8 1£'852'086'LL 06°558'00E'Y SOPPE'ZYE'TE  qusjeAnb3 yseD pueysed  jejoL

£8'990'595 81°80L'¥9Z 04°902'96C 60'309'262 9/°596'262 0'8zl'e6Z S8'611'€6C 1¥'9S¥'E6T 69°029'S62 62'582'¢62 €4°510'v62 €0¥es'ZI0L LE'6LL'SSL HoAed WP - YSeD 00-006-€001
08'966'86.°8C £6°044'958'/2 0L'6£9'SEH'SZ L0°612'22€'02 1°0S£°020'v) 21°210°209'0L Z1218'929'cl 0L'L¥1'9.8'6 15'516'829° 05'9Lv'61E'8 85'Z¥C'989'1 1 L9'19z'e8e'e YL¥Z8'L95' 1L Bugesado Wdr - YseDd 00-000-2001
00°s unoooy Bunesado Wdr 13G 00-000-1001

sjusjeanb3 yseo pue yse

sjessy

€102 4eqwseQ  £10Z J3QWOAON €102 1940180 €102 Jequisldes €102 ‘Isnlny €102 ‘Ainp €102 ‘ounp €102 ‘Ao €102 ‘udy €102 ‘yore €10z ‘Aeugay €102 ‘Aienuer 210z 19qWia9sQ

£102 '€ 10GWwe3aq BuIPUT SUIUOI SAIML A} 104

ou| aBp3 paiq



6F'065'L6Y'EC  91'GS6'689'V2  SLIPZ'EZO'VZ  09'68L'SPI'0T  SYYOL'9S'SL  0S'92€'990°8L  LS08L'VLS'OL  pSSE9'SPL'LL  pO'BLE'CEC'SL  62'64L'200'6L  OL'EBY'ZEL'LL  LEPES'GEL'SE  LTOSL'6LL'ZE saniKer [ej0L
16°2€2'S8V'LL  94'S0Z'LI8'8L  SL'LbT'R00'8L  BLL99'ZEL'ML  STSOE'WSS'SL  €0'POE'8S0'CL  1S°0€5'€08'8 8Z'0£0'vEL'S Y9'61€'€68'L 64°612'205'9 01'€84'269'y 1E1E5'5E9'T LT9SV'6LLL Jue uoResusdo panIody  [ejoL
20°05Z'+ (o0 'S1049T SL'0 zz'o) ez o) 810 610 610 1n030y Buues| |joxhed 00-000-10¥T
86'666'L¥S 0€'428'LS 29'8v8'c0} ¥6'2LL'SSE 12'8£0'90Z 90'218'€52 S6'792'20€ 8'5TT'€SE €1°966'66€ 1ZVS5'Shy Sh'ses'esy 19°LL8'THS £0°005'88S 4 Aiagosuuog paualaq 00-000-0SS
1¥°00€'€9¢ sasuadx3 eyaq pelold Paniody 00-000-ZLSZ
00°6£'628 00°000'$09 00°9¥8'98L 00°'9¥8'20L 00°662'209 05°8¥5'0v8 05'52€'259 §2°612'285 00'801'258 §2T18'6L6 S1°166'¥¥9 SLYYZ'869 05756022 o4 AiojejnBay paniooy 00-000-41ST
20'02€'8L¥'E 9L°651'86€'9 OLHOL'OS'S 91°891'758'C S§'91220L'T S§LZV'TYSL $5'908'028 SSYTL'ves't SS'SYTvL8 $6'668'02 (s+'288'€69) (6£60¥'¥18'Y)  (62852'€99'D) asuadx3 Xe | parnIody 00-000-01SZ
98'YLL18S 99°218'085 99°0¥0'085 92'802'6.4S 98'99€'8L5 98'625'245 98'269'9LS 98'658'6/S 98'810'S.S 98'181#45 98 PYE'ELS 99°L05'2LS 98°029'LLS 3suadx3 Jusy paLajRa 00-000-60SC
(8529599 (¥c'568'y9) (r2°969'98) {oe'ers'sg) (0g'261'69) (so'815's2) {ov'09e'sD) 01856'2L2) (88'v25'06) {ez0L¢'98) (s1'608'e) ¥6°699'/¢ 89'929'0C 3iqeked xe s3jes 00-000-80ST
19'8£0'6Y 8€°089'969 15°851°090°} EEET0'0PY'L 6€'8ES'SLY ) 2y'zLL'08 VL2 PLL 19'892'08 08'86€'89 SH¥S9'vL 11862601 06'PL6' 1LY 2T LI9'6LY 5094 [2Ba7 paniasy 00-000-20S2
29'96.°089 LeeLne 00°00¢'¥S0'} SE'Ly0'0r8 YE'66E'IVL Z67¥S'029'L S6'GSE'S8L £1'126'vE8 11°620'624 0S8y LIL'L 08'€Y€'€S0'L #1'81.2'¥89 96'869'720'} wwoy eleq panIcdY 60-000-9052
SE08T'ELE TE0V8'E0L 62°00¥'¥6 92°096'¥8 €2'025'SL 02'080'99 ZV0v9'es #1°002'2¥ 11°09L'LE 80°02€'8T (0'0VH'6) (10°0) o0 suadx3 asea panIvay 00-000-505C
BL2is'ye) (66'5£2'02) (86'510'2) (66'510'0) 100 Uy panIaoy 00-000-¥0SZ
05°L09'9 ez'Ie so'ezy s9'ZZy sozey WBILY 0} 3|qeAed 00-000-£052
T9TVS'TL 89°L16'094 02°€€0'524 99°'€16'c8 91 LZ¥'L9 69'98¢'€01 8L'EIS'P8 8€'060'8E 0£'09'062 6€°191'€92 ¥1'p6P'ELT $9'206'612 19°0v5'09 1suadx3 panisoy 15410 00-006-20SZ
9L'92e"LIe L6'789'6SY 16'V06'ZLE 00°02}'99% SE'0¥E'886 69'6€6'649 99'9€2'2€2 9¢'eTY'esh 1'998'90¥ $2'90%'08¢ §1'LE2'05S SE'BITGIY 06'S€2'2SE XEL PUE JIPNY PANIOOY 00-000-10SZ
15'261'59 01'996'2 - 99'99€'8Z 99'99¢'8Z 90°LSE'SLE 99'99€'87 3jqeAed sjuncody 00-000-0052
99'651'89V'0L  Sc'OvY'B0L'e SE'0¥Y'662'8 POEIS 129'L $0'€15'128'9 $0°€15'900'9 $O'€1S'S9Z'S YO'ELS'OSY'Y PO'ELS'ESS'E 0ZT2ye'L1L'T 0TZHe'ehL't 0Z'ZP8'0eL £0°000°2€8'9 1enso9y snuog 00-000-50¥2
(o'orr'ey) (8e'¢h9've) Ueere's2) (2€'900'£2) (ev°520'0¢) (61°208'92) (1woze'zh) (€z'508'9) 611LL'5) (89'290'5) (es'e9L'h) : VS 00-000-+0¥2
0z'0 (19°0) Gtg'0) (09°0) 41 or'o junosoy Buea)d 321 00-000-204Z
95'628'Z 86’1 81°L81'e wLy16s) Lvey's) (172058 ¥0'218 (98°289) (g6°286°1) 62'88S'9 LLSLE'S 1T966'E 22°082°C wadx3 |jo1hed pan1voy 00-006-00¥C
:595Uadx3 PANIOOY JAYIQ pue uonesusdwo paniody
00°000°000'9 00°000'000°9 00'000°000'9 00'000°000'9 00'000'000'9 0070000009 00°000'000'8 00'000°000°'8 00'000'005'0}  00°000'00S°'Z+  00°000'00S'ZL  00°000'00§'ZL  00°000'000'6Z s|qeded sueo]  [ejor
00°000°000°9 00°000'000°9 00'000'000°9 00'000000'9 00°000'000°9 00°000'000°9 00°000°000'8 00°000'000'8 00'000'00S'04  00000'005'ZL  00'000°00S'ZL  00°000'00§'ZL  00°000°000'SZ sjqeAed sueo 00-000-05€2
:3|qeAed sueo
zg'zse'e 0005281 00°000°S}+ 1'ZeS'sL LTIl 'zee'e 00°052'14 9T'S09'rL sjqefed sejleqey  |ejoL
z5'TseE'9 00°052'24 00°000'SH Prgsacy-1 W 14'220'8 00°0S2'LE 92'S09'7L sjqeded $912qay 00-000-0012
_m_nm>ml sajeqay
092 suopezueBIQ Buues|) pue ‘sisjesq ‘s1X0Ig 0} 3[qeded  |ejoL
0492 $833 3Jn0Y PaNIdY 00-000-002Z
:suoneziueBiQ Buues|) pue ‘sisjeaq ‘s1syoig o} 3jqeded
sanlqen
Anb3 s1epjoyyo0lg pue sagyiqer]
SO'LLE'LCL'SOL  €SVSS'VET'60L  9§°9LL'/8/'90L  £H'S9S'CEO'TOL  9TLIS'VOC'66  OL'SYO'0S0'96  06'190'89L'€6  09'GSE'SZIT6  1€'898'20LT6  0L'90L°L9S'Z6  2LL90°996'68  $0'499°180°.8  1G'OTLI¥Y'ZE sjessy [gjoL
09'SEE'8YE'S LY'6EY'E6E'E 6.'022'65€'S 8L02¥'812'E 18ESLIPLY zLTov'esy'y 18°€05°S8E'Y $O'180'LYL'Y 92'069'952'2 yTISH'0.0'e 86'S¥2'290'E 18'€08'20F'E R SlessSY JYI0  [eloL
99'185'9E€ £9'682'04€ 00'868°€0Y 9¥'296'6 $8'9/8'LY yTSI8'EL €9°126'G0L 20'896'2€1 17'796'69}1 08°096'102 61°156'€€2 85°€56'692 16°6V6'L62 soueinsu| pledald 00-000-10€1
0Z'096'2L 0209624 0209821 0Z'096'Z4 0Z'096'2L 02°096'24 0Z°098'CL 02'096°7) 0Z'096'Ch 02'096'ZL diyssequuajy 3Bueyox3 00-000-40E1
00°000°02 00'000'02 00°000'0Z 00°000°0Z 00°000'0Z 00°000'0Z 00°000'02 00°000'02 00°0000Z 00'000'02 spsodag 00-000-€0€
$8'€52'LL0'E 85°661'¢20'e 61°22€'556'2 2V8Ly'sLL'e 28918'990'7 8T Lo¥'oLEY 86°125'9¥2 Y 28°ZSH'0LS'Y $1'992'€50'2 ¥Z'1€5'6£8'2 65'828'56.'2 60°06€'801L'E ¥S'Ir2'910'e sasuadx3 pledaid 00-000-00€}
IS|8ssY BUI0
98'8LY'L 59'888'9 12°086's TESH'S PLY0'9 29°182'S6 2LhL1'S6 £9°£10'SE 29°109'c6 z9ese'ce S6'P0S'16 zE'1TY'16 EEHLL18 (Reg)osy xel waung  [ejoL
98'8L¥'L $9'288'9 12°086's 2TESH'S $2990°9 19'182'S6 ZLYIL'GE £9°210'S8 19'109'€6 29'252'c6 S6°40S'L6 ZE1TH'L6 €E1L1'18 20} Xel se[es N Z3N 00-000-205k
(Aed)fosy xe} auny
00'129'SPS'SE  00'9V'IOL'Ly  O0'SVZ'LOL'My  O0'OPL'MOL'My  OO'SYL'LOL'Yy  QO'SPL'LOLLY  QO'SPZLOL'LY  00SKL'LOL'Me  QO'OPL'IOLLY  00'9VLIOL'LY  00°9VILOL'LY QO'OPL'IOL'LY  O0'OYL'LOLLY j9SSY Xe| pauejeq  [ejoL
00'bZ8'SKS'9E  00°9PL'LOL'LY  00'SPL'IOL'LY  OO'SKA'LOL'LY  QUOPL'LOLLY  O0'9P2I0LLY  00°9vL'IOL'LY  00'9FZ'LOLMY  QUSPL'LOL'VY 00'9VL'LOL'LW 00'SPL'LOL'LY  QO'OPL'IOL'LY  00'OVL'LOL'LY 19SSV XeL pauejaq 00-000-04EH

:Jassy xeL paudjeq




Stockholders' Equity

Additional Paidin-Capital:

3000-000-00 Additional Paid-In Capt 48,615,899.55 59,745,899.55 59,875,899.55 60,005,899.55 60,135,899.55 60,265,899.55 60,395,899.55 60,525,899.55 60,645,899.55 60,765,899.55 60,885,899.55 61,005,899.55 61,123,796.55
Total  Additional Paid-In-Capital 48,615,899.55 59,745,889.55 59,875,899.55 ‘. 60,005,899.55 60,135,899.55 60,265,899.55 60,395,899.55 60,525,899.55 60,645,899.55 60,765,899.55 60,885,899.55 61,005,899.55 61,123,796.55
Retained Earnings:

3100-000-00 Retained Earnings 817,657.06 11,306,070.69 11,306,070.69 11,306,070.69 11,306,070.69 11,306,070.69 11,308,070.69 11,306,070.69 11,306,070.68 11,306,070.69 11,306,070.68 11,306,070.68 11,306,070.69
4040-000-00 Bad Debt Expense {170.000.00) {15,000.00) (30,000.00) (65,000.00) (115,000.00) (140,000.00) (165,000.00) {180.000.00) (225,000.00) {240.,000.00) {255,000.00) {97,027.73) {1,287,236.39)
4060-000-00 C ivity 18,902,963.51 1,801,600.44 3,857,163.33 5,807,297.02 7,755,486.33 9,870,391.88 12,001,185.31 14,363,194.99 16,722,752.73 19,079,082.05 21,361,474.19 23,649,378.51 25,950,740.93
4070-000-00 Other Income 20,515.85 312.74 312,74 3,872.74 521014 5,210.14
4080-000-00 Gain on Sale of Asset 16,500.00

5030-000-00 Rebate Expense (14,605.26) (18,355.26) (22.105.26) {25,855.26) {29,605.26) {28,082.79) (32,832.79) (36,582.79)
6000-000-00 Allocated Comp and Be 28,993,740.38 2,588,398.04 §,356,668.62 8,044,506.22 10,627,013.54 13,271,222.26 15,809,668.90 18,403,896.54 20,945,593.34 23,527,979.00 26,035,048.88 28,485,515.88 31,488,930.46
6000-252-00 Salary Expense - Sales (1,802,982.15) {166.336.45) (336,355.29) (504,691.18) {664,297.88) (825,719.58) (986,306.28) (1,146.402.98) {1.305,564.68) (1,466,534.80) (1,628,432.30) (1,787,560.62) (1,848,457.32)
6000-608-00 Salary Expense - Oper:  (2,059,779.06)  (174,083.40) (352,291.78) (532,541.83) (717.033.55) (908,748.55)  (1,111,323.61)  (1,313,173.67)  (1,515573.73)  (1,700,998.79)  (1,01244280)  (2,113.74275)  (2,315905.33)
6000-701-00 Salary Expense Accoul (794,719.98) (83,750.02) (165,928.37) {243,846.05) (321,762.73) (404,749.68) (486,256.03) (564,172.71) (642,089.39) {720,006.07) (793,403.29) (859,854.72) {837,771.40)
6000-713-00 Salary Expense - Admi (1,280,552.08) (124,166.69) (248,365.82) (372,522.50) {496,699.18) (620,865.86) (745,032.54) (869,188.22) (993,365.90) (1,117,532.58) (1,241,689.26) {1,365,865.94) {1,480,032.62)
6000-750-00 Salary Expense - Com (1,884,166.87) (168,415.03) (336,790.05) (504,465.07) {672,908.84) (860,440.97) {1,061,849.33) (1,267,202.07) (1,474 ,874.42) (1,678,576.53) (1,880,387.39) {2,082,631.27) (2,273,573.60)
6000-820-00 Salary Expense - IT (8,928,252.10) (804,628.04) (1,620,253.97) (2,417,771.20) (3,213,711.97) (4,029,897 .47) (4,848,125.70) (5,665,636.19) (6,404,984.68) (7,318,685.02) (8,142,981.53) (8.941,531.28) (9,753,085.77)
6004-820-00 Internal Software Capit: 1,744,281.50 144,854.00 289,708.00 464,583.33 619,444.43 774,305.53 1,010,833.33 1,192,816.66 1,374,999.99 1,461,499.99 1,644,916.66 1,828,333.33 1,895,312.50
6005-820-00 Internal Software Capit: §73,612.17 45,533.33 91,066.66 148,241.67 197,655.57 247,069.47 276,662.50 319,469.44 362,276.38 427,024.99 477,145.82 527,266.65 583,099.98
6010-713-00 Bonus Expense - Admi (6,515,240.34) (699,998.87) (1,649,998.97)  '(2,599,898.97) (3,449,998.97) {4,209,008.97) (5,084,988.97) (5,869,998.97) {6,634,998.97) (7,384,998.97) (8,144,998.97) (8,904,998.97)  (10,180,314.90)
6011-000-00 Tax/Bene on Bonus (471,218.12) (18,000.00) (81,000.00) (142,000.00) {194,000.00) (251,000.00) {301,000.00) (346,000.00) (396,000.00) (446,000.00) (496,000.00) (546,000.00) {630,403.38)
6050-252-00 Employer Tax - Sales (91,667.74) (19,233.84) (28,781.83) (40,669.21) (50,312.47) (56,611.80) (64,850.39) (71,488.88) (76,509.07) (81,625.04) (88,204.30) (92,052.27) (95,898.56)
6050-609-00 Employer Tax - Operati {128,108.61) {20.062.56) (35,023.46) (48,547.69) (59,667.01) (70,885.69) (B2,321.51) (93,510.86) (104,706.16) (114,372.73) (123,748.53) (132,214.78) (139,624 .45)
6050-701-00 Employer Tax - Accoun (48,536.55) {9,686.60) (15,809.49) (21,156.84) {25,696.85) (30,162.28) (34,071.85) (37,706.11) {41,341.84) (44,876.10) (48,381.32) (51,553.28) (54,351.47)
6050-713-00 Employer Tax - Admini: (71.928.35) (13,181.71) (18,036.76) {22,883.01) {27,480.45) {32,004.97) (36,479.82) (40.076.84) {43,673.70) (46,784.42) (49,084.42) (51,384.41) (53.680.85)
6050-750-00 Employer Tax - Compli: (116,980.34) {19,342.34) (28,165.55) (38,452.70) {46,665.94) (56,096.89) (66,055.66) (74,885.33) (82,958.52) {90.507.74) {97,483.26) (104,195.36) {108,075.31)
6050-820-00 Employer Tax - IT {535,894.30) {88.301.99) (162,445.84) (218,251.98) {270,640.55) (322,342.60) {371,707.00) (417 606.63) (461,856.80) (500,819.43) (532,339.28) (557,899.29) {581,528.53)
6060-252-00 401k Match - Sales (55,368.01) {23,084.04) (27,838.22) (32,808.08) (37.482.40) (42,175.74) {46,859.08) (52,292.42) {58,375.76) {64,709.10) {68,921.29) (73,237.33) {77,062.47)
6060-609-00 401k Match - Operatior {95,569.16) (26,351.50) (34,686.00) (43,158.50) (51,904.00) {61,624.00) (71,044.00) (80.013.50) {88,016.00) {96,890.50) (105,160.12) (112,646.62) {119,428.62)
6060-701-00 401k Match - Accountir (28.081.72) {6,647.00) (8,497.00) (12,547.00) (15.597.00) {18,647.00) (21,697.00) (23,247.00) (24,422.00) {25,222.00) {26.022.00) (26,609.50) (26,884.50)
6060-713-00 401k Match - Administr (43671.17) (7.152.50) (13,925.29) {20,696.13) {25,216.87) (28,175.31) (33,133.65) (37.081.99) (40,050.33) {42,275.38) {44,333.72) (45,492.06) (50,743.89)
6060-750-00 401k Match - Compliarf (35,779.09) (10,746.34) (16,663.00) (22.713.00) (28.763.00) (34,613.00) {40,863.00) (46,928.50) (53,012.50) (57.737.50) {60.851.28) (63.978.28) (67,163.00)
8060-820-00 401k Match -1T (323.506.87) {75.871.35) (108,857.85) (143,208.82) (177,526.87) (211,481.75) (244,527 55) (276.386.53) (306,776.82) (333,818.33) (357,891.97) (379,899.23) {410.583.21)
6070-000-00 Employee insurance {1,241,781.41) {102,742.87) (235,526.60) (357.492.84) (474.830.27) (597,168.51) (726,765.11) (878,178.09) {1,002,725.28) {1,129,269.69) (1.265.681.77) (1.402,127.62) {1.523,155.48)
6075-000-00 Tuition Reimbursement Expense (1,895.59) (1,895.59) {1,895.59) {1,885.56) (8.992.08) {9.992.08) (20,162.18) {30,641.48) (30,641.48) (30,641.48)
8080-000-00 Stock Option Expense (1,555,682.00) (130,000.00) (260,000.00) {390,000.00) {520.000.00) (650,000.00) (780,000.00) (910,000.00) {1,030,000.00) {1.150.000.00) (1.270.000.00) {1.380,000.00) (1,507,887.00)
6090-000-00 Phantom Stock Unit Ex {3,402,067.00)

7000-000-00 Allocated Bus Dev 1,417,951.14 141,320,868 288,341.14 382,227.74 453,562.58 549,898.28 715,211.14 836,582.24 924,972.62 1,023,535.32 1,182,284.42 1,321,842.42 1,426,596.14
7010-252-00 Sales T&E - Hotel (27,193.14) (4.663.97) (6,532.76) {9,381.76) (11,246.66) (14,857.40) (18.601.36) (20,136.47) {22,863.71) (28,790.19) (33,718.32) (35,105.74)
7011-252-00 Sales T&E - Airfare/Tra {99,804.55) (1,401.20) {6,561.02) (10,598.97) (14.185.51) (16,624.96) (24,604.61) (33,074.25) (38,488.21) (43,597.48) (48.683.59) (61,176.19) (66,661.55)
7012-252-00 Sales T&E - Car Servic (72,551.90} - (7.370.86) {9.355.80) (18,811.62) (19,850.07) (20,819.20) (32,434.24) {42,200.92) (50,075.44) (52,066.39) (60,297.35) (61,807.18) (74,649.70)
7013-252-00 Sales T&E - Parking (2,373.92) (49.75) (179.75) (432.79) 712.75) (829.75) (1,299.75) (1,401.75) {1.543.75) (1.572.75) (1.910.27) (2,234.27)
7014-252-00 Sales T&E - Client Ente (50,665.88) {2.272.00) (2,272.00) (12,959.29) (20,859.29) (30.502.08) (58,008.81) (67.252.38) (69,160.88) (70,698.18) (70,980.44) (70,880.44)
7015-252-00 Sales T&E - Client Ente (68,374.55) (5,020.68) (14,474.89) (21,692.48) (28.813.20) (36,834.53) (44,116.33) {51,087.54) (55,910.72) (63.127.80) - (70.931.18) (82,763.18) {89,992.76)
7016-252-00 Sales T&E - Ticket Prel 6,816.60

7017-252-00 Sales T&E - Business | (8.617.69) (2,015.00) (2,015.00) (5.084.00) (7.108.00) (7,907.00) (8,468.75) (9,843.43) (16,077.61) (16.077.81) (25,137.61) (36,258.36)
7030-000-00 Charity Events and Dot (67,000.00) (15,000.00) {15,000.00) (15,000.00) (15,060.00)
7040-000-00 Market/Product Resear 12,186.41 {20,000.00) {20,000.00) (20,000.00) (20,000.00) (20,000.00) (20,000.00) {20,000.00)
7040-055-00 Market Research - Brai {125,000.00) (10,000.00) (20,000.00) (30,000.00) {40,000.00) 50,000.00) (60,000.00) (70.000.00) (61,690.78) (71,680.78) (81,690.78) (86,690.78) (85,024.78)
7100-000-00 Advertising (66.525.00) (6.800.00) (6,800.00)
7100-055-00 Marketing/PR Brazil (127,783.93) {8,080.00) {37,187.50) (24,000.00) (32,000.00) {40,000.00) {48,000.00) (56,000.00) (64,000.00) (72,000.00) (80,000.00) (88,675.00) (96,675.00)
7101-000-00 Promotional {186,106.78) (39,612.57) {49,579.54) (53.784.27) (65,920.81) (72.217.53) {77,533.80) (86,028.79) (96,914.73) (104,501.02) {128.062.40) (130,929.35) (144,890.60)
7102-000-00 Sponsorship (242,141.25) (49,000.00) {88,500.00) {115,500.00) (124,000.00) (146,000.00) (162,500.00) {210,500.00) (211,810.00) {217,851.67) (275,935.00) (324,018.33) (354,601.66)
7103-000-00 Public Relations (200,868.64) (10,588.24) {34.676.48) (45,264.65) (57,094,65) {68,754.60) (100,813.71) (114,342.31) (130,704.65) (142,513.40) {153,965.40) (170,359.90) (180.532.40)
7104-000-00 Marketing Materials © (31,159.69) (3.040.58) {6,583.14) (17,515.48) (19,223.81) (23,820.14) (26,180.58) (30,097.84) (34,042.18) (48,817.23) {58,436.00) (63,044.99) {67,424.51)
7105-000-00 Website {25,052.50) (6.997.50) {9.345.00) (30,581.25) (30,581.25) (30,581.25) (30.581.25) (30,581.25) (56,268.75) (56,268.75) (62,418.75) (65,868.75) {65,868.75)
7106-252-00 T&E - Marketing (35,734.68) (298.22) {3.077.04) (3.479.50) {4,035.46) (4,218.35) (4,250.35) (6,290.64) 6,432.79) {6,454.79) {8,725.18) (12,962.51) {13,885.62)
7500-000-00 Allocated Professional 11,338,254.63 904,053.03 1,781,548.32 2,485,781.33 3,531,730.32 4,655,558.93 5,584,076.48 7.446,505.31 9,550,872.52 11,219,922.39 12,598,578.66 13,816,441.66 15,067,439.64
7510-000-00 Audit and Tax Fees {1,782,796.90) {128,627.25) (251,226.05) (382,496.65) (569,855.66) (797,355.66) (899,324.52) (1,016,834.52) (663,000.93) (842,834.71) {940,881.41) (1,102,480.91) (1,235,880.91)
7520-000-00 Legal Fees (1,346.058.27) {25,867.09) (54,879.67) (63,415.74) (132,004.99) (172,017.04) (236,871.26) (631,871.28) {277,752.49) (338.004.38) {435,618.86) (454,022.85) (484,022.85)
7520-055-00 Legal - Brazil (316,417.39) {17.000.00) (24,000.00) (37,000.00) (398,228.53) (45,228.53) (61,107.70) (91,107.70) (120,999.18) (142,710.54) {120.560.73) (161,215.26) {169,792.87)
7530-000-00 Regulatory Fees (3.080.022.91) {265,000.17) (500.686.34) (754,061.51) {1.085,676.66) (1.502,541.23) (1,854,739.80) (2.184,884.37) (2,569,115.94) (2,890,488.51) (2,188,271.08) (3.511,048.65) (3,885,347.16)
7540-000-00 Recruiting Fees (389,000.00) (50,000.00) (120,000.00) (148,507 .80) {134.438.87) (194,438.87) (254,428.87) (316,938.87) (393,784.28) {413.784.28) (413,784.28) (413,784.28) {448,024.28)
7550-000-00 Consulting - IT (1,870,862.00) (160.583.33) (429,017.43) {615,434.10) (937,241.88) {1,209,320.17) {1,420,745.83) (1,733.712.71) (1.960,133.55) (2,181,883.55) (2,357,669.40) (2,568,075.20) (2,824,022.28)
7551-000-00 Consulting - Finance ar (82,034.02) (68,779.00) (120,018.00) - (136,582.00) (165,514.82) {192,753.72) (235,720.30) (752,200.00) (788,579.02) {826,117.92) (848,915.05) (873,493.96) {803,448.31)
7552-000-00 Consulting Legal/Comg (592,080.70) (45,000.00) (103,125.13) (130,125.13) (150,321.44) (196,575.73) (219,510.48) (241.767.48) (210,793.00) (225,606.59) (230,573.97) (290,822.73) {321,359.11)
7553-055-00 Consulting - Brazil (307,323.56) (55,366.66) (55,366.66) (55,366.68) {55.365.66) (27,000.00) (27,000.00) (27,000.00) {21,300.82) (21,300.82) {21,300.82) (21,300.82) (21,300.82)
7554-000-00 Strategic Initiatives * (810.528.48) (178.17) (17917) 178.47) (179.7) (179.17) (179.17) {179.47) (2,020977.71) (2,701,091.59) (3,262,908.00) {3.571,959.49) (3,734,720.28)
7560-000-00 Payroll Processing Fee (60,570.65) (11,878.38) {13,884.88) (17,113.58) {23.122.68) (27,151.86) (32,876.32) (34,542.57) (37,540.02) (40,540.58) (48,228.37) (52,777.48) (55,318.32)
7570-000-00 Board Member Compel (890,559.70) (75.671.98) (108,166.00) (147,499.00) (238,780.98) (290,989.98) {341,452.28) (415.356.70) (486,995.63) {595,488.96) {718,856.75) (795,350.08) {883,082.45)
8000-000-00 Telephone (280,478.42) (24,738.02) (48,497.98) (73.3982.05) {88.073.65) (125,161.58) (151,237.04) (177,198.34) (201,443.21) (228,078.68) (253.683.92) (279.069.30) (305,173.06)
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Raovenuas
Morkat Data;
4(730-000-00 Market Data Revenue
Total Market Cata
Total Révenuos

Cost of Revenuas

Gross Marins -
Gross Macgine 35 2 % of Revenues

Fixed Expenses

Pre-Tax Income

Net Interest:
4050-000-00 Inlerest Revenuo

Totat Net Interest

Pre-Tax Incamic

Nét Incomel(Loss)

Direct Edgo Holdings.

Forthe Monih Ending Bedomber 31,2013

Jahuary, 2673 Fabruary, 2013 ®arch, 2013 Agil, 2013 May, 2013; Jude,; 2013 July, 2013 August.2013  Scplomber, 2013 Octobdr; 2013 Noverbar, 2013 Decembor, 2013
2,935.73 7.4_77,15 £7,859.00 60,058.00 .‘116,89'3.41' 19,528.52 - 16,125.00 287,886.82
9,925.72 TATTA8 57.859.00 -60,058.00 11689341 19,538.52 16,125:00 287,886:82
8.935:72 747716 57.859.00 §0,058.00 116,893.41 1952652 1612500 267,886.82
993573 TATI16 57,859.00 160,058.00 116,893.41 19,538.52 16,125.00 287,896.82
100:00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.09% 700.00%
992573 747736 57,859.00 .60,058.00 116,893:41 19,538:52 16.125.00 287,886.82
{#10:64) (371.96) (373.62) (32884 (306.12) (37.54) (26767 (209.86) (208.42) {207.93) (250.71) (648.58)° (2.910.08)
(410:64) (371.96) B7362). ".(329.94): (206i12), (37.54) (267.67) (299.86) (306.42) (307:93) " @soTiy gsw.ssj. (3.910.09)
10:248.37 ok 373.62 7.806.10 58,165.12° 3154 267.67 60,357.86 117,199.83 19,846.45 1637571 §42.58. 291,798.81

N
/1024637 371:96 37362 7.806,10 58,165.12 37.54 26767 60,357.66 117,189,62 19,846:45 1637571 648.:68 291,796.91



Direct Edge Iné

For the Tivelve Monthis Ending December 31,2013

Decembaér, 2012 Januscy,.2013 Feébruary, 2013 March,; 2013 Apfil, 2013 May, 2013- Jung, 2013 July, 2013 August, 2073 Séeptember, 2013 October, 2013:  November, 2013  Becember, 2013
$12.342,944.05.  34300,855.90 $11,980,258.31  $B61326179  §3922536.20 $10,169,604.11 $13,919,937.97 :810,900.145.52 §14,263.716.17 $20630.527,16° 52573184580 32764147911
2,318,678,57 2,590,354.81 3,131.159.54- -3.184,010.23 2:613,370,13 2,671,927.90 3,044,638.68 3,229,043.39 2,422,811.88 3,220,453.66 3,062,802:51 _'3.-743,908.32
1179695793 1156596431 1147956158 11560028194 11629227.15 11.500.08260  11,428.381.46 42,533.84375  12927,38166.  13,824,532.18  13,680,591.18  14,876.720.23
10,953,201,99. 1095320199  10,953,20189  10,95320199  10,963,201.99 1065320189  10,953,201:99  '10,953201:98  10.953,201.93  10,853,201.95 10,953.201.99:  10,953,201.99
1,236,983.03 122379110 1,220,59947 1.212,407.24  1.204:215.31 1,196,023.38 1,187,831:45 117963952 1,171447.59 1,163,255.66 145506373 1,146,871.80
8,862,781.90  11,242,034.74 524529020 1216034495 1833327940  -9,506670.85 645164582  10,953840.54  11.615753.28 7,326294:78 693672440  6,270,308:02:
4170174600 41701746500  #1701746.00 4170174600  41,701,74600 4170174600 4170174600  41,701.746.00  41.701 74600 41701746000  41,701,74600  41,701,746.00
81,171.33. 91,421.32° 91,504:95  93252.62 -93,601,67 .95.017:63 9517472 9578167 6,064.74 545322 5,980.21 6,888.65 418;
3,347,651.71 3,407,303:87 3.062,745.98 3.070;452.24 2256,690.76  -4,741,081.04 4;385,503.81 4,483,402.72 4,141,753:87 3,218,420.78 3,359;220.79 3,393,439.41 3,348;235.60
92,641,126.51 87,081 ;564'.'04 89,966,057.72.  92567,706.10 92.707,86831 6262535560  93,168,061.90 96,030,645.10  99,204,877.28° 102,033,885:43  106.787.176.56. 109,234,564.58°  105727.377.65
Slearing Organizations 2670 ) . o
- ) 14,605.26 11,250.00 802247 1477247 15,522.47 15,000.00 18,750.00 6,352.52
25.000,000,00  12,500,000.00  42,500,000.00  12,500,000.00  10,500,00000  :8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00 6,000,000.00 6,000,000,00 6,000,000:00:  6,000,000.00  :6,000,000.00 6,000,000.00,
7,718,156.27 2,635,534:31 4,692,492.10 6,502,779:79 7,833.319.64 9,124,030.28 £803,530.51 12.058304.03 1356430528  14732657.19:  18.008247.15  IG87T120516  17.485237.97
22,719,156.27 15,1'35,’534;’35 17,192,49310  "19,002,779.79 18333,310.64  17,14863554  16.814,780.51 18.056,326.50  19,576,104.45  20748,189.66 2402324715  24,899,855.16, 23,491:590.49
48,615,809.55  53745,899.55  50,67589955  60.005:899.55 50,135,899.55  60,265899.55  60,305899.55 6052588955 60,645899.55 6076580955  60,885,89955  61,005899.55  61,123796.55
130607065 1220023018  12,897,67507  13,559,02676 1423854912 1521082051  15.957.381.84 1743841005  19,082,87328 2051979622  21,576,02985  23.338709.82  20,511,99061
50,021,070.24 7184612973 7277357482 7856492631 7437454867 7547672006 7635328139 T7.96431860 7972877283 8128589577  B2T63 92041 8434550837  £1.635.787.16
02.641,126.51  ©7.081.65404  89.966,067.72  92.567,706.40  92707:86831  92,62535560 93,168,061.90  '96,080645.10. 99,204,677.28  102,033,885.43 106.787,176.56 109,234,564:53  105.127,377.65




Direct Edge Inc.

For the Twelva Months Ending Decambér 31,2013

Dacembér, 2012 January, 2012 February, 2012 March, 2013 April, 2013 May, 2013 June, 2013 July; 2013 August, 2013 Soplember, 2013 Ogtober, 2013 November, 2(}1 3 Degember, 2013
sount ) ) 500 ]
11.587,824.74 3288,261.87  11,636,242:58- 8,319,476:50 §,628,915.51 9,876,147.70  13,626,818.12 10,607,01242  "14,070,750.41 20327,719.07 2543563910  27,356,770.93.  28,793,996.80
755,119.31 1.012.594.03 294,015,73. 293,785.29 293,620.69. 29345641 293,119.85 '293,128.40 292,965.76 292,808.03 256,206.70 284,708.18 565,068:83
12,342,944.05 430085590  11,980,258.31 8,612,261.79 3,022536.20.  10,16950441  13919i937:97  10,900,145.52 1436371647  20620527.16 25731 BASED  2THH4TIN 29,364,065.63
n . . B
(344,37425) - (299,122:02) {224.285.95) (177.297.32) {226,263.47) {256,122.13) (281,122,43) (258,125.86) (332,268.95) (346,666,96) (427,542.47) (267.454.59) (128,203.33).
2,525,706.80 2,822,870.90 2,181,081.45 3,247,918,14; 2.773,027.67 2777,685.39 .3,402,133.57 3,222,153,01 2,392,957.45 3430,712.15 '3,379,383.82 3,891,355.88 3,585,343:48
135,330.26 67.590.13 141,955.05 204,341.06 7,590.13 146,490.13 219,752.73 291,141.73 '362,530.73 .86,815:71 61,368.40 70,414.27 . 28,800.00
3,874.51 3,874.51 37.270:69 - (75,992,84) 2,874.51. :3,874.51 3,874,517 3,874.51 (407.25} 49,592.76 48,592.76 49,592.76 49,453.86
(4.658.75) {4,858.71) {4.858.71) (4.858.71) (4 858 71y, )
2.318,678.57 2,590,354.81 3,131,1539.54 '3,194,010.23 2,613,370.13 2871,927.90 3,044,628:88 3;229,043.39 2,422,811.98 3,220,453.66 3,062,802:51 8,743,908.32 3,525,3923.51
vements Less Depreciaiion: . ) L L B . )
7,457 ,568.85 7,480,121.03 7,642,53247° 797826278  -8,036,858.19 '8,139,628.15 8,169,767.75. 8.733,512,09 949124642 1047193426 1049291826  10,513,051.61 10,532,363.76:
7,437,476.74 T.437475.74 TA4547674.  7.488,972.95 7,603;242.95 7:618,856.75  7:613.856.75 8,755,843:61 8,255,943.61 8,255,943.61 8,255,943,61 8,378.051.60- €,378,051.60.
907,819.57 1807.919:57 '907,918;57 907,919.57 947.996.43 '947,996.43 947,996,483 947,995.43 1,035,396.93 1,029,996.93 1,029,996.93- 1,029,996.93 1,029,996:93
177,121:32. 253,320,07 253,320:07 i 30421415 304,214.15 304,214.15 204,214,15 30421415 '304,294.15 355,108.22 -366,705.56 366,705:56
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(2,225838:02)  (2,262,320.10) (2,359 481.40)  (2416981:39)  (2482,44488)  (2.551.128.91)  (2617.779.38) (2,690,746,81)  (2,766,09234)  (3,017,683.76)  (3,103586.82)  (3,186,312.14). (2.226,459.21):
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dzation: . . . o
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2d Amortization; : ) . . . o ) .
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704,572,00 © 704.:672,00 704,672,00 704,672.00 '704,672.00 "704,673. DO: 704,672.00 704,672.00° 704,672.00

704,672.00

704,572.00

704,672.00

704,672.00
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42265 42265 422,65 37.28 6,607.50

0.01 {2.015.99) (2,015.99) (20,735.99). (24,812.79)
(a:.o1) (0.01) {9,440.04) 28,320.08 37,760.41 47,200:14 56,8407 66,080.20 75,520.23 £84,960,26 94,400:28 103,840:32 113,280,35
1,024,892.96 " 684,718.14 1,053;243.80 1,111,485.08 77902911 §34,921.13 786,255.95 1,620,544,92 746.399.34 840,047:35 1,054,400.00- §12,732.77 680,798,62
179.817.22. 171.974:50 109,793.:11 74,654.45 68,398:80 80,268.61 114,762:71 480,772:42. 1,475,338.39 1,440,023.33 1,060,158.57 696,680.38 49,038,681
20,626.68 37.669.94 {73,808.16) (88,370.25) (90,324.88) (77.958.10) (75,260:48) {75.519.65) (69,162,80) (€6:943.20) {56,896,74) (64.895.34) (65.562.59)
571,670.85 572,507.65 573,244.86 -574,181.86 575,018:86 :575,855.86 576,692.86 577,529:86. 578,366:85 579,203.86 580:040.86 580.877:85 581.714:86

(2.663,258.79)  (1.814.402.79) (653,582.45) 70,859.55 874,245.55 1,824,724.55 820,506,555  1,542127.55  2,102:216.55 2,854,768,76: 5,564,104.76 6,398,159.75, 3,478;370.07.

720,954.50 698,244.75 £44,957.75 915,812.75 852,108.00 552.275.75 657,325.50 '840,548:50 602,799.00 702,846.00 786,845.00 604,000.00 829,439.00

Ixperises . ) B ) B :363.300.47
588,500.03: 542,877.67 493,525.15 445,551.21 399,996.13 35322578 302;764.95° 253,812.06 206,073.21 165,772.94 103;848162 54,924.30 547.990.98

RS 0.49 0.18 (o 22) (0.22) 0.75 267015 {0.01) 1,250.02
771915627 2,635:534.31 4,692,493:10 6,502,779.79 7,833:319.64 9,124,030.28 880353051  12,05830403  13,564205.28  14732867:1%  1B008247.45 1887120515  17.485287.97

32719,15627 1513553431 1719249310 1900277979 1833331964  17,14863554  16.814.780.51 1806632650  19,576104.45  20748,189.66 2402324715 2488995578  23,491.530.49.

4861599955 5974589955 5987589955  60,005,899.55 60,135809.55 6036589955 60,395,899.55  60,525899.55  60,645,898.55 80:765:899:55  60,885,809.55  61.005299:56  61/123,796.55

4861589955 5974589055  59:875,809.55  60,005,899.55  60.135899.55.  60,265,899.55 6039589955  60,52509.55  60,645889.55  60,765859:55  60,865.899.55. 61 :005,899:55  61,123,796.55
817.657.06 070.6¢ 14,306.07068  11,306070.69 1130607069  11,306,070.69°  11,306.070.63  11,306,070.69 11.306,070.63 1130607069  11.306,070:69  11,206,070.69

{170,000.00) {15,000.00) {29,000.00) (65.000.00} {415:000.00) (140,000.00) (165.000.00) {180,000:00): (225,000.00} (240,000.00) (255:000.00Y (57,027.73)  (1;287.236.39)
19,902,953 51 1,801,600.44 3:857.163.33 5.807,297.02 7,755/486.33 9.870.201.98  12.001,18531 1436319499, 1672275273 1907808208 2136147419  23.649378.51 25,950,740,93
20:515:85. 31274 31274 3,872.74 5,240:14 521044
16.500.00 . o ) ) o ) o
L (14,605.25) {18.355.26 (22,105.26) (25,855:25) {29,605.26) (29,082.7¢) (32,822.79) (35,582.79)
28,993,740.38 2,588,298.04 5.355,668.62 §044,50822° 10:627,09354 13271,222.26  15809,668.50.  18,403.896.54 2084555334  23,527,979.00  26,035048.88 2848551588  31,498,930.46

(1,802982.15) (165,335.45) '(325,255.29) (504,691.18) {664,297.88) (825.719:58) (986,206,28)  (1.1486; 402.99) (1,305,564:68)  (1.456534.80)  (1.626432.20) (1i767,56062) {1.948,457.32)

(2,059,779.06) (174,082.4C) (352,291.78) (532,541.83) (747,033.55) (900.748.85) (111402861  (1.313,17367)  (1,515,57373) (170985079} (1,91244269) 2,112374275)  {2,315,905.33)
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(1,984,165.87) ~ (188,415.03) (235,7.90,05) (504,465.07) {672,908.84) (860,440:97)  (1,061.846,33)  (1.267,292.07)  (1.47487442) (1 ,578._57_5_ 53)  (1,880,397.39)  (2,082631.37) (2,273,573 50)

(8,928,252,10) (804.628.04)  (1.620253.97) (241777120) (3213TIET)  (4,029,897:47)  (4,848.125.70). (5665:696.19) (5,494/084.68)  (7,318,685.02)  (8,142,501:53) ' (8,841,531.28) (9,753,055.77)

1,744:281.50 144,854.00 289,708.00 464:583.33 '619.444.43 - 774,305,53 1,010,833.33 - 1,192,916.66 1,374,999.98. 1,461,499.99. 1,644.916.66 1,828.333:33 1,995,312.50
573,61247 4553323 91,066:66 148,241.67 197.656.57 247.069.47 276,662,50. 319/469.44 362,276:38 427.024.99 477,145.82 527,266.65 583,089.98

(6,515,240.34) (695,998.67)  (1,649,998.97)  (2.599,998.97) (3,446,998.97)  (4,299,996.97) (5,084.99897)  (5,869:998.87)  (6.634; §98.97)  (7,384.952:97)  (8,144,998197)  (8,904,398:97) (10,180,314.90)

(471.21842) {18,090.60) {61,000.00) (142,000.00} (194,000.00) {251,000.00) {301,000.00) (346.000,00}. {396,000.00) (446,000,003 {496,000.00). {5486,000.00) (620,403.28)
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(48,526:55) ' {2.585.60) {15,909.49) (21,156.84) (25,695.85) (30,162.28) (34,071.85) (37.706.11) (41,241:84) (44,976.10) (48,297.32) 51,553.28) . {54,351.47)
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{535.694.30} (5,201.99) (162.445.94) (218:251:98) {270,640.55) (322,342.60) (374,767.00) (417,606.63) (461.856.80 (500,819.43) (532.329.28) {557,893.29) (581,528.53)
(55368.07) (22.084.04) (27,38.22) (32.802.03) |(37:492.40) (42,175.74) (45,859.08) (52;2¢2:42) (58;275.76) {64,709.10) {68,921.283 (72.237.33) (77.062.47)
(95,569.18) {25.351.50) (34.635.00) {43,159.50} (51.504.00) (61,624.00) {71,044.00) (80,013:50) (€9,016:00) {965,890.50) (105.160.12) {112,646.62) (119,428.62)
(28.081.72) (6.547.00) {9.497.00} {12:547: 00) {15:597.00) {18,847.00)- {21,697.00) (22,247.00) {24,422,00) {25,222.00) (25,022.00) {26.609.50) (25,984.50}
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Revanues
Comumission Revenuo
Conneclivity and Member Fees
Other (ncome

Total Revenues
Cdst of Rovenues.
Rebates

Total Cosl of Revenues:

Gross Margins Lo
Grass Margins o5 & % of Revenues

Fixed Expenses

Compensation and Benefits
o :

Direct Edge Inc

For the Month Ending December:31,2013

Saptembar, 2013;

ions-& Data P

Daproeiation and Amcrtir_.a(fdn e
Occupancy and-Equipment Rentals
Professional Fees
Businass Develapment
Othér Expansas
Total Fixed Expcnse§
Pré-Tax income
NetInterest
Pre-Tax income

income Taxes

Not Income/(Loss)

Jonuaty, 2013 February, 2013 March, 2013 (Aprl; 2013 May, 2013 June, 2013 July, 2013 Augusi; 2012 Oclobér, 2013 November, 2013 December, 2013 Y10
{15,000.00) (15,000.00} '(35,000.00) {50,000:00). . {25,000.00) . (25,000.00) (15,000.00) (45,000,00)° (15.000.00) 15,000,00): 45797227 (1,190.208566)  (51,287,236.29)
1,901,600.44 1,955,562.89.  1,960,133.69 1,948,189.31 241490565 213079333 2362,00988  2359,55774  2,356329.32 228239214 228790432,  2301,36242  25950,740.92
31274 3,560.00 1,337:40 5,210.14.
1,886,600.445- 1,940,562.85° 1,.915,133.89 1,898,189.31 :2,088.905.65 2,105,793.33 2,347.009.68 231487048 2,241.32032 2,270.952.14 2,447.213.99 1,111,153.76 24 .668,714.68
1460526 3:750.00 3.750.00 2,750.00 3.750.00 (522.47) 3.750.00 3,750.00 3658279
14,605.26 375000 ’ 3,750,00 3,750.00 3,750.00 52247y 2,750.00 3,750.00 36,582.79.
1,885,600.44 4,940,562.85:  1.915133,69 ,898,189.31 2,075,300,39 2,102,043.33 234325968  '2;311,120.48 2.337,579:32 2273 ATA61 2,443,463.99 110740376 24,632,131.89
*100.00% 100.00% 100.00% '100.00% - 9930%: 89,82% 199,83% -89.84% 99:84% 100.02% 99.85%: 99.56% 1198:47%
24,998.97 24,899.99 24999.9¢ 25.,000.00. 25,000,00 24,999:99 24,999.99 24,999.99 25,000.00 -24,999.99 - 25,000:3% 25,000.70 :300,000,00
, 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 99,999.99 100,000.00 100,000.02 199,999.99. 100,000.01 100,000.02 00,000.00. 99,969.87 100,000.10 1,200,000.00
(0.00) 0.00 o 0.00 0.00 0:00 0,0t (0.00) 0,00 (©.01) (0:19) 0.18
) ) (0.01) ) ’ : {0.02): 0.03
{0.00) 0.01 (0:00) 0:01, .0.01 (0.00) 0.0 0.01 {0.00) 0.01. (0.01) {0.08)
(0.01) 0.00 *(0:00) (6:01) 0.00. (0.01) (0.00) (0.01) .01} ©:.01) 0.44 (0,38)
0.01) 0.00 0.00 “0.00 0.00 : (o) (.01) 0:55 (0.52)
124,998395 425,000.00 125,000,00 124,999.99" 125,000.00 125,000.00 125,000.00 125,000,00 125,000,00 124,999.97 125,001,03 12500006  1,500,000.00
1,761,501.49. 181556288 '1,790,133.69 1,773,189:32 1,950,300.39 1,877,043.33 2,218,259.68 2,186,120.48 2212573.32 214547464 231846285 98240370  23,132131.83
50,000.00 20,000.00 35,000:00 30,220.96 27,650.00 77.500.00 25,218.:68 23.852.25: 41,104,17 40,000,00 35,000.00 (10,267.09) 355278.97
1,711,601.42 1,765,562.88 175513369 1.742,968.36 1,92265029.  1,949,543.33 2,193;041,00 2162,168.23  2,171475.15 210647464  2,283,462.96 99277078  22,776,852.92.
17,442,00 1,088,118.00  1,093,762.00 1,063,346,00 950,479,090 1,202,982.00 712,003.79 517.714,00 734552131 748.241.00 822783.00 381949000  13,570923.00
£04,159.49 697,444.89 661,351:69 679,622.36 74656133 . 1,481,00721 164545425 143692294 1735823364 146067996  (282671921)  9205919.92




Ravénues

Commission Revenue:
£040-00C-00 Bad Dedbt Expense

Tolal Commission Revenue

-Connectivity ahd Member Fees;
4060-000-00 Connectivity Revenue

Total Connectivity snd Momber Fee.

Gther Income:
4070-000-00 Other lncomo

Total Ofher Income.

Total Revenues

Costof Reventes

Rébates:
-5030-000-00 Rebate Exponse

Total Rebates

Total Cast of Revenues:

Gross Margins.
Gross Margins as'a % of Revenucs

“Fixed Expansos:

Componsation and Benefits:
6000-000-00 Allocated Comp and Bc
6000-252-00 Salary Expense - Sales

16000-608-00 Salary Exponse - Qpen

§000-701-00 Satafy Expense Accoul
£000-713-00 Salary Expense « Admi
6000-750-00 Salary Expense - Comy
6000-620-00 Satary. Expense ~ [T

. 6004-820-00 {ntémat Software Capit

- 600S-B20-00 Intemal Software Capit
6010-713-00 Bonus Expense - Admi
6011-000-00 Tax/Sene on'Bonus
6050-262-00 Employer Tax - Sales
£050-609-00 Employer Tax - Operati
6050-701-00 Employer Tax ~ Accour
6050:713-00 Employor Tax ~Admini

:6050-750-00 Empldyer Tax - Compli
£050-820.00 Employer Tax - IT
'6060-252-00 4071k:Match ~ Sales
_5060-508-00 401k Match - Oporatior

-6060-701-00 401K Match:- Accountlr
6060-743-00 401k Match ~ Adminisir
6060-750-00 401k Match.~ Complian
6060-820-00 401k Maich < IT

'6070-000-00 Employae Insurance

Direct Edgo Ine

For the Month Ending Dacambor 31, 2013

8075-000-00 Tultion Re:mburscment Expdnse

'6080-000-00 Stock Oplhn Exponse

‘Total C_cmp:ensaﬁun:andegncvms

Jafuafy; 2043 February, 2013 March, 2013 Apil, 2013. May, 2013 Jund; 2013 July, 2013 Aligust, 2093 Soplember; 2013 Octobér, 2013 . November, 2013 Décember, 2013 YTD
(15,000.00) (15.000.00) (25.000.00) (50.000.00) (25,000.00) (25,004.G0) 15,000.00) (45,000.00) (15,000.00§ {15,000.00) 157.972:27  (1,19020866)  (1,267:236.39)
(15.000.00) (15,00000) (35,000.00) (56,000.00): {25.000.00) (25,000.00) (15,000.00) (45,000.00) (15,000.00) (15,000.00) 15797227 (1,190208.66)  (1,287:236.39)°

1.801,600.44 1,955;562.89 ,950,133.6¢ 1,048:189.21 211490565 2130793233 2,362,009.68 2135955774 2.356,329.32 228230214 228780632 220136242 2535074093
190160044 1,955,562.89 1,950,133.69 1.943,189.31 2:114,905:85 2,130,793.33 2,362,00968 & .2,454,557.74 2,356,329.32 228236214 228790432 230136242 2595074093
312,74 3;560:00 1.337.40 521014

31274 3,560,00 1,237.40 521014

1,886,600.44 1,940,562.89 1,915,133.69 1,898,18031 " 2,089 805.65 2,105,793.33 2';347,_069.58 2,314,870,48 2,241,329.32 2,270,952.14 '2,447.243.99 1,111,15376  24,668,714.68°
14,605.26 3,750.00 3.750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 (s22any - 375000 3750.00 36,582.78

14,60525 3.750.00 3,750.00 3.750.00 3.750.00 (52247 2,750.00 3,750.00 36,582.79

14,605:26 375000 3,750,00 3,750,00 3.750.00 (522.47) 3,750.00 3750.00 36,582.79

1,886,600.4% 1,840,562:89 1,915,132.69 1,808,18931  .2,075300:39 210204333 234325068  2.311,720.48 2,337,579.32 2.271,474.81 2.443,483:99 1,107,403.76  '24,632,13188
100.00% 100.00% 100.00%- 99:30% :99.82% 99.84% 99:84% 99.84% 100.02% 99.85% 99.66%: 1198.17%
(2,568,368.04)  [(2.768,270.58) (2,687,837.60)  (2,582,507.32)  (2644,208.72) (25384 M664)  (2,595221.64)  (2,541.696.80) (2582 335.66)  (2,507,069.88) (R 450,467, 00  (3.013,414.58)  (31:498,920,46)
166,326:45 170,018,864  ° 168,335.89 159,606:70 161,421.70 160,586.70 160,096.70 159,161.70 160,970.12 158, 89750 151,12832 160,896.70 1,948,457.32
174,083.40 178208.38 180,250.08 184,491, 72 {92,715.00 201,575.06 201,850.06 202,400.06 194,425.06 '202,443.9 201,300.08 202,162.58 2,315,905:33
83,750.02 82.179.35 77.916.68 .68 82,986.95 81.506.35 7791658 77,916.68 7791668 73397 32 66,451.33 7791668 937,771.40:
124,166.69 124,199.13 124,166.68 124,166.68 124,166.63 124,166,68° 124,166.68 124,166.68 124,166:68 124,166.68 124,166.68 1,490,032.62
169,415.03 167,275.02 167,675.02 187,522.13 201,403.36 205,442.74 207,562.35 2027024 201,820.96 202,233.98 190,942.23 2.273,573.60
804,628,04 815.625.93 79751723 : 7 816,185.50 81822822 817,510.49, 829,248.49 82370024 824,298.51 798,549.75 811,524,49 9,753,055.77
{144,854.00) (144,854,00) (174.875.32) (154,861.10}, (154,861.10) (236,527.80) (182,083:33) (182,083.33) (86,500.00) (183,416 87) (183,416.67) (166,978,17y  (1.995,312.50)-
(45,522.33) (45,533.33) (57375.01) (49,413.90) (49,413.90) [29,593.03) (42,806.94) (42,806.94) .(64,748,61) ' (50,120,83) (50,120.83) (55,8633.33) {582,099.88)
-698,998.97 950,000.00 950,000.00 -850,000.00 850,000.00 785,000.00 785,000,00 765,000,00 750,000.00 760,000.00, 760,000.00 127531593  10,180,314.90
18,000.00 63,000.00 61,000.00 152,000,600 57.000:00 50,000.00 -45,000.00- 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 84,403.38 630,402.38
10233194 9,547.89 11,887.28 9,643.26 6,299.33 8.238.59 663843 5,020.18 5415.97 :6,579136: 2.847.97 3,846.29 9589355
20,062.58 14,960.90 13,524.23 11,118,32 11,218:68 11,435.82 11,189.35. 11,195.30 9,666.57 9375.80 846625 7.409.67 139,62445
9,686.50 6.222.89 524735 4,540.01 446543 3,909.57 3,624.26: 3,635.73 3634.26 241522 3,161.96 2,798.19 54,351.47-
43,181.71 4,855.05 4,84525 450744 4,604.52° 4,384.85 3,597.02 3,110.72 2,300,00 2.299.89 220644 '53,680.85
19,243.24 9,822.21 928715 8213.24 943095 9,958.77 8382867 754822 6.975.52 6,712.10 4,879:95 109,075.31
99.301.9% 63,143.95 55,806.04 52,388.57 51,702.0% 49,364,640 45,899.63 3896263 31,519.85 . 2556001 2362924 :581,528.53
23,084.04 4,754.18 4.970.84 4,683.34. 468334 468334 543334 "6,333.34 212,19 4316.04 382544 7706247
26,351:50 8,334.50 8,473.50 8,744.50 9.720.00 §:420.00 .8,969.50 7,87450 826962 7,486.50 §,762.00 119,428.62
8.647.00 2,850.00 3,050.00 3,050.00 3,050.00 3,060.00 1,550.00 '800.00 800.00 567.50 375.00 26,984.50.
7.152:50 6,772.79 6.770.34 4,520.84° 3,958.34 3,958.34 3.958.34 222505 2,058.34. 1,15834.° 525163 50,743.59
10,746:34 5,916.66 6.050.00 6,050,00° 6,050.00° 6,050.00 16,066,50 4,725.00 311378 3,125,00 -3,186.72 . 67,163.00
75,871.35 33,086:50 34,250.97 34,318.05. 33,954.88 33,045.80 | 31,858,98 } 27,041.51 2407364 22,007.25 30,693.98 410,593.21
102,742.87 122,763.73 121,966.24 11733743, 122,33824 129,596.60 151,412.98 124,547:19 126,544.41 136,412.08; 136,445,85- 121,027.88 1,523,155.48
1,895.59 8,096.49 10170.10 10479300 B B 130,641.48:

130,000.00 120.000.00 130,000.00 130,000.00 130,000.00 130,000.00 130,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 +120,000.00 120,600.60 117,897.00 1,507,897.00
24,898,97 24,899.99 24,999.5 25,000.00 25,000.00 2499999 24,999.99. 2499999 2500000 ° '24,999.99 25,000.39 25.000.70 300,000,00
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Assots
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Commissions and Faes Recetiab
Securitios Owned, at Market Value
tntercompany Rec/(Pay)
ClhdrAssols

Total Assets

Liabilities and Stockholdérs” Equity
Uabiliies.

Payable-to Brokers, Dealers, and ¢
Rebales Payable
Accrued Compensation and Othor

Tatal Lidbilitics

Stockholgers! Equity

Additional Paid-In-Capital
Retained Eamings

Totat Stockholders-Equity

Diroct Edge EGN

For'the Twelve Monihs Ending Dacamber31, 2013

Total Labllities and Stockholders

December, 2012 January, 2013 Fobruary, 2013 March, 2013 Apil, 2013 May, 2013- JSuna, 2013. July, 2013 Hugust, 2013 Soplember, 2013, Ociober, 2013 November, 2013 Docomber, 2013
SI086484077  SIT13LO7BTA  STTAB233007: STITS0743.00 $11,803277.24 S11,944.234.83 31266943174  $12816926.80 $13I22,957.83 $13,50247629  $13,306,174.62 $13564.09620  $5,886,102.97
" B8,A459.92 {€.014.62) i - ’ 253,034,00
! L . L 3,952.00 o ) . ! i
450089881 516037682 462604286 397098120 444161808 452826995 370413265  IHNIE2TS6 38240 IJTWOSTI 436566824 398355514  3,905.432.09
0,01 -0.01 Y 0.0t 0.01 0.01 “ 001 0.01 : ’
15,395,739.59 16,300,455.54. 18.089,2'72.955 1572472430  '16,244,895.29 16,642,916.71 16,455,549.81 156,810,554.37  15,946,287.23 16,880,533.42  17,673,843.06 17.547.65143 10,044,569.08
24B4715437 T 314172732 271484701 218941166 253657505 271195472 221050694 248250138 248530993 228366668  2,860936.79 363502082 289191338
[0.02 0,02 0,02 0.02- 0.02 0.02 0,02 ‘0.02 T T :
0.70 .70 070 070 070 0.70 0,70 0.70
248435500 314172808 271464773 218941236 25657577 271195544 .23 050766 248250210 246530085 220366668 286003678 263502682 289191339
(05.240439.76)  (25.24043076) (2524043076). [(25240430.76). (2524043076) (2524043976) (25240439.76) (2524043976)  (25260,43976)  (25240430.76)  (25,240,439.76) (25.240429776)  (33,240,439.76)
3645202426 3839916726 3861606498  BTISIS168 3IBIMETSE28 947140103 2930548181  29,56849203 3072142706 I0LITI650. 4005334603 40,193,066.37 40,293,095.43
12OUIAEAE0 | 1345672750 1337482523 13535311820 10708318.52 1593096121 1414504215 1432805227  14,480,987.30 459686674  14BI2S062T 1491262661 745265567
15395739.58 1630045554 1608027206 1572472430 1624489520 1664281671 1645554881 1687055437  16.946297.23 1688052342 1767384206  17.547.651.43  10.044:569.05
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Révénues
Commission Revenue
Tolal Rovenues

Cost of Revenues:

Routing Fads
Clearing

Totar' Cost of Rovenues

Gross Margins: +
Gross: Margins as 8 %-of Revenueés

Fixod Expanses

- Comiponsatipn and Bénohts
s ceations &b

Direct Edge ECN

Forthe Month Ending Decernber 31,2013

August,2013  ‘Scplamber; 2013 'Octobor, 2013 NoY6mber; 2013 December, 2013

Deprociation und Amonl:ﬁlqu
Professional Fees
Other Expenses.

Total Fixed Expanses
Pre-Tax Income

Nat Intérost

Pre-Tax lacome

Not Income/(Loss)

January, 2013 Fobniary, 2013 March, 2013 April, 2013 May, 2013 June, 2013 Jufy, 2013 . YTO
5,049,995.00 440706200 - 3.539,946100 4,061,903.00" 4,341.932.00 '3,624,547.00 4,048,291,00 3,899,059,00 3,584,014.00 4,431,718.00° 3,775.839.00 6.670453.00  $52,144,659.00:
504999500  4.407,06200 393994600 406190300  4341,932.00 3924547.00 404820100  3,899950.00  3,584,014.00 4431,718:00 377583000 667945300  52,144,658.00
427198236 366004576 329255847 341137282 362872312 229028413 337900000 324508253  2,971289.38 372743113 344178038 603543806 4404384015

146232.13: . 15163859 "147,705.98 142,094.08° 144,240.84 150,972.70 143,400,51 144,591.95 14371867 13692321 138,730.36 150,000.00 1.740,254.02
541821449, 383168435 344026445 355346670 STT2O53.05 | TAI036183 250048081 336967448 511497605 386405634 328052075 618543926 4578410317
631,780.51 575.377.65 499,681.55 508,436,20- 568,968.04 514,185,127 525,810.49 $10,284.52 469,035.95 557,663.66 49531835 494,013.74 6,260,555.83
12.51% 18.06% 12.68% 12.52% 12.10% 13.10% 12.99% 13.08% 13,09% 12.81%- 1342% 7.40% 149.45%
25,000.00 25,000:00 +25,000.00 .25,000.00 25,000,00 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 (58,464,00) 216,526.00
203,77472. 25723871 23577748 235,870,04: 245,672.70 205,843.61 238,541.43 249.175.02 24459568 340,911.40 277,986.00 245233.00.  2,950,635.79°
58,100.45 49,131.61 50,390.41 48,454.69. 47.664.90 4116471 51,011,144 55171.46 - 55,682.32 57,886.80 - 64.770.00 66,773.00 644,210.78
27,833.33 27,833.33 2783333 27,833,33 27,633.33 27.833.33 27.833.33 2763333 27.833.23 27,833.33 27,833.00 86.00 306,252.30
77182 92177 813.81 1,064.55" 807.90 799.75 1,125.74 877,39 866,71 911.85 866,55 883.22 10,711.06
385,480,32 360,125.42 339,815.03 33623261 346,078.03 300,847:40 243.511.64 358,057:20 253.878.04 352,543.47 396,455.55 25451122 4,128.3359%
246.300.19 21525233 159,886.52 172,203.89 221,990.01 21353777 182,298.85 15222732 115,057.91 21512049 98,862.70 239,502.52  2232,219.30
(842.81) (645:50) (820.17) (803.91) (651.74) (543,11} @12n FOT.7Y) (621.53) {91934y (857.54) (536.54) (885121
247,143.00 215.897.73 160,686.69 173,007.60° 222,641.75 214,080.88 183,010.12. 152,935.03 115,879.44 216.039.53 9972034 24002806 224107117
247,143.00 21589773 160,886.69 +173,007.60 22264175 214,080.68 183,010.12 152,935.03 115,870.44 216,038.53 99,720.34 24002006 224107147



Revenues

Commisston Revenua:
4001-000-00 DE Roule Revenue < £
4002-000-00 OE Route Revenue- 13
4003-000-00 Rebate Rovenue.,

Total Commission Rovenue

Tolal Revenues
Cost of Revénues;
Routing Foes: .
“5020-000-00 Routing Fecs
5021-000-00 EDGA Exchange Rouit
5022-000-00 EDGX Route Fees
Total Rouling Faes
Clearing:
5010-000-00-Ticket Charpes - EDGA
5011-000-00 Ticket Charges - EDG>

Tolal Clearing

Total Cost 6f Revénues

Gross Margins
Gross Marglns. as a % of Revenues

Fixed Exponses.
Compensatior and:Bénefils;
6000-000-00-Allocated Cormip.and Be

“Total Compensation and Benefits

Communlcations s Data Proccssing:

8010-000-00 Allocated Comm and O

Tétat Comemunications & Data Proct
Doprociation and-Amoniization:
8510-000-00 Allocated Depreclalion
Total Depreciation and Amortization
Professional Foos: .
7500-000-00 Allocated. Professlonal
Tatal Professional Fees
Other Expenses:
9002-000-00 Bank Foes.
9004-000-00 Misc Exponse
“Total Othor Expenses

Diraet Edge ECN

For the-Month Ending Decembor 31,2013

,

Janbry, 2013 Febroary, 2013 March, 2013 Apil, 2013 Maiy, 2013 Juinie, 2013 July; 2013 AugUE:2093  Sopfember, 2013 Octobor; 2013 November, 2013 Decamber, 2013 Y10
3,516,331.00 320885500 273211100  2769989.00 278942000 244953500 286275500 2584821000  2353,696.00 2,332,628.00 254702000  2704547.00 3325172000
1,533,664.00 1;168207.00.  1.207:835.00 1,291:914.00 1,552,512.00; 147501200 1,385,536.00 1,34513800.  1.230.316.00 1:499,080.00 122881900  -1,133419.00  18,051452.00

2841487.00  2:841,487.00
5.049.995.00 4407,06200  3,939.945.00 4_,061'.90:&.9@' 434193200, 3524547000 404829100 3899,959.00  3,584,01400  -4421,718.00 3775,839.00  6,679453.00.  52,144,658.00
5,049,995.00 4,607,062.00  3/939,946.00 4,081,903.00 4,341,932.00° 3,824,547.00°  .4,048,291.00 3,899,959.00 '4,584,014.00 4,421,718,00 3,775.839.00 6.679.453.00  52,144,552.00

£7.407.55 4540547 69,308,711 74,39637 72,045.98. 65,252.28 168,991.23 :105,370.27 5544316 73,493,00 81,570.77 . 12,521.78" 942,406.00
2,958,546.93 272787997 221831112 2:311,032.98 231891463  2,010,008.51 2,147,03833 209679053 194581566 245507242 210347304 437671275  26.729,891.87
1,226,027.85 908,670.32: 944,939.24 1,025.943,27 4,237,762.51 1,184,027,34 1,033,050.44 1,041,921.73 970,000.56-  1,198,265.71 956,737.58 164620473  13,371,551.28
4,271,982.36 3680,046.76.  3.292,558.47 3,411,372.62 3,628,723.12 3,259,384.13 13,379,080.00 3._245_,082.33 2.971259.28 372713113 3,141,790.39 5.035.42926°  44,043,849.15
42,500.00 -42,500.00 42,500.00 42,500,00 42,500.00 42,500.00 43,134.03 42500.00 42,500.00 42.500.00 42,500.00 42,500.00 510,634.93
103,732.13 109,138.59 105,205.98 99,594,08 101,740.84 108,477.70 100,265.58 102,08%:95 101,218.67 94,423.21 95.230.36 107.500.00 1,229,613.08
146,222.43 151,638.56 14770598 142,004.08 14424084 150,977.70 143,400.51 144,591.95 143718.67 ,136,922.21 138,720.36 150,000.00  1,740254.02
4,418,214.48 383168425 344026445  '3,553,466.70 3,772.96396 341036183 3,522:48051 3.380,674:48 311497805  3,864,066.34 328052075 618543826 Jf._,"i«aoahi
631,780.51 57537765 499,681:55 508.426.30 '568,968.04 '514,185,17 525,810:49 510284.52 469,035.95 567,6683.66 49531825 494,013,74 6;360,555.83
12.51% 13.06% 12.68%. 12:52% 13:10% 13.10% 12:93% 13.08% 13.00% 12:81% 13.12% 7.40%, 149.45%
25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000,00 25,000,00 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 2500000 25,000:00 25,00000 {58,464.00) 216,536.00
2500000 25,000.00 25,000:00 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000,00 25,000.00 25,600.00] 25,000.00. 25.000.00 25,000.00 (58,464.00) 216,536,00
27BTT4T 25722874 235,777.48 235,870.04 24567270 205,849:61 238,541.43 (249 ,1475.02 244,595:68. 240,911.40 277,986.00 24523300 2.950,625:79
27377472 25723871 23577748 235,570.04 +245,672.70 205,849.61 238,541.43 249175.02 244,595,68: 240,811.40 277,985.00 245233000 °2,950,625.79
58,100.45 49.121.61 50,390,641 46,464.69 47,66$:10 44,1641 £4,09914 5547146 -55,662.32 '57,886:89 62.770.00 §6.772.00 §44,.21078
58,100.45 49,1316 50380.41 4646469 47,664.10 41184.71 51,011.14 55,471.46 55,682,32 57,886.89 64,770.00 66,773:00 644,210.78
27.83333 7783333 27,833.33. 27,833:33 |27,833.33 27,832.33 27,83333 2783332 27,823.33 27.833.33 27,833.00 $6:00 306.252.30
2783335 2783333 2783333 ) 27,833.33 2783333 2783333 37£33.33 27.833.33 2783333 27,83333 2783300 26.00 306,252.30
771.82 92177 812.81° 1,084.55 :807.80 799.75 112574 878,22 866.71 912.00 266.55 882.22" 10.712.05

: o (0.84) 0419 (0.99)

771.62 921.77 813.81 1,064.55 ‘807,90 1,125.73 877,39 866,71 911,85 £66.55 ega.22 10,711.08

799.75
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Roverives
Commission Revenue
Market Data
Other Incore

Total Revenues
‘Cost of Rovoniies”
Routing Fos:
Cloafing
Robates:
Other Expérise

Total Cost of Rovenues

‘Gross Marging
. Gross Margins as 2 % of Fovenusos

Fixed Exponses

Compensation.and Benefits
c feati

EDGA Inc:

Forthe Month Ending Oecembor31, 2013

& Data P

Depreciation and Amortization
Occupaney and Equipmant Rentals
‘Professional Fees.

Business Development:

Other Expenses

‘Total Fixed Expahises

Pro-Tax Income

Pre-Tax Income.

Not Income/(Loss)

Jafuary, 2013 Fébraary, 2012 March, 2013 Apil, 2013 May, 2013 June, 2013 July, 2013 August, 2013, Soptembicr, 2013 October, 2012 Navembér, 2013 Décember; 2013 Y70
6,624,651:65 6,830,196.74 £,155:262.89 6.578,118.58 6.335,715:45 6,184:240115 5,774.412.96 4,878,301.50 4,684,421.80 1+ 520742022 474658973 4,831,576.29  $68,140,987.85
83228417 1074337.35  1,113.567.23 4,012;267.09 s 1,079,108.45 1,026,007.21 933,487.35 §50,358.26 786,488.99 757,736.65 880;51200 11 1.28.

’ 5,000.00 12,500.00

7.457,015.82 7,9&4.53.4.0‘9" 7.268,630.12 7.590,385.67 | 7.345651.68 7,273.348.60 6,800,420.17 5916,798.95 5,684,780.06 6,183,909.31 5,504,306.38 572458829  80,654,659.14.
3.424,441,00 3,153937.00  2.649,334.00 2,600416.00 270884500  2,354,987.00 2,583,16200  .2,473,850.00 227321600  2,855961.00 2.469,331.00 262054700  32.277.887.00.
£1,820.00 84,918.00 _827i7.00 -79,573:00 80,775.00 84,548.00 79.583.00 80,971;00 80,482:00 76.877.00 77,689.00 84,000.00 -973,832.00
1419,076.29 1,760,745.70 1,797,798.14 4,897,946.03 1,715,502.71 1,370,392.66 1,161,863.23 679,135.41 659,510.61 727,064.57 577,367.93 57544258  14,341,845.86.
: 1,668.56: 329,44 168.00 2,166.00
4,835407.29 4,999,600.70 4;528,009.14 4,569,803.59° 4,504,922.7¢ 3,820,257:10 3,024,61823.  -3.233,95641 3,013;376.61 3,659,702.57 3,124,387,93 3279,989,58  47,595.731.86
2521,608.52 290492339 273902098  2.920,762.08: 284072097 345300150 207580194 268230234 267140845 252420674 237991845 244459871  33,098,927.28
32.82% 36.75% 37.68% 35.48% 3867%. 4748 42.76% 45.34% T 46,99% 40.82% 43.24% 42.70% 495.73%

B 1 N . .
1,281,699.02 1371,635.29 1,331,418.80 1,278,75366"  1,309,604.36 1,256,723.32 1,284,613.82 1,258,348.40 127669283 1,241,034,94 1212,73400. 153594000  15,641,198.44
599,200.05 701,579.42 69242345 713,783.26 631,261,72 624,390,95 644,086:82 604,058,33 508,309.61 570,879.51 '599,311.00 "540,633.00 7,530,916.93
173,243,965 176,029.70 194,181.72 186:819.41 170,613.46 172,357,862 188,790.69 185,260.61 ‘27644155 22089448 195,322,00- 181,959.00 2,321,914.42
50,930.48. 50,930.48 50,930.48 §0,930,48, 67,268.88 55,970,48 54,962.48 55,500.08 54,562.40 62,486.65 55,260,00 57,176.00 -667,008.89:
433,103,858 42483148 .338,199.34 509,057.83" '547.997.6% 45034211 917,287,75 1,038,316.94 820,558.27 67541147 595,015.00. §25456.00 7,380,593.68
70,664,93 73,505.64 46,843.30 35,66742 48,167.85 82,656.43 60,685.55 24,196.19 4928135 79.374.55 69,779.00 '52377:00 713,208.21:
67,893.25 49,579.32 -60.663.42 57,3311 62,431:92 6274117 5142424 82,717.58 §3:340.95 91,439,08 100,733.57 125,237.85 875,532.64
2,581,841.34 2848091.03  2,714760.52 283234327 283744503 2,705,182:29 320186132  3268297.43 315118686  2,941530.70-  2,028,154.57 341877885  35,130,46321
{160,233.01) 56,842:36 '24,260.46 88:438.81 328394 “747,909.21 (226,059:28) (586,464.59) {479,783.51) 1417,313:96). 448.226.12). (674,180,184} (207153593}
(160,233.01) | 56.842:36 24,260.46 £8,449.81: 3,283.94 74780821 (226.053.28) (566.464.59) (479,783.51) (417,312.96) (448.236.12) (674,180,14)  (2.071,525.93)
(160,233.01) 56,842.36 2426046, 88,439.81 328393 747908.21 (226,059.38) (585,464.59). (470,783.51) (417.313.96) (448,236:12) (674,180,14)  (071,535.93)



EDGAInG-

‘For. the Ménth Ending Doceriber 31, 2013

631.261.72

624,390,895

604,958.33

Jonusry; 2033 Fabniary, 2013 March, 2013 Aprl, 2013 May, 2012 Juna; 2013 July, 2013 August, 2013 Scptember, 2013 October, 2013 Novamber, 201_::3 bc;cmber. 2013 Y10
Raevonues )
‘Cammission Revenuo; . . L . : L .. . 5
4010-000-00 Matchad Revenue-EC  2,811,083.00°  3:208239.60 3,088,662.31 343971962  3,190,363.29 3,441,378.74 07616308 23705373 2,170980.82 247085336 196221697 200521165 33,177,208.57
'4020.000-00 Routed Révenve -EDC 381222805 353019960 205451747 313651415 . 3,138,51524  2,749,09927 274176428 270567292  2,523,131.79 292654222  2,773,152:61 280687980  35,899.417:59
4025-000-00 Late Foe Ravenue 1,260.50 1,757.45 12,083.14 1,884.81 5,836:52 3,762,144 448560 2,091.55 309.19: 124.74 1120045 19,484.74 64,360.7(
Total Commission Revenuc 562465165 683019674  B,15536289 5.578,418.58 633571515 6,104240.45. 577441296  4,§78201.60 4,694 421.80 5.297,42032 4746569.73  A@23157629  69,140987.36
-Market Data: . o . . ) L
- 4030-000-00 Market Data Revenue 832,364.17 107433735 111356723 1,012,267.0 1,009,936.53 1,076,108.45 1,036,007.21 [933,487:35 °990,358.26. 786.488.99 757.736.65 880,51200° 1149617128
Total Markot Data 832,364.17 1,074,337.35 1,143567:23.  1.012267.09  1,009,83653  1,079,108.45 1,026,007.21 933,487.35 990,356.26 786,488.99 757,738.65 82051200  11,495,171.28
Othor Income: L .
4070:000-00 Othior Inconic 5,000.90 12,500.00 17,500.00
Total Other Income: 5,000,00 12:500.00 17,500,00.
Total Reventes 745701582 7,904:534.09 726893042  T.59028567 734585168  T273M8E0. 680042047 581678095 5,684,780.06 6183,00931 550420638 '5,724.58329A 80,654,659.14
Cast of Revenuos
Routing-Fees: . L : L . L . L o y
5020-000-00 Routing Foos 343846100 3153837.00 264939400 269041600 270884500 3,264,967.00 2583162.00. 247385000 2273216000  2:855:961.00 2,469,331.00 2,620,547.00,  32,277,887.00
Total Routing Fées 3,434,441.00 215393700 264939400 269041600  2,708,645.00 2,364,987.00 258246200  2/473,850.00 2,273216.00 2,855,961.00 246823100 252054700 3227786700
Clearing: L . . . X . R
§010-000-00 Cidaring Féos 81,890.00 -84,918.00 82,717.00 79,573.00 80,775.00 84,548.00 79,593.00 80,871.00 80,482.00 76,677.00 77.888.00 84.000.00 973,833.00
Total Clearing 81,890.00 84;818.00 8271700 79.573.00 80,775.00 84,548.00 79,583.00: £20,971.00 80.482.00. “76.877.00 77.689.00 B4,000.00 973:833.00
Rebolos: ) ) » )
$030-000-00 Rebate Expense 1419,07629 1,760,745.70 1,797,798.14 1,897,946.03 1,715,502.71 1,370,392.66 1,161,86323 579,13541 859,510.61 727,064.57 577,367.93 57544258 -14.341,845.86
Total Rebates 1.419,076.29 1.760,745.70 1,797,798.14 1,897,946.03 1,71550271  1;370,392.66 1161,863.23 676,135.41 859,510.61 727,064.57 577,367.93 575,442.58  14,241,845.88
-Other Expcn:e:
5050-000-00 EDGA Tradling PL 1,668:568 320.44 168.00 2.186.00
. Total Other Expenso 1,668.56 329.44 168.00 2,166.00
Total Cost of Ravénués 4,935,507.29 4,909,60070  4529,909.14  4669,603.59  4,504,922.71 3.820257.10 382451823  3233,856.41 3,018.376.61 365070257  3124387.95 327998958  47,595,731.68
Gross Marglns 253160853  2,804,333.38  2,735,020.98 292078208 :2,840,728.97 3,453,091.50 2,075801.94  2i682.83254 267140345 252420674, 227991845 244459871 33,058,927.28
Gross Marging 23.2 % of Revonues 33.82%: -36.75% 3T.68% 38.48% 38.67% 47.48% 4376% 45.34% 46.95% 40.82%, 43.24% 42.70% 495.73%
Flxed Expenses
.Compensation and Benefits: ) .. o . . ) )
-6000:000-00 Allacated.Comp.and.8i  1,261,699:02 1,371,63529 133141880,  1,278,75366 130960496 125672332 1.284,613:82 1,268,348.40 1,278,692.83 1,241,034.94 1,212,734.00 1535940000  15.641,198.44
Total Compensation and Benefils 1281,699.02. 137163529 4,331:418.80 1,278,753.66 1i309,604.36 1,256,723.32 1,284,613.82 1,258,348,40 1:278,692.83 1,241,034.94 1.212.734.00 1,535,950.00  15841,198.44.
CGommunications & Data Processing: NP N o - = . .
8010-000-00'Allocated Communicat 599,300.05 1701,578.92 692,423,486 713783336 644,086,82. 608,309.61: 570,879.5 599,311.00 540,633.00 7.530,916.93
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EDGX inc.

For tho Twalva Months Ending Decembir 21,2013

Docember, 2012 January; 2013 Febniary, 2013- March, 2013 Aprl, 2013 May, 2013 June;: 2013 July, 2013 August, 2013 September, 2012 anbcr,‘ims, November, 2013  December, 2013
Assels
Cash.and Cashi Equivalents $27.760,548.26. S28,977.513.50 $39,221.65579 §20613.03145  $27,952.57044 53305926333 - $42,560,59122 $50471,742.07  SB0.803,563.17  $3913307.78 -$654887466  $15.770.83069  $24.231,726.60:
Commiszlons and Fees Recai 33259,93587 - 2941236145  32250262.80  38,058.656:60 3558722519  38.136.844.44 3BAIIE05,08 3440932050 33,174,44458  41187457.03 3473101418 31,707,396.59
Intercomgany Rec/(Pay) §707.530.87)  (8925,50722)  (TISIIIIN  (O0STITY)  (10.521277.71) (4,702668.99)  (4:32222666)  (B25Z164.24) (4.692,449,93).  (4758,280133)  (4.63228032) (3.493.555.31)
Cuprént Tax Rec/(Pay) . o . .
Total Assets 5531205316 60,980217:43 6485654333 4595650024 5549194933 6894181953  76374.609.00° 80,331486.81  86,336076.498  3239530243.  4297805136. 4586856454 5244056988,
Llabilitie's and Stockholders’ Equity.
Uiabilities.
Acrucd Adtivity Remitiance. Fées  27,962.504.01 3558699274 4230409414 /22,516,440.33 3073423455 39,793,115.99 4731694601  53,855,086:356  60,054,351.11 672144048 1451307381 2057834135 2681 997419
Rebates:Payable 1238858525 1556011871  11.968797.98  12,03023192 1284414511 16694,04248 1642604620 1409182693 14261,09696  13612651:86°  16,320,63830  13,020785.66 12,866,262.65
Accrued Compansation:and Other 1,297.66 0.0 0.01 0.01 ‘6,01 !
Tolal Uabllitids . 4125238692 S51.047,11246 5427289213 - 34:54667226°  43,378379.67 56487,15845 6374299321 67.946,922:29 74 296,348,07. 2032406224 3083671191 3360810701  39886.233.76
Stockholders’ Equlty
Additional Paid-In-Capital 200101001  (1,385,889.99)  ({.498.969.99) (1.498,989.99)  {(1,493,989.99)  (1.499.983.93) (1,498,089.99)  (1,498.989.99)  (1.408083.00)  (1,498,889.99) " (1,496,960.99) (1:498,980.99)  (1.498,988.99)
Retained Eamlings 1095955623,  11,332,09685 1208474119  12,908807.97 1361255065 1395385107 14130,605.78  13,88325451  13.53871811 1356020008 1364032944 1375944752 14,253,326,11
Tolal Stockholders Equity 13.960,566:24 983310497  10,58575120  11409.917.9% 1\2,1.13.5‘6,9,66. 12454,661.08  12,621,81 5.79. 12,384,264,52 1208972812 12,061.210:06° 1214133945 1226045753 12,754,226.12
Total Liabilities and Stockholders  55,312,953.16 60,980217.43  64,858,64333 ABSSESIN24 5549194933 6854181953  76.374,609.00 803311 86,81 8632607619 3230530243 4297805136 4586856454  52,440,569.85




EOCX inc.

‘Eorthe Tuelve Months Ending Decembor 31, 2013

Décombicri2012  Januafy, 2013 Fébruafy, 2013 . March, 2013 April, 2013 May, 2013 June, 2013 July, 2013 August; 2013 Septomber, 2013 Octaber;2013.  Novembor, 2013 Docembor, 2013
Assels
Cash and Cash Equivalents: R . L ) i L .
1001-000-00 EDGX JPM Operating 2776054826  28977.,513.50 3922185579 2061303115 27953570.44 3805025333 4256059122 SO,171,74207  60.803563.47 391330778 654887466 1577083089  24231,728.60-
Tofil CashandCash Equivalént 2776054826  28077,61350 3922166579 2051303115  27.95357044 3605026332 4256059122 500N 74207 60.803,562.17 3,913,307.78 654887466 1577083069 2423172860
[of issions and Feos Recsivabl 0
1120-000-00 Activity Remittance Cléaring Accourit ooy (0.02)
1125-000-00 AR~ Activity Romitianc - 8,707,877.45 9,250,247.92 8401,980.47 877835335 9,735,155.95  10,674,219.97 9,010,193.75 8,016,248,97 7.58492099:  7,100,828.44 9,113,677.76 7,560,120.98 7.357,345,36
1130-000-00 AR - Allowance for Doubtful 9.9t o123 ., 524 140 (0.55) 0.01 0.02 ) o ) o
1140-000-00 AR - Maiket Data Roce  9;343,851.83  12.630,831.79 6,341,224.96 962175265  12,535.976.74 652815323 1011881241 - 1338882697  10,300,902.58  9,961,65628.  13,162,359.02 544876885  10,122,388.61
1941-000-00 AR - Commissionz Rec  15,208,410.3¢  19,038.93624  14669,081.57  13.950.153.11 1578851821  18.387.84575 1900803688  17.006533.04 1651839852 1611195085 181 144148 2072261435,  14227,68262
“1199-000-00 Miscellaneous Roceivable . . L o -5,000.00 ’
4013-000-00 Commisslons Clearing (375 (4.79) (5.55) ©.22) .03 (22:15)

Tots] Commissions arid Fees R 33.250,935.87 4092821115 2941236145 3235026280  38,059.656.60 36,587,225.19  38,136,844.44 48,411,609,08 3440032050  33,174,44458  414B7457.03 3473101418 3170730659
Intorcampany Rec/(Pay): i . . e e Lo " . . .
1400-000-00 Intarcompany DE, Rout (868,583.72) (746.196.29) {548,615.22) (589,453.79) (752,126.59)  (1,065,097.47) (876210.78) (851,868.06) (825:956.12) (692.639.18) (902,771.99) (544,298.72) (660,699.20)
1403-000-00 Jniercompany - EDGA . ) ) ) §,000.00 ;
1402-000-00 Intercompany OE (4838.942265)  (@4702108%) (327575859 (6417.24992)  (976315142)  (BEWSTLEL)  (BMEE15.89) (7400295.28)  (B.OS0.85134)  (4.00491075) . (385550824)  (3.680.881.6T)  8ITE61
Total  Intercompany Ree/(Pay) (670753097 (892550722)  (7I5:3739) (7.006,703:71) (1052127771)  (4T0AG6B99)  (4322826.86) 18,252,364 (E876.007.48)  (4BO2440.9%)  (47S820033)  (463326033)  {3.408,555.31)

*Current Tax Roc/(Pay) )
Total Assits 5531295216 6098021743 6485864333  45956,50024 5549104933 6894181953 7637460200 8033118681 8633607649 3239520243  42.976,051.28 45,868,564.54  52,440,569.88
Lishilitles and Siockholders” Equity
Liabilities .
Acarued Activity Remittance Feos: . . . L o R . . ", o . .
2200-000-00 Accricd Activily Remisl  27,952.50401 3558689274 4230409414 2251644033 30,73423455 2979311599 47,216:945:01  53,855,08536  ©0.054251.11 572144048 1451307361  20578241.25  26818.971.1
Tolol  Accrued Activity Remiftanc ~ 27,962,504.01  35,586,992.74 4230600414 2251644033 3073423455  39.703.11599 4731694501 5385508536  60.054351.11 672144048 1451307381 2057834135 26,819,971,11
Rabates Payabic: L . . e . L
2100-000-00 Rebatos Payable 1338858525 155501971 1196879798 1203023182 1284414511 1659404246 16:425,048.20 1400183693 1424199696 1361265185 1632352830 1302976566  12,866.26255
Towsl  Rebates Payable 1338656525 1556011971 1196879788 1203020192 1264414511  16,60404246 1647606820 1408183693 1424199696 1361265186 1632362630 1302076566 1286626265
Acerued Compensation and Other Accrued Exponsest . ) » o
2600-000-00 Accounts Payabla 1.297.66 0:01 01 0.01 0.01
Towl  Accrued.Compensation ans 1.297.66 0.01 0,01 .01 0.01
Tota! Llabillies M35239692 514471246 5427289213 (3454667226 4337831967  56487,158.45  63.742,993.21 T er.g97220 7420624807 2033409234  30835711.91  30E0L107.01 3968623376
Stockholders' Equity
‘Additional Paid-In-Capital: , . ) ) o )
-3000-000-00 Additional Paiddn Capi 3100101001 (1,498,989:99)  (1.498.980.99)  (1495:880.5%) (1458.989.96)  (1408,089.5%)  (1.498,889.99)  (149898099)  (1408,989.98)  (1.498.989.83) (1 498,980.99)  (1,496,965.9%)  (1.498,988.99).
Total’ Addiional Paid:in-Capitat 300108001 (1493,980.99)  (1,498.989,99)  (1,408,989.99)  (1.498,989.99) (1 408,989.99) (1 1498,980.99) {1498,983.99)  (1,498,080.99) {1,492,089.99}  {1498988:99)  (1496,989.99) _ (1,498,989:99)
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